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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

To The Members of Payll Payments Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of PayU Payments Private
Limited (“the Parent”) and its subsidiaries, (the Parent and its subsidiaries together referred to as
“the Group”) which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, and the
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss {including Other Comprehensive loss), the Consolidated
Statement of Cash Flows and the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended
on that date, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of material accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”} in the manner s0 required and give a true and fair view in coenformity with the
Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act, ("Ind AS"} and other
aceounting principles generaily accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group
as at March 31, 2024, and their consolidated loss, their consolidated total comprehensive loss, their
consolidated cash flows and their consclidated changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consclidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing {"SAs") specified under section 143 {10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Consglidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with
the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ("ICAI") together with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the consclidated financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

« The Parent’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Board’s report, but does not include the consclidated
financial statements, standalone financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

The Parent’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Board’s report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements, standalone financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. The
Board’s report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report.
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+« Our opinion on the consolidated financia! statements does not cover the other information and
we will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

« Inconnection with our audit of the consclidated financial staternents, our responsibility is to read
the other information, compare with the financial statements of the subsidiaries and consider
whether the other information is materiaily inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated.

. When we read the Board's report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein,
we are required to communicate the matter te those charged with governance as required under
SA 720 ‘The Auditor's responsibilities Relating to Other Informaticn.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The Parent’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance including other
comprehensive l0ss, consolidated cash flows and consolidated changes in equity of the Group The
respective Board of Directors of the compantes inciuded in the Group are responsible for maintenance
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the
assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, impiementation and maintenance of adeguate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentaticn of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the
Directors of the Parent, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consoclidated financial statements, the respective Management and Board of
Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible far assessing the ability of the
respective entities to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the respective Board of Directors
aither intend to liquidate their respective entities or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are aiso responsible for
overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from rmaterial misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonabie assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individualiy or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisicns of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures respansive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resuliting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve coilusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are apprepriate in the drcumstances. Under section 143(3)(1) of the Act,
we are alse responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Parent has adequate internal
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusiens are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern,

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficiant appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of
the financial statements of such branches or entities or business activities included in the
consotidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the consolidated financial statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i} planning the scope of our audit work and in
evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in
the consolidated financia! statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Parent and such other entities included
in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, among

other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal financial controls that we identify during our audit.

Vits
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We also provide those charged with governance with a staterment that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them ali
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, reiated safeguards.

Other Matters

{a) We did not audit the financial information of one subsidiary, whose financial information reflect

total assets of Rs. 865.05 millions as at March 31, 2024, total revenues of Rs. 807.66 millions
and net cash inflows amounting to Rs. 274.09 millions for the year ended on that date, as
considered in the consolidated financial statements. These financia! information and
comparative financial information are unaudited and have been furnished to us by the
Management and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates
to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of this subsidiary, is based solely on such
unaudited financial informatien. In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us by the Management, these financial information are not material
to the Group.

(b) As explained in more detail in Nete 2.1, during the year ended March 31, 2024, the Parent

Company, directly or through its subsidiaries, acquired businesses from entities which were
ultimately controlled by the same parties who control it, both before and after the acguisition.
These transactions were accounted as common control transaction as per Appendix C of Ind AS
103. The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared to include the effect of accounting
for aforesaid business combinations as mentioned in Note 46 to Consolidated Financial
Statermnents as if such entities were wholly owned subsidiaries of the Parent Company for the year
ended Meh 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 and business restructuring had taken place at the
beginning of earliest of the periods presented, i.e. April 1, 2022. The standalone financial
statements of the Parent Company and its subsidiary for the year ended March 31, 2023 have been
audited by its respective predecessor auditors on which they have expressed an unmodified
opinion. The consolidated comparative period financial information for year ended March 31, 2023
have been prepared by management by combining the previously audited financial statements fer
the year ended March 31, 2023 and making suitable adjustments for accounting policy alignment
and other censolidation adjustments as required by Ind AS.

As part of our audit of the finandial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024, we also audited
the adjustments for accounting policy alignment and other consolidation adjustments as required
by Ind AS that were applied to prepared the comparative financial information for March 31, 2023.
In our opinicn, such adjustrments are appropriate and have been properly applied. We were not
engaged to audit, review, or apply any procedures to the financial statements for the year ended
March 31, 2023 of the company other than with respect to the adjustments and accordingly, we
do not express an opinion er any other form of assurance on the comparative information for the
year ended March 31, 2023 taken as a whole.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements above and our report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report, that:
a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid
consclidated financial statements.
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b}

<)

d)

e)

i3

9)

hj

in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law maintained by the Group
including relevant recerds relating to preparation of the aforesaid consolidated financial
staternents have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those books, except
in relation to accounting software mentioned in Note 59 of Financiai Statements. In relation
to compliance with the requirements of audit trail, refer paragraph (h}(vi} below.

The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including
Other Comprehensive loss, the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows and the Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant
books of account maintained for the purpase of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements.

In our opinton, the aforesaid consoclidated financial statements comply with the Ind AS
specified under Section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Parent as on
March 31, 2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Company and the reports
of the statutory auditors of subsidiary companies incorporated in India, none of the directors
of the Group companies incorporated in India is disqualified as on 31st March, 2024 from
being appeinted as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure A” which is based on the auditors’ reports of the Parent and subsidiary
companies incorporated in India. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the
adequacy and operating effectiveness of internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements of those companies.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us and based on the auditor’s reports of subsidiaries companies incorporated in [ndia,
the Parent and said subsidiary companies, being private companies, section 197 of the Act
related to the managerial remuneration is not applicable.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our gpinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i} The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the
consolidated financial position of the Group- Refer Note 39 to the consclidated financial

statements;

i) The Group did not have material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts including
derivative contracts - Refer Note 52 to the consolidated financial statements;

iil) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor

Education and Protection Fund by the Parent and its subsidiary companies
incorporated in India.
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iv)

v)

vi}

(a) The respective Managements of the Parent and its subsidiaries which are
companies incorporated in India, whose financial staternents have been audited
under the Act, have represented to us that, to the best of their knowledge and
pelief, other than as disciosed in the Note 60 to the consolidated financial
statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested {either from
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
parent or any of such subsidiaries to or in any other person(s) or entity{ies},
including foreign entities ("Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether
recarded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by
or on behalf of the Parent or any of such subsidiaries (*Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behaif of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b) The respective Managements of the Parent and its subsidiaries which are
companies incorporated in India, whose financial statements have been audited
under the Act, have represented to us and to the other auditors of such
subsidiaries that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, other than as
disclosed in the Note 60 to the consolidated financial statements, no funds have
been received by the Parent or any of such subsidiaries from any person{s) or
entity(ies), inciuding foreign entities ("Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or ctherwise, that the Parent or
any of such subsidiaries shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party {"Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(¢} Based on the audit procedures performed that have heen c¢onsidered
reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances performed by us whose
financial statements have been audited under the Act, nothing has come to cur
or other auditor's notice that has caused us or the other auditors to believe
that the representations under sub-clause (1) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided
under (a) and {b) above, contain any material misstatement.

The Parent and its subsidiaries which are companies incorporated in India, whose
financia! statements have been audited under the Act, have not declared or paid any
dividend during the year and have not proposed final dividend for the year.

Based on our examination which included test checks, except for the instances
mentioned below, the Parent Company and its subsidiary companies, incorporated in
india have used accounting software for maintaining their respective books of account
for the financial vear ended March 31, 2024, which have a feature of recording audit
trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant
transactions recorded in the software.

In respect of Parent Company:
a) Certain accounting software used for maintaining accounting records of revenue and
cost did not have the audit trail feature enabled throughout the year,

b) The accounting software used April 1, 2023 till September 30, 2023 for maintaining
accounting records related to all generai ledgers, did not have the audit trail feature
enabled for the said period,
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¢) The accounting software used from October 1, 2023 for maintaining accounting
records related to ail general ledgers, did not have the audit traii feature enabied for
the said period at the application level.

in respect of ene subsidiary, the accounting software used by the Company for
maintaining its books of account for the year ended March 31, 2024 did not have a
feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility.

In respect of the second subsidiary,

a) The accounting software used for maintaining accounting records of revenue, other
financial assets and its impairment, did not have the audit trail feature enabled

throughout the year;

b) The accounting software used from April 1, 2023 till February 15, 2024 for
maintaining accounting records related to all general iedgers, did not have the audit
trail feature enabied for the said period.

¢) The accounting software used from February 16, 2024 for maintaining accounting
records related to all general ledgers, did not have the audit trail feature enabled for
the said peried at the application level.

In respect of the third subsidiary,

a) The accounting software used from April 1, 2023 4ll February 15, 2024 for
maintaining accounting records related to all general ledgers, did not have the audit
trail feature enabled for the said period.

b) The accounting software used from February 16, 2024 for maintaining accounting
records related to all general ledgers, did not have the audit trail feature enabled for
the said period at the application level.

1In respect of the fourth subsidiary,
8) The accounting software used for maintaining accounting records of revenue, did not

have the audit trail feature enabled throughout the year;

b} The accounting software used from April 1, 2023 till June 30, 2023 for maintaining
accounting records related to all general ledgers, did not have the audit trail feature
enabled for the said period.

¢) The accounting software used from July 1, 2023 till March 31, 2024 for maintaining
accounting records related to all general ledgers, did not have the audit trail feature
enabled for the said period at the application level.

In respect of the fifth subsidiary,

a) The accounting software used for maintaining accounting records of revenue, did not
have the audit trail feature enabled throughaut the year;

b) The accounting software used from April 1, 2023 till September 30, 2023 for
maintaining accounting records related to all generat ledgers, did not have the audit
trail feature enabled for the said pericd.
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¢) The accounting software used from October 1, 2023 for maintaining accounting
records related to all general ledgers, did not have the audit trail feature enabied for
the said peried at the application level.

Further, during the course of our audit, we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature
being tampered with in respect of the accounting software for the period for which the audit trail
feature was operating.

(Refer Note 58 of the Financial Statements)

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable from April 1,
2023, reporting under Rule 11 {g) of the Companies {(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 on
preservation of audit trail as per the statutory requirements for record retention is not applicable
for the year ended March 31, 2024.

2. With respect to the matters specified in clause (xxi) of paragraph 3 and paragraph 4 of the
Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("CARO”/ “the Order”) issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, according to the information and
explanations given to us, and based on the CARO reports issued by us and the auditors of
respective companies included in the consalidated financial statements to which reporting under
CARQ is applicable, as provided to us by the Management of the Parent, we report that there
are no quaiifications or adverse remarks by the regpective auditors in the CARO reports of the
said companies included in the consolidated financial statements.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
{Firm's Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

\

U

.' hu . WY /
Il‘ﬁ'lkas Bagaria
(Partner)

{Membership Ne. 060408)
{UDIN: 24060408BKFSLY9681)

Place: Chennai
Date: June 21, 2024
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
{Referred to in paragraph 1(f}) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements under Clause {i} of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013

{“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company as at and for
the year ended March 31, 2024, we have audited the internal financiat controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements of PayU Payments Private Limited (hereinafter referred to as
“parent”) and its subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in India, as of that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Parent and its substdiary companies which are companies
incorporated in India, are respensible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls with
reference to consclidated financial statements based on the internal control with reference to
consclidated financial statements criteria established by the respective Companies considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting (“the Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (“ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective company's
policies, the safequarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financiai
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements of the Parent and its subsidiary companies which are companies
incorporated in India, based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing,
prescribed under Section 143(10} of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements. Those Standards
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perferm the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with
reference to conselidated financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internat control based on the assessed risk.
The procedures selected depend en the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the financial staternents, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained in terms of their reports referred to in the
Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion
the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements of the Parent, its
subsidiary companies which are companies incorporated in India
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to consolidated fina ncial statements

A company's internat financial control with reference to consolidated financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonabie assurance regarding the reitability of financia! reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purpeses in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company's internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial
statements includes those policies and procedures that {1} pertain to the maintenance of records
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets
of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary {o
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance
with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding preventien or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition
of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to consclidated
financial statements, including the possibifity of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference
to consotidated financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate,

Opinion

In our opinion to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us the
Parent and its subsidiaries companies, which are companies incorporated in India, have, in all
material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements and such internal financial controls with reference to consclidated financial statements
were operating effectiveiy as at March 31, 2024, based on the criterta for internal financial control
with reference to consclidated financial statements established by the respective companies
considering the essential components of internal contro! stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Centrols Qver Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants

of India.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
{Firm‘s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

“ikas Bagaria

(Partner)

(Membership No. 060408)
{UDIN: 24060408BKFSLY9681)

Place: Chennai
Date: June 21, 2024
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PayU Payments Private Limited

CIN: UTZ400MIEZ006PTCR93037

Consotidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024
Amaunts in INR millions, uniess otherwise shated

. As al As al
Particutars Notes % 312024 March 1, 2023
ASSETS
Pam-rwrresl aisem
Property, plant and equipment 1] 146 61 7293
Right of use assets 2 966 50 &78 55
Geoadwill ] 151807 751417
Cther intangible assets 5 22330 265 27
imangible 2ssets under develapment 1 - 4003
Financial assets
(i} Investments & 1704 77.04
{1} Loans 7 12,882 10 5,992 67
{aid) Crther financial assets 8 332 37 163 62
Deferred tax assels (et} 0 ] 14732
Tax assels {net} 11 1,275 43 1,231 87
Cher non-cument assels " L85 79 784 286
Tatal non-current assets 15,881,901 1Tl
Current assels
Financial assets:
iy Trade receivables iz 1,664 57 851N
i) Cash and cash equivalenls 13 10,777.17 11,574 73
(i1} Bank balance other than (i) above 14 423142 431190
fiv} Loans 7 18,67005 10,490 00
{%} Other financial assets § 189042 1,470 98
Contract assets 15 17323 35412
Other cusment assets 1 | AhZ T il |3
Toial rarveml apdts o e LR
TOTAL ASSETS £5.873.49 49.3717.04
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 16 30,151.18 20,468 2%
Cither equity 17 {5234 04) {1,491 33)
Equity Atributable to owners 24.97%.14 18.976.95
Non cantrolling inierest 15 1,928 1%
Tutzl equity 24.519.14 22_905&
Liabilities
Nom-current Habilities
Financial liabilites
(i) Borrawings 19 12,637 75 6,064 27
{3 Leoase Wzbikies 20 164 62 54215
(i} Other finsncial liabilities 24 36672 71363
Contract liabilines 15 - 279
Provisions 21 158 97 86 63
COther pon cumrent liabalities 2 397 74 233 18
Total nonscurrent liabilities 14.425.80 AA13.65
Current labilities
Financial ligbilities
{i7 Borowings 3] 18,325 35 10,099 08
{h) iease Mabilities 0 202 24 15982
(i} Trade payables
- Total autstanding dues of micro enlerprises and small enterprises and 23 1312 2714
= Total ding ducs of creditors other than micro cntagprises and small enterprises 23 1.93245 1,794 26
(iv} Other financial Liabilities 4 4611 69 5,082 43
Contract hiabilites 15 149 28 164 88
Other current liabililtes 22 1,134 43 1,016 83
Provisians 21 19% 99 12062
Current tax liabilities {Nat} 1.1 — i 114
‘Total current tiabilities (] [T ]
Total ftabilities 495435 26.4Ti.85
#5873 .49 49.377.00

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

The above Consolidated Batance Shect should be read in conjunction with the sccompanying notes

This is the Consohdated Bal sheet raferred 1o in our report of even date
Sabtnr gk & ik LLF
Hipiuregen Sewbee: b b YR |00
-
o
Brgiis fi A
'I:;i' Chartereg | o
Fartoer ||-6.ﬁ.ccountants s
Membership Number: 0408 1| R,

Flaee: The nndh
Date: 2} Sune 2024

For aad o hehalf of board of directors of

Chief Exccutive
and Director

BIN: 07157585
Place: Mumbai
Date: June 21, 2024

Chiel Financial Qfeer and

Director

THIN: 02145453
Flace: Mumbai
Date: Juge 1I, 1024

@)

So—
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PayU Payments Private Limited

CIN: UT2400MH2006P TC293037

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2024
Amounts in INR millions, unless otherwise stated

. For the Year ended For the year ended
ticu! N
b et Msrch 31. 2024 March 31, 2023
I. [ncome
Revenue from aperations 25 44,605 87 3342208
Cufter lacome 26 693.53 48718
Tatal 45.303.40 38.909.26
il. Expenzes
Caost of services 27 3397793 2769334
Employee benefits expense 28 7.008.72 8,205 79
Finance costs 2% 10895 88.20
Dep and arortiseiion expense 30 335.18 146 39
[mpaimment allowance and write-off of financial assels 31 241757 1,735 32
Other expenses 32 4,053 06 3,507.23
Tota! 48.001.43 41476331
Itl. Loss before exceptional items and tax {2,653.03) (2,567.06)
1V. Exceptions! item: 33 {36 54) (323 34}
V. Lossbefore tax [LTHLETY {1050 80y
¥1. Tax expense
Curment 14x sxpense 34 141216 108
Deferted tax {creditiexpense 34 143,38 {148 B
Tatal tax expense 1.560.54 (142.72)
¥II. Loss after tax {4,295.11) (2,748.18)
VIIIL. Gther comprehensive incomed{loss): i3
+ Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations {2387 269
« Income tax relating to these items . »
- Remeasurement of defined benefit plans 2138 2038
- Fair value changes on Equity Instruments through
other comprehensive income 4
« Income Lax relating ro these items .
Total sther comprehensive incomel{foss) far the year (2.51) 23.07
Y11 Tatal comprehensive loss for the yesr (4,297.62} {2,725.11})
VTIT. Earnings per Equity Share of Face Value of ¥ 10 Each
Basic EFS (in T) 36 (1513 (0,97}
Diluted EFS (in T (151} {0.97)
The above Comlidsind Statement of Profit and Lo should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes
This is the Consolidated $tatement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date
For Defoitte Haskins & Setls LLEP For and on behalf of board of directors of
RBeglivraghen Number: 117T366WAW- 100018 - | PaylJ Payments Private Limited
s > ~ B
I H1P
Bagaria q) l.r xlld’ Mombbam Mok al Anuradha Aggarwal
| = Charterog (.P,. ki Enidnsss Chief Financial Officer and  Company Secretary
Partner ACCOUntangs ol and Director Director
Membership Number: 450408 || / 4 A DIN: OTLSTSEY EHN; 02175753
Place: Lnenngi A Flace: Mungbai Piace: Mumbai Place: Mumbai
Date: 24 Jyme 2024 "Qa_ _A, b Date: June 21, 2024 Date: June 21, 2024 Date: June 21, 2024



PayU Payments Frivate Limited
CIN: UT2400ME2ZH06PT 293057

Consolidated Cash flow statement For the year ended March 31, 2024

Amaunts in INR millions, unless otherwise stated

Particulars

For the Year ended

March 31, 2024

For the year ended
March 31,2023

Cash flow from aperating activities

Loss before tax after exceptional items (2,734.57) (2,590,904
Adjustments for
Drepreciation and amortisation expenses 33518 246 3%
lrnpam'ncnt loss on Loans 2,193 95 1,510 19
p t loss on financial assets 22362 22513
Interest inceme on bank depasils {32279} {181 14)
Interest income on sequnity deposits {662) {352)
ineerest income an Income tax refund {56 83) (1L 32)
Intamgible wrinen off 173 03 .
ESOF expense (RSU} 37313 59220
Finance cost 108 95 8820
Lats on sccount of early termingtion of leases {16%) 573
{Profit) / Lass on sale of property, plant and equipment {net) {132} 190
Proviston for chargeback 134 96 48 78
Provision no longer required! eredit balance written back {322y 191 313
Ursealised Gain on Forelgn eurtency gansastions and translasans (nel) (1913 {241
Profit on sale of CCPS x {519 24}
Business guanhnation adpimoni j ] im0 N
Operating profit before warking capitsl changes 3,628.86 TATLSS
Working capital edjustrments:
Decreasei{incraase) in rade receivables Faa 1l (872 85)
increase in other financial asscis (3,95G11}) {504 36)
Increase in other assels and contract agsets {476 93) (2,233 04)
Increase i loan at amortised cost {17,263 43) {9,986 50
{ncrease/{decrease) i wade payable 11769 {146 96)
Increasciidecrease} n provisions {1831 27 50
Ingrease/idecrease} wn other finoncial liabilities (382711 2,027 43
Increase in other lisbilities and coniraet lisbiiues 217178 267
Cash generated from/f (used in) aperationy (17.861.08) (4,638.52)
‘igcnmelaxesﬁdlﬁﬁtflm| i1 80081 [ 00
Mot cank oatfiow from speraliag aqvi itks (&) (19, 201436 L5 A
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchese of praperty, plant and equipment’s (122 T) {48 15}
Purchase of intangible assets (1423)) {78 98)
Proceeds from sale of property, plane & equipment 326 176
{Invesament) / Maturity n bank depasits (net) 72435 (33213)
Proceqds from sale of CCP3 ' 454743
brgre (epesopd o0 bank depnn N1 TN 18114
Net cash flas! [putilcw] from mvosing activities () 785,38 42T
Cash Mows from financing activities
Proceads from issue of share capital {including premium and issue exp 2,173 59 1,270 52
Proceeds from borrawings 15,504 38 9,195 53
Repayment of bortowings (65913 {3,050 09}
Intercst paid on borrowings {842) (50 10)
Priziipal element of lease payments (169 46) (141 64)
ol of lease 717 [Br i l]
[Wam raski iaforw dram 0 g atinitbes (T §T337.0) TR
B. Net changes in cash and cash equwaleuu {A+B+C) {1,139 22) 6211 05
E. {Bpening cash and cuih 0767 0% 355 el
B Claung coth sed sah sqgeialents LY LY A
Neo-cash financing and investing activities
- Tssuance of equity shares to acquire ABC Limited
- Acquisition of Right-of-use assews
Cash snd cash equivalents as per above comprise of the following
As at Asat
Particulars
March 31, 2024 March 31,2823
Balances with banks 333276 3,045 49
Deposits with ariginal maturity of less than three months 7,441 4] 8.92524
Borrawingy
Bank overdraft {2, Lk 3y (230763}
Baliages pir istemons of cash flaws EATTET B, Ti7.0F
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Puyll Payments Private Linlted
CIN: V724000 A2 006 F T C293037
Consolidated Cash Row statement For the year ended March 31, 2024

Amancts ic INR millioes, untess otherwise stated

Notes:

| The shove Cash flaw statement has been prepared under the ‘Indirect Method™ as set out in Ind AS 7 - “Cash Flow Statements’

2 Figures in brackets indicate cash outgo except for items considered separately.
3) Changes in lisbilities arising from financing activities:

Particulars Dipwming Cask flow (melk Addliien Others** { lasmg
Far the year W1 = 1F
Lease liability 3Z2 00 (175.07} 521.6¢ 3743 12196
Borowings §,380.52 (3,100.20% 9,195 53 i,187 51 16,163 35
For the year 2023 - 24
Lease hability 70196 (266.64) 452 06 19.47 966.86
Borrowings 16,163.35 (74.33) 15,504.28 (63021} I0,963.09
The ahove Cash P statement shonld be read i o wilh the accamnanving nntes
This is the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement referred to in ouwr report of even date.
For Deloitte Basking & Sclls LLP “LXking = B, For and en bebalf of board of directors of
Reghinrstion Numbar: 1 TREE AV 109EE, 0~ n@@ PayU Payments Private Limited I
{1 W SV B o
s o/ e - y Lo
||+ | Chartared | ==
|1"= | Accountants | |
s Bagaria ok e Y AR arusd Asurzdba Aggarwal
| A— '.::.\_- . Furn, i Chiel Executive (ifieey  Cldel Fiaamcial OFicer Companay Secretary
"H iy i and Director and Dlrector
Mesabership Nunber; 060408 N o DIN: 07187588 DIN: 62175753
R Place: Mumbai Plece: Mombai Place: Muarbai

Place: Dnennal
Date: 2y Sune 2oy

Date: Jupe 21,2024

Date: June 21, 2024 Dgte: June2l, 2024
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PayU Payments Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024.
Amounts in INR millions unless stated otherwise

General information

PayU Payments Private Limited {“the Company or the Holding Compary™) was incorporated in India on May 24, 2006 and is
domiciled in India. The Company is a subsidiary of MIH Payments Holding BV, The Company is ingorporated and domiciled
in India under the provisions of the Companies Act applicable in India. The registered office of the Company i3 located at Shiv
Building, First Floor, Crossing of Sahar Road, Viie parle (East), Mumbai, Maharashtra, India, 400057.The Helding Company
together with its subsidiaries are hereinafter referred to as “The Group™.

The Group is primarily engaged in the business of:

a) Digital payment services L.e., Payment gateway services for e-commerce transaction, risk-based authentication and payment
security service. It also provides solutions ranging from mobile payments, fruud and risk management, prepaid solutions, and
a host of merchant services.

b) Digital financial services i.¢., business lending credit by way of personal loan and deferred credit facility for short term
duration. It also innovative payment and financing related services to Indian consumers and deals in Information Technology
enabled Services.

Summary of material accounting policies
2.1  Basis of preparation

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group comprises of Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, and
March 31, 2023 and the related Consclidated Statement of Profit and Loss, Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 and material accounting policies
and explanatory notes {hereinafter collectively referred to as {“Consolidated Financial Statements™).

The Consolidated Financlal Statements have been prepared by the management of the Holding Company in accordance with
[ndian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under the Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended from time to time and other accouniing principles generally accepted
in India and presentation requirements of Division II of Schedule (I 10 the Companies Act, 2013 which have been approved
by the Board of Directors of the Holding group at their meetings held on June 21, 2024,

Business Combination

[Mring the year ended March 31, 2024, the Holding Compasny, directly or through its subsidiaries, acquired businesses from
entities which were ultimately controlled by the same parties wha control it, both before and alter the business acquisition, as
mentioned in Note 46 to the Consolidated Financial Statements. These transactions were accounted as common control
transaction as per Appendix C of Ind AS 103.

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared to include the effect of accounting for aforesaid business
combinations as raentioned in Note 46 to Consolidated Financial Statements as if such entities were wholly owned subsidiaries
of the Holding Company for the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 and business restructuring had taken place
beginning of the earliest period presented, i.e. April 1, 2022.

Historical convention

The Consolidated Financial Statements has been prepared on a going concer basis, historical cost basis and on an accrual
basis, except for following assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value:

i} Certain financial assets and liabilities
it) Defined benefit plans — Plan assets and

_iii} Cash settled share based payments
o

&,
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PayU Payments Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024,

Amounts in INR millions unless stated otherwise
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Functional currency is the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates and is normally the
currency in which the entity generates and spends cash. The Consolidated Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees

" £ " which is also the functional currency of parent entity.

Certain notes and disclosures in the Ind AS financiats have been represented as Zero ("0"), where the absolute amount is below
the rounding off norms adopted by the Group.

The preparation of these Consolidated Financial Statements requires thw use of certain eritical accounting judgements and
estimates. It also requires the management to exercise judgement in the process of applying the Group's accounting pelicies
The areas where estimates are significant to the Consolidated Financial Statements, or arcas Involving & higher degree of
judgement or complexity, are disciosed in Note 2.27.

Rounding of amounts

All amounts disclosed in the consolidated financial statements and the accompanied notes have been rounded off to the nearest
millions as per the requirement of Schedule 111, unless otherwise stated.

2.2 Basis of consolidation

The Group's Consolidated Financial Statements comprise the financial statements of Holding Company and ali of its
subsidiaries as at March 31, 2024. The financial statements of the entities used for the purpese of consolidation are drawn up

to same reporting date as that of the Holding Company.

Subsidiaries are ail entities over which, Holding Company exercises control. Holding Company exercises control if and only if
it has the following:

a) power over the entity
b) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the entity; and
¢) the ability to use its power over the entity to affect the amount of its returns.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are identified separately from the Group’s equity therein. Those interests of non-
controlling sharcholders that are present ownership interests entitling their holders 1o a proportionale share of net assels upon
liquidation may initially be measured at fair value or at the non-controlling interests” proportionate share of the fair value of
the scquiree’s identifiable net assets, The choice of measurement is made on an scquisition-by-acquisition basis. Other non-
controlling Envierests are initinfly measured at fair value, Subsequent to dcquisition, the carrying amount of nor-contrelling
interests s the amount of those interests at initial recognition plus the non-controlling interests” share of subsequent changes in

equity.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or
more of the three elements of control listed above.

The difference between the cost of investment in subsidiaries (investee company) to the Group and the proportionate share in
the equity of the investee Company as at the date of scquisition of stake is recognized in the Consolidated Financial Stalements
as Goodwill or Capital Reserve, as the case may be. Goodwill arising on consolidation is tested for impairment at the Balance
Sheet date. Non-controlling interests which represent part of the net profit or loss and net assets of subsidiaries that are mod,

directly or indirectly, owned or controlled by the Group, are excluded.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the group. They are deconsolidated from the
date that control ceases.

The group combines the financial statements of the parent and its subsidiaries line by line adding together like items of assets,
liabilities, equity, income and expenses. Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between
group companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transsction provides evidence of an
impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been chamged where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopied by the group.

®)




PayU Payments Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024.

Amounts in INR millions unless stated otherwise

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group include subsidiaries listed in the table below:

B . Nature of % of Equity Interest*
Name of Subsidiary Principal activities relationship Country of =
Incorporation March 31, March 31, | April 01,
2024 2023 2032
PayU Innovations
Private Limited
(formerly known as Web technology and Wholly owned , o o
U\ PaylU India Setllement | consultancy services subsidiary Tndia 100% 100% NA
and Processing Private
Limited)
Payl Finance india NBFC: Lending and ; | " .
2| Private Limited Investment Step down India e g el
subsidiary
|- Provide innovative
PaySense Services Wholly owned . : "
3 tndia Private Limited payment a.nd_payment subsidiary India 100% 100% 100%
secunity services
Lazvpay Private Provide management,
Pl technical, marketing,
Limited (formerly administrative
4| known as Paysense N — Wholly ovned India 100% 100% 100%
Consultancy Services z:m:iercaa " ;ndncna subsidiary
India Private Limited) Gfues Conslancy
SEMVICES
Providing risk based — B
Enstage Software authentieation and olly owne . o N
3| Private Limited payment security subsidiary _— 100% 100% 100%
seTvices |
Provide innovative Wholly owned
6| Wibme Incorporation payment and paytnent subsidiary Usa 100% 150% 100%
| security services |
—_ - 1.

*Includes 1 share heid by a nominee except for Wibmo entity.

Tn addition to the equity interest, Holding Company through its subsidiary also hoid interest in 10.4% Compulsory convertible
preference shares in the step-down subsidiary:

=S

Name of % of Interest
Name of subsidiary . March 31, Mareh 31, i
# step down subsidiary azr (fz 4 ;023 April 01, 2022
1| Paysense India PayU Finance India Private 100% 10.4% 100%
Private Limited Limited |

2.3 Classification of assets and liabilities

The Group presents assets and liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet based on current / non-current ¢lassification. An
asset is treated as current when:

a) it is expected to be realized, or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;

b) it is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

¢} itis expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period; or

d) it is cash or a cash equivalent uniess restricted from being exchanged or used to settie a liability for at least twelve months

after the reporting period.
All other assets are classified as non-current.

=~ -'.‘-I"ii_ubililg.- is current when:

e G

) i is wxpected to be settled in its normal operating cycle;

| fee e ik it i held primarily for the purpose of trading;

! ch it 15 due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or




PayU Payments Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024,

Amounts in INR millions unless stated otherwise
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d) there is no unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.
All other liabilities are classified as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities, respectively.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash or cash equivalents.
The Group has identified twelve months as its operating cycle for the purposes of classification of its assets and liabilities.

2.4 Business combination
Common control transactions

Business combinations involving entities or businesses under common control are accounted for using the pooling of interest
method. Under pooling of interest method, the assets and liabilities of the combining entities or businesses are reflected at their
carrying amounts after making adjustments necessary to harmonise the accounting policies. The financial information in the
financial statements in respect of prior periods is restated as if the business combination had occurred from the beginning of
the preceding period in the financial statements, irrespective of the actual date of the combination. The identity of the reserves
is preserved in the same form in which they appeared in the financial statements of the transferor and the difference, if any,
between the amount recorded as share capital issued plus any additional consideration in the form of cash or other assets and
the amount af share capital of the transferor is transferred to capital reserve. The consideration for the business combination
may consist of securities, cash or olher assets. Securities shall be recorded at nominal value. In determining the value of the
consideration, assets other than cash shall be considered at their fair values.

2.5 Foreign currency transactions
(i} Functional and presentation currency

Ttems included in the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which it operates i.e. the “functional currency™. The Group’s consolidated financial
staternents are presented in INR, which is the functional currency of all entities in the Group (except for Wibmeo Inc.} The
functional currency for Wibmo Inc. (foreign subsidiary) is its respective local currency (i.e., US Dollars or “UJsSD™). USD
is the currency of the primary economic environment in Wibmo Inc. operates. The transactions and balances of Wibmo
Inc. have been converted in INR.

(ii) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange rates are generally recognised in
profitor loss. They are deferred in equity if they relate to qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying net investment hedges
or are attributable to part of the net investment in a foreign operation. A monetary item for which settlement is netiher
planned nor likely to occur in the foreseeable future is considered as a part of the entity’s net investment in that foreign
operation.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are recorded using the exchange
rates at the date of the transaction. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary
items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item
(i.e. translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in Other Comprehensive [ncome or
Statement of Profit and Loss are also recognised in Other Comprehensive Income or Statement of Profit and Loss,
respectively). In case of an asset, expense or income where a non-monefary advance is paid/received, the date of transaction
is the date on which the advance was initiaily recognised. If there were multiple payments or receipts in advance, multiple
dates of transactions are determined for each payment or receipt of advance consideration.

(it} Group companies

== The results and financial position of foreign operations {none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy)
S < “that have a functional currency different from the presentation currency are translated into the-preseripion currency as




PayU Payments Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024,
Amounts in INR millions unless stated otherwise

a) assets and liabilities are translated at the closing rate af the date of that balance sheet

b) income and expenses are franslated at average exchange rates (unless this is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case income and expenses are translated at

the dates of the transactions), and
¢}  All resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of any net investment in foreign entities is recognised
in other comprehensive income. When a foreign operation is sold, the associated exchange differences are reclassified to

prefit or loss, as part of the gain or loss on sale.
2.6 Revenue recognition
L. Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group exercises judgement in identification of performance obligations in a contract. The Group’s contracts with customers
could include promises to transfer product / services to a customer. The Group assesses the product / services promised in a
contract and identifies distinct performance obligations in the contract. Identification of distinct performance obligation
involves judgement to determine the deliverables and the ability of the customer to benefit independently from such

deliverables,

The group’s contracts with customers may include multiple performance obligations. For such arrangements, the group allocate
revenue to each performance obligation based on its relative standalone selling price. The group generally determine standalone
selling prices based on the prices charged to customers or using expected cost-plus margin.

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for price concessions and incentives,
if any, as specified in the contract with the customer.

Variable consideration such as discounts, volume-based incentives, any paymenis made to a customer {unless the payment is
for a distinct good or service received from the customer) is estimated using the expected value method or most likely amount
as appropriate in a given circumstance. An entity includes estimates of variable consideration in the transaction price only to
the extent that it is highly probable that 2 significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not aceur
when the uncertainty associated with the variable consideration is resolved.

The group does not have any contracts where the period between the transfer of the promised goods or services to the customer
and payment by the customer exceeds one year. As a consequence, the group does not adjust any of the transaction prices for
the time value of money.

The billing schedules agreed with customers include periodic performance-based payments. Invoices are payable within
contractually agreed credit period.

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized when control of the goods or services are transferred to the customer at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The
Group has generally concluded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements.

The Group disaggregates revenue from contracts with customers by nature of services, industry verticals and geography.

a. Digital payment services

Revenue from Digital payment services is recognized as and when the performance obligation, as defined in Ind AS 115 -
‘Revenue from Contracts with Customners’, is complete. Revenue is recognized net of Goods and Service tax.

Revenue from software development and support service, transaction fees, commission income and contractual fees and
charges are recognized as & when services are rendered by the Group.
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b. Digital financial services
(i} Information Technology services

Revenue related (o fixed price services contracts in relation to loan servicing services where the Group is standing ready to
provide services is recognized over a period of time and revenue is straight lined over the period of performance.

{iD) Service fee income

Service fee income in relation to sourcing and origination are recognized at the point in time when the group satisfies the
performance obligation i.e. booking of lean by the Customer.

Revenues from support service, contractual fees and charges are recognized as and when services are provided by the Group.

(iti) Interest income on loan

interest income revenue is 6ecognized using the effective interest rate method applied to the gross carrying amount of financial
assets other than credit-impaired assets and financial assets classified as measured at FVTPL, taking into account the expected
timing and amount of cash flows.

(iv)  Commission income

Commissions are recognized when the group satisfies the performance obligation, at fair value of the consideration received
or receivable based on a five-step model as set out in Ind AS 115, unless included in the effective interest calculation.

(v} Fee Income

Fee income {delayed payment and other charges) levied on customers for delay in repayments/ nonpayment of confractual
cashflow, foreclosure and other charges as per agreement are recognized on realization basis.

{vi} Income from direct assignment

Gains arising out of direct assignment transactions comprise the difference between the interest on the loan portfolio and the
applicable rate at which the direct assignment is entered into with the assignee, also known as the right of excess interest spread
(EIS). The future EIS basis the scheduled cash flows on execution of the transaction, discounted at the applicable rate entered
into with the assignee is recorded upfront in the consolidated statement of profit and loss.

(vii} Support services and referral incoe

Support services income comprises of contractual fees and charges. Revenue is recognized when services are rendered.

Referral fees is received by the Group from the partner bank for referring the customers for availing its services. The Group
recognize the fees when the services are provided by the Group.

(viit) Co-branding fee

Co-branding fees is received by the Group from the partner bank for issuance of the Co branded cards. The Group recognize
the fees when the control in services have been transferred by the Group i.e. as and when services have been provided by the
Group.

(ix) Inter-change revenue

Inter-change revenue comprises the income earned by the Group on the transactions done by the customers through Lazycard.
The Group recognize revenue as and when services are provided by the Group.

II. Other operating revenue

adperthe terms of the agreement.
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I11. Other income

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and
the amount of income can be messured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying amount on initial recogniticn.

Other incomes are recognized ot accrual basis, except when there is uncertainty of collection.
V. Contract assets and labilities

Contract asset

Contract assets are recognized when there is excess of revenue earned over billings on coniracts. Contract assets are classified
as unbilled revenue (only act of invoicing is pending) when there is unconditional right to receive cash, and only passage of
time is required, as per contractual terms.

Customer acquisition cost

Customer acquisition cost paid for every successful disbursement of loan application are incremental cost to obtain a contract
and are capitalized and is subsequently amortised over the average customer life.

Contract liability
Contract liability (unearned and deferred revenue) is recognized when there is billings in excess of revenues.

Advance from customer is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group has received
consideration from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Group transfers goods or services to the customer,
a contract liability is recognised when the payment is received.

Advance from customer and deferred revenue are recognised as revenue when the Group fuifils its performance obligations
under the contract {i.., transfers control of the related goods or render services to the customer).

2.7 Property, plant and equipment (“PPE™}

All items of PPE are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subscquent costs ane included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separale asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that fature economic benefits associated with the flem will flow to the group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognized when replaced. All other
repaies and maintenance are charged to consolidated statement of profit and loss during the reporting period in which they are
incurred.

The cost of assets in construction phase which not ready to use before reporting date are disclosed under ‘Capital work in
progress’. These assets are carried at cost less impairment if any and are pot depreciated. Deprecistion commences once the
assets are available for use as intended by management. When significant parts of property, ptant and equipment are required
o be replaced at intervals, the group recognizes such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them
accordingly. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the consolidated statement of profit and loss during the reporting
period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation methods, estimated nseful lives and residual value

Depreciation is caleulated using the straight-line method {except for Enstape whose deprecialion has been calculated using
written down value methad tll the FY 2022) to allocate the cost of the assets, net of their residual values, over their estimated

usefial lives as follows:
&)
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—._group are recognised as intangible assets where the following criteria are met:

Particulars Useful life as per Useful life as per
schedule I of management
Companies Act estimate
Furniture and fixtures I 10 years . 5to 10 years
Office equipment 5 years : 3 to 3 vears
Computers, data processing units and communication 3 years 3 years
Eouipmeni § |
Servers 6 years 6 years
Vehicles 8 Years 8 vears

Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter of their useful life or the lease term, unless the entity expects to use
the assets beyond the lease term.

The useful lives have been determined based on lives specified in Part “C” of Schedule Il of the Companies Act 2013 except
for furniture and fixtures and office equipment which are depreciated based on the internal assessment of the management, in
order to reflect the actual usage of the assets.

Individual assets costing less than INR 5,000 are depreciated in full in the year of purchase.
The asset's residual vatues, useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed and adjusted prospectively if appropriate.

An asset’s carrying value is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying value is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount,

De-recognition
An item of PPE is derecognized on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use. Gains and losses

arising from disposal of an item of PPE are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and are recognized in the consolidated statement of profit and loss.

2.8 Intangible assets

Goodwill

Goodwill on acquisitions of business is included in intangible assets. Goodwill is not amortised but it is tested for impairment
annually, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that it might be impaired, and is carried at cost less

accumulated impairment losses. Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of goodwill relating
to the entify sold.

Goodwill is allocated 1o cash-generating units for the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is made 10 those cash-
gencrating units of groups of cash-generating units that are ex pected to benefit from the business combination m which the
goodwill arose. The units or groups of units are identified at the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for internal
managerment purposes, which in our case are the operating segments,

Internally generated intangible assets

Research and development cost

internally generated intangibles, excluding capitaiized development cost, are not capitalized and the related expenditure is

reflected in consolidated staternent of Profit and Loss in the pericd in which the expenditure is incurred. Cost comprises the
purchase price and any attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use.

Capitalized development cost

Development costs that are directly attributable to the design and testing of identifiable and unique assets contrelled by the

Py
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= it is technically feasible to complete the asset so that it will be available for use
" management intends to complete the asset and use or sell it
] there is an ability to use or sell the asset
. it can be demonstrated how the asset will generate probable future economic benefits
u adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or sell the asset are
available, and
L] the expenditure attributable to the asset during its development can be reliably measured.

Directly attributable costs that are capitalized as part of the asset include employee costs and an appropriate portion of relevant
overheads.

Following initial recognition of the development expenditune as an asset, the asset is carried at cost less any accumulated
amortization and sceumulated impairment losses. Amaoriisation of the asset begins when development is complete, and the asset
is available for use. It is amortised over the period of expected future benefit. During the period of development, the asset is
tested for impairment annually.

Research expenditure and development expenditure that do not meet the criteria given above are recognised as an expense as
incurred. Development costs previously recognised as an expense are not recognised as an asset in a subsequent period.

Other intangible assets

Intangible assets with finite useful lives are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and secumulated impairment losses.
The cost of an intangible asset comprises its purchase price, including any import duties and other taxes (other than those
subsequently recoverable from the taxing authorities) and any directly attributable expenditure on making ‘the asset ready for
itz intended use and net of any trade discounts and rebates.

Subsequent expenditure on an intangible asset after its purchase/completion is recognized as an expense when incurred unless
it is probable that such expenditure will enable the asset to generate future economic henefits in excess of ils originally assessed
standards of perfoemance and such expenditure can be measured and attributed to the asset reliably, in which case such
expenditure is added to the cost of the asset.

Amortization is recognized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives except for Enstage whose amortization has
been calculated using written down value method till the FY 2022. The estimated useful life and amortization method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective
basis.

Amortisation method and period
The group amortises intangible assets with a finite usefusd Jife based on management internal assessment, using the straight-line

method {except for Enstage” which is recognizing depreciation on written down value till FY 2021-22), over the following
periods:

. Name of Intangible Useful Life
Compuber software & software d-:'-'-ulaprne:nl_cost 3 to 5 vears
Trademark & technology 10 years
| Customer relationship 12 years
Eustomer contracts 10 years

De-recognition

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains
or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
Ahe carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss the asset is
derecognised,
s 4D
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2.9 Impairment
Impairment of non-finaneial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its non-financial assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indicatson exists, the recoverable amount
of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impalrment loss {if any). When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating uni to which the
asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are aiso allocated to
individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less cosis of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have pod been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an assel (or cash-generating unit) is estimated 1o be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset {(or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recowerable amount. An impatrment loss is recognized
immediately in profit or loss.

Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at
the end of each reporting period. The reversal of such an impairment loss is recognized in “Other (losses)/gains— net” in the
consolidated statement of profit and loss.

2.10 Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise 10 a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument
of another entity.

Financial assets
Initial recognifion and measurement

The Group recognizes a financial asset in its consolidated balance sheet when it becomes party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. All financial assets are recognized initinlly al fair value, plus in the case of financial assets not recorded at faie
value through profit or loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

Where the fair value of a financial asset at initial recognition is different from its transaction price, the difference between the
fair value and the transaction price is recognized as a gain or loss in the consolidated statement of profit and loss at initial
recognition if the fair value is determined through a quoted market price in an active market for an identical asset (i.e., level |
input) or through a vatuation technique that uses data from ohservable markefs (i.e., level 2 input).

In casé the fair value is not determined using a leved | or leved 2 input as mentioned above, the difference between the fair value
and transaction price is deferned appropriately and recognized as a gain or loss in the consolidated statement of profil and loss
only ta the extent that such gain or koss arises due to a change in facior that market participants take into secount when pricing
the financial asset. However, trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component are measured at transaction

price.
Business model assessment

The Group makes an assessment of the objective of a business model i which an asset is held such that it best reflects the way
the business is managed and is consistent with the information provided to management The information considered includes:

a. the objectives for the portfolio, in particular, management's stratagy of focusing on eaming contractual inferest revenue,
maintaining a particutar interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the duration of the liabilities
that are funding those assets or realizing cash flows through die sale of the assets;

the frequency, volume and timing of sales in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and its expectations about future sales
verall assessment of

hxﬁld‘Hu-.-.- the Group’s stated objective for managing the financial assets is achieved and how cashefipa pl il ized
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c. the risks that affect the performance of the business model, the financial assets held within that business model and how
those risks are managed.

Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest

For the purposes of this assessment, *principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial recognition. ‘Interest’
is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding
during a particular period of time and for other basic lending risks and costs, as well as profit margin. In assessing whether the
contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Group considers the contractual terms of the instrument.
This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of
contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making the assessment, the Group considers:

reset terms

contingent events that would change the amount and liming of cash flows;

prepayment and extension terms; and

features that modify consideration of the time value of money — e.g. periodical reset of interest rates

e o

Subsequent measurement

For subsequent measurement, the Group classifies a financial asset in accordance with (i) the Group’s business model for
managing the financial asset; and (ii) the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset. Accordingly, the Group
classifies its financial assets into the following categories:

a. Financial assets measured at amortised cost
A financial asset is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

(i} the Group’s business model objective for managing the financial asset is to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows, and

(i) the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

This category applies to cash and bank balances, trade receivables, loans and other financial assets of the Group including
the loans which are sold by the entities engaged in credit business through divect assignment to third parties. Such financial
assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset (or group of financial assets)
and of allocating the interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, 2
shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financial asset. When caleulating the effective interest rate, an entity shall
estimate cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, foreclosure,
call and similar options) but shall not consider future credit losses. The calculation includes all fees paid or received
between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs, and all other premiums
or discounts.

The amortised cost of a financial asset is also adjusted for loss ailowance, if any.
b. Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
A financial asset is measured at FVTOCI if both of the following conditions are met:

(i} The Group’s business model objective for managing the financial asset is achieved both by collecting contractual cash
flows and selling the financial assets, and

(it) The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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Such financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value at each reporting date. Fair value changes are recognized in
the Other Comprehensive Income (OCI). However, the Group recognizes interest income and impairment losses and its
reversals in the consolidated statement of profit and loss.

On Derecognition of such financial assets, cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OCI is reclassified from equity
to the consolidated statement of profit and loss.

¢. Financial assets measured at Fair value through profit and loss (FYTPL)
A financial asset is measured at FVTPL unless it is measured at amortised cost or at FVTOCI as explained above.

Such financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value at each reporting date. Fair value changes are recognized in
the consolidated statement of profit and loss.

Other Equity Investments

All other equity investments are measured at fair value, with value changes recognised in Consolidated Statement of Profit and
Loss, except for those equity investments for which the Group has elected to present the value changes in ‘Other Coraprehensive
Income’. However, dividend on such equity investments is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss when the Company’s
right to receive payment is established.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognized
from the consolidated balance sheet when any of the foltowing oceurs:

{i) The contractual rights to cash flows from the financial asset expires;

(if) The Group transfers its contractual rights to receive cash flows of the financial asset and has substantially transferred all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset;

(i) The Group retains the contractual rights to receive cash flows but assumes a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows
without material delay to one or more recipients under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement {thereby substantially transferring ail
the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset);

The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset ot has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash
flows in full without material lay to a third party under a *pass-through’ arrangement; and either

a. the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or

b. the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control
of the asset. When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass- through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership.

Int cases where Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the financial asset, but
retains control of the financial asset, the Group continues to recognize such financial asset to the extent of its continuing
involvement in the financial asset. In that case, the Group also recognizes an associated liability. The financial asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount and the consideration received is recognized
in the conselidated statement of profit and loss.

Impairment of financial assets:

The Group applies expected credit losses (“ECL”) model for measurement and recognition of loss allowance on its trade
receivables, loans, other financial assets measured at amortised cost (other than trade receivables) and financial assets measured
mg;ur value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI).
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@,  Trade recelvirilies

In case of trade receivables, the Group follows a simplified approach wherein an amount equal to lifetime ECL is measured
and recognized as loss allowance. In case of other assets mentioned above, the Giroup deiermines if there bas been 2
significant increase in credit risk of the financial asset since initial recognition. If the credit risk of such assets has not
increased significantly, an amount equal to 12-month ECL is measured and recognized as loss allowance. However, if
credit risk has increased significantly, an amount equat to lifetime ECL is measured and recognized as loss allowance.

Subsequently, if the credit quality of the finencial asset improves such that there is mo longer a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, the Group reverts to recognizing impairment Joss allowance based on 12-menth ECL.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the entity expects to receive {i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original effective interest rate.
Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial
asset. 12-month ECL are a portion of the lifetime ECL which result from default events that are possitle within 12 months
from the reporting date.

ECL are measured in a manner that they reflect unbiased and probability weighted amounts determined by a range of
outcomes, taking into account the time value of money and other reasonable information available as a result of past events,
cusrent conditions and forecasts of future economie conditions. As o practical expediend, the Group uses a provision matrix
1o measure lifelime ECL on its portfolio of trade receivables. The provision matrix is prepared based on histarically
observed default rates over the expected life of trade receivables and is adjusted for forward looking estimates. At each
reporting date, the historically observed default rates and changes in the forward-looking estimates are updated. ECL
impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/ expense in the consolidated
statement of profit and loss under the head *Other expenses’.

b. Loagn assetls

The Group follows a ‘three-stage” model for impairment based on changes in credit quality since initial recognition as
summarized below:

» Stage 1 includes [oan assets that have not had a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition or that have Jow
credit risk at the reporting date.

» Stage 2 includes loan assets that have had a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition but that do not have
objective evidence of impairment.

= Stage 3 includes loan assets that have objective evidence of impairment at the reporting date.

The Expected Credit Loss (ECL) is measured at 12-month ECL for Stage 1 loan assets and lifetime ECL for Stage 2 and Stage
3 toan assets. ECL is the product of the Probability of Default, Exposure at Default and Loss Given Default, defined as follows:

Probability of Default (PD) — The PD represents the likelihood of a borrower defaulting on i1s financial obligation, either over
the next 12 months (12 months PD), or over the remaining lifetime (Lifetime PD) of the obligation.

Loss Given Defauit (LGD) — LGD represents the Group’s expectation of the extent of ioss on a defaulted exposure. LGD
varies by type of counterparty, type, and preference of claim and availability of collateral or other credit support.

Exposure at Default (EAD) — EAL is based on the amount of outstanding exposure as on the assessment date on which ECL
is computed including undisbursed amounts in respect of Letiers of Comfort.

Forward-looking economic information is included in determining the 12-montk and lifetime PD, EAD and LGD. The
assumptions underlying the expected credit loss are monitored and reviewed on an ongeing basis.

Group writes off personal loans when the dues from such loans are outstanding for more than 180 days and consumer receivables
are written off when the dues from such loans are outstanding for more than 90 days. While the amounts are written off, the
_Group does not relinquish its rights to the sums due and continues its collections efforts, inciuding, but not limited to appropriate

1| JFecourse under various provisions of the law. If the amount 1o be written off is greater than the accumulated loss allowance, the

o ilference is first treated as an addition to the allowance that is then applied against the gross carry ing.fmos v subsequent
iy H : : : ppaed ag g ¥ ing _
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assets that are written off may be subject to enforcement activities to comply with the Group’s procedures for recovery of
amounts due.

Financial Habilities and equity instruments
Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement:

The Group recognizes a financial liability in its consolidated balance sheet when it becomes party io the
contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial liabilities are classified. at initial recognition, &5 financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrawings, payables, or as derivatives designated as
hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables,
net of directly atfributable fransaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank
overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts and derivative financial instruments.

Where the fair value of a financial liability at initia} recognition is different from its transaction price, the difference between
the fair value and the transaction price is recognized as a gain or loss in the Consolidated statement of profit and loss at initial
recognition if the fair value is determined through a quoted market price in an active market for an identical asset (i.e., level 1
input) or through a valuation technique that uses data from chservable markets {i.e., level 2 input).

In case the fair value is net determined using a bevel 1 or level 2 input as mentioned above, the difference between the fuir value
and transaction price is deferred appropriastely and recognized as a gain or loss in the Consolidated statement of profit and loss
only o the extent that zuch gain or loss arises due 1o a change in fsctor that market participants take into account when pricing
the financial liability.

Subsequent measurement:

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial liabilities are classified in two categories:

» Financial Habilities at fair value through profit or loss

+ Financial liabilities at amortised cost {loans and borrowings)

Financial linbilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabitities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initinl recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for wrading

if they are incurred for the puspose of repurchasing in the near term. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (Loans and borrowings}

This is the category most relevant to the Group. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in consolidated statement of profit and loss
when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

The cumulative amortisation using the effective interest method of the difference between the initial recognition amount and
the maturity ammount is added to the initial recognition value (net of principal repayments, if any) of the financial liability over
the relevant period of the financial liability to arrive at the amortised cost at each reporting date. The corresponding effect of
the amortisation under effective interest method is recognized as interest expense over the relevant period of the financial
liability and is included under finance cost in the conselidated statement of profit and loss.

’ —Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
e il Fﬂf‘j."iag'the EIR. The EIR amortisation is mcluded as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.
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Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those contracts that require 2 payment fo be made to reimburse the holder
far @ boss it incurs because the specified debtor fails 1o make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debl
imstrument. Financial guarantee coniracts are recognised initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transsciion costs that
are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsoquently, the lizbility is measured at the higher of the amount of
loss allowance determined as per impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount recognised less, when appropriate,
the cumulative amount of income recognised in accordance with the principles of Ind AS 115.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expired. When an
existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original
linhility and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the
consolidated statement of profit and loss.

2.11 Fair value

The Group measures financial instruments at fair value in accordance with the sccounting policies mentioned above. Fair value
is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid o tramsfer a liahility in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumpiion that the transsction to sell the
asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

(2} In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
(b) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is mcasured or disclosed in the consolidated financial statements are categorized
within the fair value hierarchy that categorizes into three levels, described as follows, the inputs to valuation techniques used
to measure value. The fair value hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities (Level 1 inputs) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs {Level 3 inputs).

Level | — quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2 — inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
or indirectly; and

Level 3 — inputs that are unobservable for the asset or liability.

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the
fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that
is significant to the entire measurement.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the consolidated financial statements at fair value ona recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization at the end of each
reporting period with relevant disclosures.

2.12 Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reparied in the consolidated balance sheet if there is a
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is &n intention to seitle on 4 net basis or to realize
the assets and settle the liabilities simulianeously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and
must be enforceable in the normai course of business and in the event of default, msolvency or bankruptey of the Group or the
counterparty.

2.13 Cash and cash equivalents

e —_

e .- 1l h}qahu. purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand
wiher shori-term deposits including highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or |
{f= et Omdeible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
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Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current lisbilities in the consolidated balance sheet.

2.14 Restricted cash

The Group’s restricted cash mainly represents amounts received from customer and payable to merchants held in escrow bank
account.

Cash that is restricted as to withdrawal for use is reported separately under other assets, and is not included in the total cash and
cash equivalents in the statements of cash flows and cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated balance sheet.

2.15 Provisions and contingencies

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probabie
that an outflow of resources will be required to seitle the obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to seftle the present obligation at the
end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the cbligation. When a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash
flows (when the effect of the time value of money is materfal). When some or ali of the economic benefits required to settle a
provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, a receivable is recognized as an asset if it is virtually certain that
reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

A disclosure for contingent liability is made when there is a possible cbligation or present obligation that may, but possibly will
not, require an outflow of resources. Where there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of which the
likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

Contingent assets are neither recognized nor disclosed in the consolidated financial statements. However, contingent assets ar¢
assessed continually and if it is virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits will arise, the asset and related income are
recognized in the period in which the change occurs.

2.16 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manmer consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision
maker.

The chief operating decision maker, who is responsibie for atlocating resources and assessing performance of the operating

segments, has been identified as the PayU India Executive committee (comprising of CEOQ and CFO) whe make strategic
decisions. See note 42 for segment information presented.

The reportable segments of the Group comprise of the following:

L Digital Payment:
a. Business of payment gateway services for e-commerce transactions, predominantly in India
b. Risk-based authentication and payment security related services

I1. Digital Financing:
a. Business of lending credit by way of personal loan and short term deferred credit facility
b. Lending related technology services to the third party customers
¢. Lending through Buy now pay later (BNPL} services

Geographical segments are categorized as ‘India’ and ‘Outside India’ and are based on the domicile of the customers.

" 'i{{'ﬂ'ﬂh] reviews results of subsidiaries of the Group on consolidated basts and considering the nature of busimesFapeggtions and

pedizaphical location.
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2.17 Employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be seitled wholly within 12 months after
the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are recognized in respect of employees’ services up to
the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities
are presented as current employee benefit obligations in the consolidated balance sheet.

Other employee bepefits
Compensated absences

The employees of the Group are entitled to compensated absence. The employees can carry forward a portion of the unutilized
acerued ahsence and utilize it in future periods or receive cash compensation af retirement or termination of employment for
unutilized acerued compensated absence.

The group also has liabilithes for earncd leave that are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the
peried in which the employees render the related service. These are, therefore, measured as the present value of expected future
payments 1o be made in respect of services provided by employees up 1o the end of the reporiing period based on actuarial
valuation using the projected unit credit method. The benefits are discounted using the appropriate market yields at the end of
the reporting period that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation. Remeasurements as a result of
experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognized in the consolidated statement of profit and loss.

The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet if the entity does not have an unconditional right to defer
seftlement for at least twelve months after the reporting period, regardless of when the actual settlement is expected to occur.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated by the group before the normal retirernent date, or when an
employvee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits. The group recognises termisation benefits at the earlier
of the following dates:

(2) when the group can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits; and

(b} when the entity recognises costs for a restructuring that is within the scope of Ind AS 37 and involves the payment of
terminations benefits, In the case of an offer made 1o encourage voluntary redundancy, the termination benefits are measured
based on the number of employees expected to accept the offer. Benefits falling due more than |2 months afler the end of the
reporting period are discounted to present value.

Car lease allowance

The Group enters into an agreement with a lessor to provide vehicles for use. As per this arrangement, the Group pays lease
instaliments to the lessor. The car lease expense payable by the group companies is shown as employee benefit expense {net of
payments recovered from employees} in the consolidated statement of profit and loss.

Post employment benefits
Defined contribution plans (Provident Fundj

The Group pays provident fund contributions fo the Regional Provident Fund Commissioner a5 per Employees” Provident
Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952. The Girowp has no further payment obligations once the contributions have
been paid. The contributions are accounted for as defined contribution plans and the contributions are recognised as employes
benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset Lo the extent that a cash refund or a reduction
in the future payments is available.
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Defined benefit plans (Gratuity)

The Hability or asset recognized in the consolidated balance sheet in respoct of defined benefit gratuity plans is the present
value of the defined benefit obligation a1 the end of the reporting period bess the fair valoe of plan assets, The defined benefin
abligation is calculsted annually by actuaries using the projected unit credit method. Contributions in respect of gratuity is made
to o fund adminisiered by the Life Insurance Corporation of India.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determ ined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference
to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bomds that have terms approximating to the terms of the
related obligation. The estimated future payments are discounted using market yields determined by reference to high-quality
corporate bonds.

The net interest cost is caleulated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the fair
value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in the consclidated statement of profit and loss.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognized in
the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income. They are included in retained earnings in the statement
of changes in equily and in the consolidated balance sheel.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation vesulting from plan amendments or curtailments are recognized
immediately in profit or loss as past service cost.

2.18 Share-based payments

The ultimate holding company of the Group operates share option schemes {SAR and RSU) under certain equity compensation
plans, for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards i eligible participants of the Group companies. Employees of the
group companics receive remuncration in the form of share-based payments, wherchy employees render services as
consideration either for equity instruments (“equity settled transactions™) or cash equivalent of the equity instrument (“cash
settled transactions™). These share based payment plans are accounted for in the consolidated financial statements of the group
companies in accordance with the “Ind AS 102 Accounting for Share-based Payments’”.

Employee restricted stock units ("RSUs") - Equity settled

Under the equity settled share based payment, the fair value on the grant date of the awards given to employees is recognized
as ‘employee benefit expenses’ with a cormesponding increase in equity over the vesting period net of advances paid by the
group companies for such RSU'S. At the end of each reporting period, apart from the non=market vesting condition, the expense
s reviewed and adjusted to reflect changes 1o the level of options expecied 1o vest. When the options are exercised, ihe
employees receives the shares of the Holding Company which are purchased by trust from market by utilizing the advance
received from the group.

Stock appreciation rights (“SARs”) - Cash settled

For cash-settled share-based payments, the fair value of the amount payable to employees is recognized as "employee benefit
expenses” with a comesponding increase in liabilities, over the period of non-market vesting conditions geiting fulfilled. The
liability ks remeasured at each reporting period up to, and including the seitlement date, with changes in fair value recognized
in employee benefits expenses.

2,19 Leases

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present
value of the following lease payments:

=  fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable
® variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate, imitially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date
= amounts expected to be payable by the group under residual value guarantees
= the exercise price of a purchase option if the group is reasonably certain to exercise that option, and
——a_payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the group exercising that option.
ol
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Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension options are also included In the measurement of the liahility,
The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannol be readily determined, which
is generally the case for leases in the group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the individual
lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in: a simiiar
economic environment with similar terms, security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the group:

» where possible, uses recent third-party financing received by the individual jessee as a starting point, adjusted to reflect

changes in financing conditions since third party financing was received
» uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held by the Group, which

does not have recent third party financing
» makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term, country, currency and security.

If a readily ohservable amortising foan rate is available to the individual lessee (through recent financing or market data) which
has a similar payment profile to the lease, then the group entities use that rate as a starting point to determine the incremental
borrowing rate.

Lease payments arc allocated between principal and finance cost. The finarce cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease
period s0 as to produce a constant periadic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the lability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the foliowing:

= the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability

. any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received
il any initial direct costs

u restoration costs.

The right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the asset's useful life and the lease term on a straight-line
method basis 1T the group is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is depreciated over the
underlving asset’s uscful life. Payments associated with short-term leases of equipment and all leases of lowsvalue assets are
recognised on a straight-ling basis as an expense in profit or foss.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group has elected not to recognize right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases for office premises that
have a lease term of less than 12 months. It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases of office
equipment that are considered to be low value. The lease payments associated with these [eases is recognized as an expense on
a straight-line basis over the lease term.

2.20 Income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable income based on the applicable
income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary

differences and to unused tax losses.

Current fax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period in the countries where the Group operate and generate taxable income. Manngement periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect 1o siuations in which applicable tax regulation s subject te interpretation and
considers whether it is probable that a taxation authority will sccept an uncertain tax ncatment. The group measures s tax
balances either based on the most likely amount or the expected value, depending on which method provides a betber prediction
of the resolution of the uncertainty.
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Deferred tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements, However, deferred tax liabilities are
nol recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of goadwill Deferred income l=x is also not accounted for i L arises
from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a fransaction other than a business eombination that at the time of the tanscion
affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss). Defierred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that
have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred
incomme tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is setiled

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and unabsorbed depreciation
allowance only if it is probahle that future taxable amaunts wili be available to utilize those temporary differences and losses.

The carrving amount of deferred tax assels s reviewed at esch reporting date and reduced 1o the extent that it is no bonger
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available 1o allow all or part of the deferred tax asset o be utilized, Unrecognized
deferred tax assets are re-assessed ot each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that luture
taxable profits will aliow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities are not recognised for temporary differences between the carrying amount and tax bases of investments
in subsidiaries, branches and associates and intorest in joint arrangements where the group is able to control the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are not recognised for temporary differences between the carrying amount and tax bases of investments in
subsidiaries, branches and associates and interest in joint armangements where it is not probable that the d ifferences will reverse
in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will not be available against which the temporary difference can be utilised.

Deferred tax aseets and liabilities are ofTset only 1 there is a legally enforceable right o offset current fax assets and linbilities
and where the deferned tax balances relate 1o the same taxation authority, Curnent 1ax assets and tax linbilitics are offsel where
the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to seftle on a net basis, or 1o realise the asset and seude the
liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognized in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items necognized in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly

in equity, respectively.
2.21 Earnings per share (EPS)
Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit/losses attributable to the equity shareholders of the Group by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year.

Diluted earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic eamings per share to take into account:
= the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential equity shares

= the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming the conversion of ail
dilutive potential equity shares.

Potential equity shares are deemed to be dilutive only if their conversion to equity shares would decrease the net profit per share
from continuing ordinary operations. Potential dilutive equity shares are deemed to be converied as at the beginning of the
period, unless they have been issued at a later date. The dilutive potential equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable
had the shares been actually issued at fair value (i.c., average market value of the outstanding shares). Dilutive potential equity
shares are determined independently for each period presented. The number of equity shares and potentially dilutive equity
shares are adjusted for employee share options against the share capital of the Group and bonus shares, iLang. as appropriate.

{}f-._._._ k1N g 'Eh't-qpn-tn:al costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity
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2.22 Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds {net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in profit
or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees peid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised a5 transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is prohable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In
this case, the fee is defesred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probakbie that some or all of
the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over the period of the
facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are remaved fram the balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of o financial liability that has been extinguished or transferred 1o anather party and
the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities pssumed, is recognised in profit or loss as other
gains/{losses).

Where the terms of a financial lability are renegatiated and the entity issues equity instruments to a creditor to extinguish all or
part of the liahility (debt for equity swap), a gain or koss is recognised in profit or loss, which is measured as the difference
between the carrying amount of the financial lability and the fair value of the equity instruments issued.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities uniess the group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for
at least 12 months after the reporting period. Where there is a breach of a material provision of a long-term: loan arrangement on
or before the end of the reporting pericd with the effect that the liability becomes payable on demand on the reporting date, the
entity does not classify the liability as current, if the lender agreed, after the reporting period and before the approval of the
financial statements for issue, not to demand payment as a cousequence of the breach.

2.23%  Cash flow statements

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit/(loss) before tax is adjusted for the effects of transacticns of
a non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating,
investing and financing activities of the Group are segregated based on the available information,

2.24 Critical estimates and judgements

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial statements requires the management to make judgemenis, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclodures,
and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.

This rote provides an overview of the areas that invalved a higher degree of judgement or complexity, and of ilems which are
more likely 1o be materially adjusted due 1o estimates and assumptions turning out to be di (ferent than those originally assessed
Detailed information sbout each of these estimates and judgements is included in relevant notes together with information about
the basis of calculation for each affected line item in the consolidated financial statements.

The areas involving critical estimates or judgements are:
a. Impairment of financial asset

The measurement of impairment losses across all categories of financial assets requires judgement, in particular, the
estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows and collateral values when determining impairment losses and
the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk. These estimates are driven by a number of factors, changes in which
can result in different levels of allowances. Refer Note 2.12

b. Impairment of non-firancizl assets: Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit
exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The fair
value less costs of disposal calculation is based on available data from binding sales transactions, conducted at arm’s length,
for similar assets or observable market prices less incrementai costs for disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation
s based on a DCF model. The cash flows are derived from the budget for the next five years and do not include restructuring
activities that the Group is not yet committed to or significant future investments that will enhance the asset’s performance

—of the CGU being tested. The recoverable amount is sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF model as well as the

g't‘pyfbud future cash-inflows and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes. These estimates asl relevant to

“goadiyill and other intangibles with indefinite useful lives recognised by the Group. The key assu
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the recoverable amount for the different CGUs, including a sensitivity analysis, are disclosed and further explained in Note
2.11.

Determining the lease term of contracts with remewal and termination options - Group as lessee: The Group
determincs the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periads covered by an option to exiend
the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is
reasonably certain not to be exercised.

The Group has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The Group applies judgement in
evaluating whether it is reasonably certain whether or not to exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease. That is, it
considers all relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or termination. After
the commencement date, the Group reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or change in circumstances that
is within its control and affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the option to renew or to terminate {e.g., construction
of significant leasehold improvements or significant customization to the leased asset}.

The Group included the renewal period as part of the lease term only when they are reasonably certain not to be exercised.

Share-based payments: The Group initially measures the cost of cash-settled transactions with employees using a
binomial model to determine the fair value of the liability incurred. Estimating fair value for share-based payment
transactions requires determination of the most appropriate valuation model, which is dependent on the terms and
conditions of the grant. This estimate also requires determination of the most appropriate inputs to the valuation model
including the expected life of the share option, volatility and dividend yield and making assumptions about them. For cash-
settled share-based payment transactions, the liability needs to be remeasured at the end of each reporting period up fo the
date of settlement, with any changes in fair value recognised in the profit or loss. This requires a reassessment of the
estimates used at 1he end of each reporting period. For the measurement of the fair value of equity-settied transactions with
employees at the grant date, the Group uses a binomial model. The assumptions and models used for estimating fair value
for share-based payment transactions are disclosed in Note 2.20.

Deferred tax: Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required to determine the
amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits
together with future tax planning strategies.

Defined benefit plans (gratuity bexefits): The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity
obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making varsous assu mipicns that may
diffier from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate; fature salary increases
and mortality rates. Due 1o the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation
is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate, the management
considers the market yield on government bonds that have tenms approximating to the terms of related obligation,

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables. Those mortality tables tend to change only at interval in
response to demographic changes. Future salary increases and gratuity increases are based on expected future inflation
rates. Further details about gratuity obligations are given in Note 37,

Fair value measurement of financial instruments: When the fair vaiues of financial assets and financial liabilities
recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured
using valuation lechniques including the DCF model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where
possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgemenis include
considerations of inputs such as ligquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these faciors could
affect the reported fair value of financial instruments. See Note 2.12 and 43 for further disclosure

Intangible asset under development: The Group capitalizes intangible asset under development for a project in

accordance with the accounting policy. Initial capitalisation of costs is based on management’s judgement that

technological and economic feasibility is confirmed, usually when a product development project has reached a defined

milestone according to an established project management model. In determining the amounts to be capitalised,

management makes assumptions regarding the expected future cash generation of the project, discount rates to be applied

and the expected period of benefits.
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PayU Payments Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024.

Amounts in INR millions unless stated otherwise
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==pegfil is available; and a deferred tax liability should also be recognised for all deductible and taxabi

n ._1:!1.@3:9._[1-.u.:| with leases and decommissioning obligations.
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i, Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate: The Group cannot readily determine the intercst rate implicit in the
lease. therefare, it uses its incremental borrowing rate (IBR) 10 measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest thal
the Group woild have 1o pay 10 bormosw over a similar term, and with @ similar security, the funds necessary Lo obtain an
assel of a similar value to the right-of-use assel in a similar economic environment. The 1BR therelore reflects what the
Group ‘would have to pay’, which requires estimation when no observabie rates are available (such as for subsidiaries that
do not enter into financing transactions) or when they need to be adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of the lease
{for example, when leases are not in the subsidiary’s functional CUFYERCY).

The Group estimates the IBR using observable inputs (such as market interest rates) when available.

jo  Useful life of intangible assets: The group has intangible assets which includes trademark, customer relationships,

software, brand name and title rights and customer relationship. The group estimates the useful life of s intangible asscts
based on the expected technical obsolescence of such assets, However, the actual useful life may be shorier or longer than
expected by management, depending on technical innovatiens and competitor actions.

k. Useful life of property, plant and equipment: The group has fumniture fixtures and office equipment as property plant
and equipment. The useful lives of these items of PPE have been determined based on technical evaluation done by the
management’s expert which are higher than those specified by Schedule II 1o the Companies Act, 2013, in order to reflect
the actual usage of the assets. The asset’s residual values, useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted at each financial year-
end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

. ldentification of performance obligation in revenue from contract with customers: The Group exercises judgement

in identification of performance obligations in a contract. The Group’s coniracts with customers eould include promises o
transfer multiple products and services to a customer. The Group assesses the products / services promised in a conlrac
and identifies distinct performance obligations in the contract. Identification of distinet performance obligation involves
judgement to determine the deliverables and the abilify of the customer to benefit independently from such deliverables.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated by the management. They are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on the Group. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in future periods which are affected.

New and amended standards adopted by the group.

a) The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has vide notification dated March 31, 2023 notified Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023 {the ‘Rules’) which amends certain accounting standards, and are effective 1 April 2023
as below:

lod AS 1 — Presentation of financial statements: The amendments aim to help entities provide accounting policy disclosures
that are more useful by replacing the requirement for entities to disclose their “significant” accounting policies with a
requirement to disclose their ‘material’ accounting pelicies and adding guidance on how entities apply the concept of
materiality in making decisions about accounting policy disclosures.

The Group has revisited their accounting policy information disclosures and ensured consistency with the amended
requirements.

Ind AS 8 - Accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates and errors: The amendments clarify the distinction
between changes in accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies and the correction of errors. It has also been
clarified how entities use measurement techniques and inputs to develop accounting estimates.

The Group does not have any significant impact in its Consolidated Financial Statements due to this amendment.
Ind AS 12 - Income faxes:

The amendments narrow the scope of the initial recognition exception under Ind AS 12, so that it no longer applies o
transactions that give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences.

The amendment is applicable to transactions that occur on or after the beginning of the earliest comparative period presented.

In addition, at the beginning of the earliest comparalive period presented, a deferred tax asset {provided that sufficient taxable
ermporney. differences

AU



PayU Payments Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024.

Amounts in INR millions unless stated otherwise

Specifically, no changes would be necessary as a consequence of amendments made to Ind AS 12 as the group’s accounting
policy already complies with the now mandatory treatment.

b} Standards issued/notified but not yet effective.

There are no standards that are notified and not yet effective as on date.

{This space has been left blank intentionally)
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Payl) Payments Private Limited

CIN: UT2400MH2006PTC293037
Motes to Conselidated Fi ial &
Amounis in ENR millions, unless atherwise stated

3 Property, plant and equipment {at cost)

Disclosures regerding gross biock of Property, Plant and Equipment, depreciation expenses therean and net black are as given below

23 for the yesr ended March 31, 2024

Computers, dats

) Leaschold improvements Furpiture Olfice processing waits and
Particulars i . I
{huilding} and fixtures equipment compmunication
eguipment
Gross carrying value
As at April 01, 2022 7815 14.38 71.00 222.83 386.16
(includes batances of acquired entities)
Additons 990 [1%:%3 373 4289 48.35
{fi 551 [LRLT . {1.3%) LYY
As at March 3, 2623 T 15.07 7473 Ted. 1% §26.4%
Additons 834 1431 1974 79.77 12271
g L - [kl 0.48 {1.35) [T
Ad at Mlarch 31, 3054 LI 10 5.8 Skl Sl I
Accumubated depreciation
As at April 81, 2022 10.31 T 66,42 150.07 32384
Depreciation charge for the year {refer now 30} 4.4% 1.81 2.32 5.4 34.08
bt L (LB 4008y - [} (4381
As at blarch 31, 2023 L F §.54 68.74 . 353.56
Depreciation charge for the year {refer note 30) 1.89 257 539 3724 47.0%
Dispoyalu'adjmtmests : 0 03} 010 (0% (LA
s wd Blargh 31, 2024 TLE7 11.38 T4.23 T Jird .4
Net carrying value
As at March 31, 2023 1.72 524 5.9% 58.99 7293
As at March 31, 3024 2.47 1791 20.77 9%.27 146.61
Maotes:

(i) The Group does not have any capital workein-progress, hence the requisite disclosures has not been given

(1} The Group does not have any immovable properties,

for the gequusition of property, plant and eguipment

{iii} See note 40 for disclosure of contractual
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Payl Payments Private Limited

CIN: U72400MHZI06PTC293037

Notes to Consolidated Finapcis! Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
Amounts in INR millions, unfess otherwise stated

4 Right-of-use assets (at cost)

Disclosures regarding gross block of Right-of-use Assets, accumulated depreciation thereen and net block are as given below:

Description Buildings LComput Tatal
Gross carrying value
As at April 0, 2022 386,17 125.83 512.80
{includes batances of acquired entities)
Additions 491,57 6174 553.31
k {17.71} . {111
As at hharch 31, 2023 §50.03 187.57 104780
Additions 480 67 - 48(.67
iy i {37470 - Ll
Ax at bllarch 31, 1024 13141 181 1 ]
Accumulated depreciation
As at April 01, 2022 182.90 45.13 22413
{includes batances of acquived entities)
Deprecistion charge for the year {refer note 30) 29.39 63.51 152.98
HmETia LE1.%%] v [LISLTR
As at March 31, 1933 240.31 108.74 169.05
Depreciation charge for the year {refer note 30 137,79 4391 238,70
DHHM il 1-|| . ||I.H|
Msat March 51, 124 ddeed | 57,43 L]
Net carrying value
As at March 31, 2023 599.72 7843 678.55
As at March 31, 2024 8715.58 29.52 904.50
Notes:
A. The Right of use sssets represents office building, Taptop I are taken by Group on lease which is accounted in accordance with the principles of ind AS 116 "Leases’
B. The are the ts recognised io the t of profit and loss:

q For the Year ended For the year ended
Particul
articular Klmrih 31, 2024 Blareh 31, 2023

Depreciauon expense of nghisaline assets 236,70 152,56
Interest expense on lease Labilities #7117 3743
Mﬂimm“lﬂm-kﬂleaseuuhﬁdﬂmrlwl' 170.35 150.8%
Tatsl SELTD M3

* This includes the amount paid for leased line and Data centre server charges

C. The effective intevest rate for tease liabilities of the group is canging from 8.85% 1o 12% p.a. The Group has applicd a single discount raie to 2 porifolio of leases of a similar assets in simitar
econumic environment with sumilar end date

D. The Group does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilites a5 the current assels are sufficient to meet the obligations related to lease lisbilities as and when they fadl due
Refer note 44 for maturity profile

E. Extension and termination oplions are included in 2 number of property and equipment leases across the group. These are used to maximise operatonal Dexibility in terms of managing the assets
used in the group's operations. The majority of ion and termingtion options held are exercisable only by the group and not by the respecave lessor

(This space has been left blank intentionally)
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Payl Payments Private Limited

CIN: UT2400MH20T6FTC2930MT

Mates 1o Consofidated Financial 8 for the year ended March 31, 2024
Amounts in millions, unless atherwise stated

§  Diher Intangible Assets {at cost)

Bisclosuses regarding gross block of 1 ible assets, ( P h and et block ire as given below
. Softwarne Comp Trad k and < . Intangible asset
Fanitilin Develapment cost® Saftware's Technology fationshi Total ey under developmaeat
Giross carTying vatue
As at April G, 2022 - 433,72 17570 478.00 1,054.42 1514.17 1431
gincludes bal of apquired 1
Addirions iras nzat 4103 - 325 a 4003
En:g!.'.ag . L - NPT | LE] L L1-FL])
Adat L1814 17.05 FITE L 176.13 [ K 1,136.05 TALE 403
Additions - L &30 - 2.3 . [33.00
(s u - = - [l - Ll 1H|
i at Slargh 31, 2024 1105 q464.17 1R6.114 47800 114536 T514.17 -
Accemulated amortisatics
Asat Apald1, 2032 - 406,34 13532 27124 £1298 ] =
fincludes balances of scquired i
Amortisation tharge for the year (refer note 30} 1.90 2138 T.26 27388 59.42 ' -
4] i) ' 183 s £ = -
As at March 10, FIRD 190 T h 14165 9008 570,78 . =
Amorisation charge for the year {refer note 10) 568 904 878 7188 5138 - .
et it Blarsh 1, 3934 T FTeAT eI gt [oERT] = P
Met earzying vaue
As at Marck 51, 2023 15.18 A 34.08 178,88 26537 51417 10.03
As 1t March 31, 2024 247 2813 361 15100 21330 151417 n
v It rep af capitalised develop cost of ag i ily generated intangible assets.
The capitalized cosis nictude direct expenzes incurred for the develop of the “Co-Branding Card Inerfece” within the softwarsitechnology owned by the Group's affiliste entiry and hicensed 1o the group These direct
cxpenses primartly consist of costs related to cxternal consultants The Group has chosen to capitalize these costs due t the fact that the said develaped interface is the progrietary property of the group and any ceonamic bepefus
derived from it will exclusively benefit the groug
A. lotangible asset under develonment ageng schedule
Particulars Ay il g iy ‘ﬂ
Lazs than | year 1-2 Wi 2-3 mpars More than 3 years Tatal
As at March 31, 2024
Project in progress - = . . -,
Proiuct temporarily m = - : - =
“Total - u - . "
izt
Parficulars [hmeeeni in intangihles under devetopment Far u period uff
Lessthon | year Lf Yaars 2:dygary More than3years  TForal
A at Marck 51, 2023
Pregject in progress 4003 - . . 4003
Project wmpomnty suspended - - u g .
Tatat 41103 = - 5 41,03
B. Impairment of Goodwill with indefinite useful life
As required by Ind AS 36 - “lmparmsnt of Assets’, the Group perf: t tests on goodwill on an --ihu-llu-:-—-u vl el o et Gusshi-panerang i [OOLT) The reievoislely e af CIRI
of 2 16,497 70 has bren detessmsed baiad on a value in use calculation meg cih flow projections fom fi gty Wy il by prdaii cas AT § i pra persd Th g parisrmesd m s epersid
ol o ey, vl B1 laoch 2034 aned 31 Match SA5H oms 3 Septewbr 1023 aed 0 Boptowier 2, sespastivaly (s A g i greetally ot o yran-crd). B earber yrats, dhet e vocagmand gooded
B i gt ol Cdimi Pyttt Tobiaen Froome Leed Tha posdwill wal samsd w e b o whibs snip the DGR cumion vl asly bt sy, £ 8, [l pocommng Broo e o vt il
i, abt cavrabls s of prsided] Wi leised Bo e g 1 (D 'l.'ulmi.‘l:ltF}memodﬂnhh-Iesthe use @l comam key muimmpioss, Which are based on finantiad budgets spproved by
Eraprre Bain e, Aaragirsnt b conchaied dud e sepasresit o govdesdl iouts Koy T 5 to of recive ralile imsanr are Bl el
[Carryimg amount oF poestbesl a5 at Msch 1. 504 TR 7 90,57 [kasch: 31, 3029 TRE 1.0 W11
Basis s whach S pecovarasis amount has been debirmsd [l = g gy
Yeur |- 30%
Year 2- 25%
Year 3- 24%
Growth rate used lor computing vidue in use Year 4-23%
Year 3- 21 5%
Year &t % - 20% to | 7%
Terminal rrowth rate of 5%
Discount rate [Pre bax) 14955

e -
i s b o & ining e valus assigned to ech key pi Wabamma @ a5 per fercrmeiod asseni plaa, whach i backed up by mmermal aad eeternal lematon availible wil)

I the prestax discount rate and eermaisal prowth rete spplied to the cash fow projections of this CGL had beea
\han marapemnent's estimaies {15 3% instead of (4 326} and (5 5% instead of 5%) respectivety, the

impact of possible changes in key assamprions
sewsldl ot have had to recogruse any additional impairment against the ¢amying 2mount of goodwill of INR 7,598 [

C. Orher nates:
(it The Group does rot have intengibles under develop whose letion is due or has eweeeded i3 cost compared €0 its ariging! plar, heres the requisite disclosures has aot been given

iit) See note 40 fur disclosure of comractyal i for the acgquisition/develop af intangible asses
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Bryls Payments Private Limited
CIN: U72400MH206PTC293037

Motes to L

d Financial §

for the yrar ended March 31,2024

Amounis in INR millions, unless ofherwise stated

6 Investment
B As gt Agat
Faniodars
' Mareh 31. 2024 areh 31,2023
Lnguoted cquity shares carried al fair value through other comprehensive income
Fully paid equiry shares 61,320 (harch 31,2023: 61,320} of INR10 cach in Warional Payment Comaration of India 170 Tl
Fully paid equity shares 2,510 (March 31, 2023 25103 of INRLO each in Ferbine Private Limited LY} ] [134X]
Tetat 11.04 77414
ed 77.04

Aggregate value of un-quoted invesimenty
Ageregate amount of impairment in valye of investments .

Investments al Fr value through GC1 (wly pad) reflecs i in d equily
e Group. Thus, disclosing their fir vadue flucivsnon in peofit or loss (FYTPL) will not réflect the puspose of holding

Thews equity shares are designaled 35 FYTOC! as they wre fot held for rading purposs and ase wot in similer e of business 35

The shares of Ferhine Private Lipnisd sod Rananad Povmen) Cospartas of Iedis are g and the Group being mesanhy shaeberddin, ducs not have any ather demale source b duammine the fair value of such iavestments

25 at March 31, 2024, Also, e mansgresimi. based on financsl adermanss nafable. belesi tha he vatug of Lo dhss hi el il oed iy since the acq fi masmd duin and Wherclore the purschase vabue of
Ihese shares have been congidered as their [air value
t Leans
Faniculars " Agal AE 2t
IR —_ L -
Nosecurrent
At Amortised Cost
Term Loans
- Personal baan 13,663 43 439399
~ Consumer receivebles g 352
(R Al
Less : Imparment allowance (refer note £l (781 33) {40 843
Tuolal {A) 12,882.10 599267
Current
Af Amartised cosl
Term Laoans
+ Pervonal loan 1%.651.12 BEI352
+ Cansumer recovables (refer note i below) 1.20% 41 2 G0 39
1945955 1541811
Less ; impaimnent aflewancs (refer note 313 [(REPE3 {028 1)
“Total (B} LLES T TR
Total (A+8) I E5215 16,482.67
Break up of seeurty details
Loans constdered good - secured - .
Loans considened gaod - unsccured 32132135 16716 44
Loans which have significant ingrease wn credit nsk 67987 G|
Loans credit jmpaiced 521 12 51438
Totzl leans AL ITHIZES
Less : lnpaimment albow ance {refer note 31} (LMD {1,332 95)
Net loans = FLESL LN _ lhakbal
Recancilintion ef Inspairment allowance on foans
Impai i A of the year 133293 .
Add: Increms b [epearmsenl s mman cecounised in proB1 of loss during the year 637 BG 133295
Loss: Loans wiiner off during the year 3 uncollectible . .
tmpairment allowance a3 atend of the year [T X1l B 17w
Notes:
{3 Disclosure pursuant to BB circular REVDOR/2021-22/86 DOR STRREC 51721 4 028/2021-22 for loans trans Ferved/acquired under the Master Dievclion - RBI {Transfer of Lo Exp } D 2021 dated Sepiermb
24, 221 are geven below:
a) Betails of \ravsfor Grraugh assignment i respect of loans not in default during the vear ended March 31,2024 and March 31, 2021
Partitulars Asat As at
March 31, 2024 hlasah 312023
Lount of loan accownts assiuned inls 3,546
Amounl of loan gteount assigned 230 74 124087
R ion ol beneficial ic interest {MRR} lo% 1945
Weighred Avergge residual wenute of dee boans Iransfemed 42-43 Months 4142 Months
st holding penod 11-12 Months 111 donths
Bli secunin . !
kL] PRI}
.-"'-':.'\- Lnrgted Unrated
ff

-‘_:_.:'_'J.'-l;l' e
e
’ }?-ﬁu'nﬂ : of rated toans
f R
ol . YR
= | Chaderet -
Aecouniants | ©
! o i
) _-'.'_
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Payl) Payments Privase Limited

CIiN: UT2400M HAG06PTC2303Y
Naores 1o lid: F L}

for the year ended March 31, 2024

Amounts in [NR millions, unbess otherwise stated

{iih

b} The Group has been transfemed/acquired any sieessed loan dusing the sear ended darch 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023

Bielail of Cansfor af siressed loan during the year ended March 21, 2024 and RMarch 31, 2023

Particulars Agat
Wiarch 31, 2024

Coupt of Cases 90,854
Aggregae Prncipal Quistanding as per Bonks 2790
Less: Provision 19331
MNet Camying Amaunt / Net Book Value 50
Weighted Residual Teaure (in Maonths) 2486
Net Sale Consideration 161 70
Collection rerpdtance 174

£133

Net Gam an Sale of NPA

1 sddition 1o hore, the company hus Gsbused § loans pest the wansfer of stressed lows amounting to Rs 0,12 milliens on which ECL “#100% has besn provided

&) The Group has not zoquired any loen in delauls during the vear ended March 30, 2024 and Mareh 31, 2023

Consurmer recoivibles represants balances which are in the nature of buy now pay Later (BNPL)

it There are no loans assets which has been clascified as fair vadue Grough profit & koss andfor faic value thraugh other comprehensive income

{iv) The Group has 1ot granted any loans or sdvances in the ratute of loans (o prometer | direclors, KidPs and the related p

| Accouniants | 2

repavable on demand or withoul specilying any tems or pericd of repayment

Asat
Wlarch 31, 2023

anics (25 defined weder Companies Act, 2010} qudher sevecally oc joimly with any other persen, ihat are

8 Other financizl assety
{4t amortited coif}
Particulars As &t Asat
Mareh 31,3024 Slarthi B, 2628
Moo current
fUseenred. consnfercd good lnriers otherwise sured)
Excess inderesi spread receivables 269 16 91 5¢
Less: impairmead loss lowance on excess interest spresd receivables {6 46] (2.an
262,80 B9 3%
Securily depositg G593 40 43
Deposiis wilh remarfing oty o more than L2 months (*} iz Ty
Total {A) 89287 163,62
¢*}includes amount under lien against bank guaranes
Current
(Tingecured, cunsideivd good waluss otheraise sturcd))
Exters inlercsl spredd receivables 19241 B384
Less: Provision fr [oss dlowance on exiess interest sproad receirables 2t ] [HE.E]
184,26 8386
Security deposifs 436 4216
Deposit with ariginal maturity for more than 12 manths * 13% 26 273
Commission reccivable 1,300 95 750 33
Amount lying in £5erow accownt 65601 130 %4
Reeivable on account of DLG 37428 -
Crther receivable # 1,217 3¢ 46113
Total {B} . i AiE [F L]
e
Total {A + B} 4, TELTH ]
{*y includes amount undet ien sgainst bank guarniae
{#) trclude TNR 233 70 {March 31, 2022: [NR 62 45} Trom celated parties (Refer Mote 443
Recontillation of Impairment allowance on excess interest spread receivables
Particutars As at Asal
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Impairment allowance as on beginning ol ibe year 4 1 itk
Add: b in impai H] grised in profic o loss duning the year 101 250
Less: Excess interest spread recsivables written off during the yeur as uncollectible - :
Irapairment Allowance as at end of the year 111 410
9 Pelferred rax assetsf Jiabiliry} {ner)
Particulars As at As 3t
March 31 2034 ¥arch 51. 2023
Dieterred b asels (nog”® - 147 22
Tzl 2 .

*For details {refer note 349)

Charterst

L




Payll Payments Private Limited

CIN: U72400M H206PTC223037

Motes fn Consalidated Fi iz} 5 for thr year ended March 35, 2024
Armaunts in INR millions, unless atherwise stated

10 Current Tax Assels

with any ather person, that are repavable sa demand ar witheut specifiing any lenvs o periad of repavment

12 Trade recelvables

Particulars As at Ax at
Tax asseis (nety 127563 1.231 57
SET T I
el of currend 1% Habilin of BNR 18 83 (March 31, 2023 INR. M )
10.1 Curvent Tax liabitity
: A at Aj st
Particulars
; March 31, 2024 Mzrch 31,2023
Tax Liabilities (ne()* - P14
. : —lill,
*pipd of Advance tas and TOS of ENR Nil {March 31, 2623 fR Mil )
11 Othier agsets
Particuiars G S
March 31, 2024 areh 31, 2023
Mon-current
fiimsecured, conidered good unless otherwise stated)
Propaid sxpentes 444§ k1 vl
Bal Tving with gov h Gy 91 a1 a7
Total (A) 108549 Th.26
Current
fUinrecured, contsfered good waless othermse stefed}
Ralance Iviag with goverment auihorics 4t 23 (AR
Prepaid expenses 45877 409 25
Advance Lo vender 15702 93 83
Adyaness 10 emploveas 2247 2}
Others * 193 63
Tatal (B} LiALTE W IR
e
Total (A+B) [ LARRER
» Abese figures does nolinclude Loans, I G and Advances in natwre of foan ta promoter . direttors, KMPs 1nd the reloted parties (o5 defined under Companies Act. 2013} vither seserally or joinlly

Farticulars ADTat A at
Mareh 51, 2024 March 31, 2013
a2l
Linsecured, considered guad:
Trade receisables 1,732 71 21632
Lese Allowance against expected credit lass (3% 14} (113503
Total [FITEE AL
Breati-up lor securidy detalls:
: As at Asat
e Mareb 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Trade receivables
Secured, considered good " -
Unsecured, sensidered good 1664 57 TGS TG
Trade receivables which hove significant increase in credit nisk . z
Trade receivables - credil impaired BE 14 112351
Toral {4) 115871 2.76521
Irapairment allowiance
Secured, considered good - .
Unsecured, considered good -
Trode receis ables which has significent ingrease in credit nisk & .
Trade ccecivables - credit impaired (3% 4} {113 51)
Fotal (B) (88.14) {11351)
TFotal (A+H} 1.664.57 265150
Moten:

i} Mo trade ar ciher recsivable are due from directors of other officess of the company cither severlly or jointly with any oWee persan Mor any trade of ather receivable are Jue Gom (irms ar private companies respeatively in

which any directar is 2 pariner, 2 direcior of a memhber.
(i}

Teade receivables are non-interest bearing and are prormally seitled in 30-60 davs
ity Toclude RNR NI (March 31, 2023 INR, 181 73} from related party (Rafer Mare 41)




PayU Paymenis Frivate Limited
Ci: U92400MHE2006PTC293037

Notes to © i ¥

Amaunts in INR millions, unless atherwise stated

for the year ended March 31, 2024

B BReconciliation of Impai il on frade bl
——
Particulars Asat Asat
March 31, JI34 March 31, 20123

Irarpai: it a5 on beghnndng of the year ii35) 132
Add. I in impab 1] * d i profit or loss dusing the yexr 8165 3369
Less: Uiilized during the year (229

Less: Reversal of provision (8621} -
Add: Exchange difference on imnslation 4% iil
Impairment allowancs as atend of the year LT FET

C.  Ageing of frade receivables
Ar ar Marchk 31, 2024
From fhe duc dli af povment

Partieulars Uobilled Mot Due Ler:su:‘l::t g Smanths - L year 13 years -5 years Mere thap 3 yean TFotal
Undlsputed trade receivabtes

- Considerad good 2T 83 422 54 T a? 1721 1589 21.57 5G.48 1,723.61
- Which hrve sigrificant increase in credit nsk . iRl a0 0.0d 24l " 055 37
- Credi impaired i ' - - 1247 453 R 2593
Pisputed Irade recefvahles

- Cansidered good - . - - - . =
- Which have sighificant inerease in credil risk ‘ " - - & ' =
- Credil impaired - a . - - . . =
Torat 27084 422 54 J04.08 172331 ana7 3L 0 85 1.752.71
Asof March 31, 2023

Frarm sl dhoey sy il prory el

Particulars Uinbilled Mot Due L':;:::: U £ manths « 1 year 1-2 yesrs 2-3 yeats Meore than 3 years Total
i b i 1wl i gl
+ Congidered good 344 BB 51343 G40 50 T 13273 453 323 2E51.68
~ Which have stepificanl inercase in ceadit sk ' . 3 a s . 5 =
- Credit impaired i [N+ 1)) 4 36 1.0 L 56 IR 45 0% 11352
Disputed trade recelvables
- Considered good . - = . " = &
« Which have sigaificant increasc in ceadit fisk C * ) - . - -
- Credil impaired ' = - & N =
Total 544, QI 45 654846 i.l‘.ﬁ 147.29 4% nd TRAS I..?_l-m-
Loss atlowrnce a3 st 31 March 2024 and 31 March 202 was determined as follows far trade reseivables under toe stmplified approach:
As at March 31, 2004

¥ o ey ey ik 5T ol
Particulars Tnbilled Mot Due i s mounths - | year 12 years 23 years More tham 3 yesrs Tatal
dirmni carrying amount — trade receivables 270 24 422 54 704 08 17z 2 09T i GO G 1,752 71
Expreled lass rate 0% TGS (UG Rl 15 574 1535 TR 1463
Expecled coedid Iosses— rade Bl v [ Bl i} (4} r'--'ll_e| L] 4 48 i '-E|
Carrying amouat of trade receivables (et of 27024 gk Ra T04 07 17220 1390 1047 5648 1,723 61
impairment}
As ar March 31, 1033
Trees she fyg daspaf paxment
Particwars Unbittied Mot Due hessthan® oo, fyear L2yeans riyeses Mare than 3 years Totat
Gross carrying amyunt - rade receivablies [EER 1] 21345 634 B4 913 M1 47 04 TE 45 LT
Expecied loss rate 0% ili i P 0 H%% G Ha% Bl K6% 58 15% +11%
Expected credir fostes- frade fvaht £ L1 14 36 (] LR L] b O LLLEE
Carrying amount of trade reccivables (net of 44348 913 45 gl S0} 1423 SEET] 8331 3136 TaF A
imapairmenty
13 Cash and ¢ash equivalents
Particusrs oLy A
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023

Holances with bunks*® 13327 3,049 4
Deposits with origing maturiy of less than three months T4 4 8025 24
Tatal 1LTTHALT 11874.73

| @ o
1= I. fAocoumnlEnts | O

A

W

Balances with banks inchedes balances in Exchange Eamers' Foreipn Cusrenty Account (EEFCYof INR. 6 28 (Murch 37, 2023 INR B 13)
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Payl Payments Private Limited
CIN: U72400MIEZOOGFFCE93037

Notes to O F

for the year tnded Warch 31, 2024

Amcunts iz INR miliions, unless otherwise stated

14

* The comgan wel DBPS account to megive money through debit conbiormi et rei hanking e law

[

15

B

{in

Bank balance other than above
Particulary A3zt At
March 31, 2024 Bl 31,2023
Resiicted cash held in separate account® 474 30 1,143 26
Deposit with sagmal maaity of less than 3 months™* - .
Deposits willi siigasl muwniy &l more than three monihs but les5 tan twelve monds*** 325712 3,168 64
4,23742 431390

Total

teparats et haa been opened which is aol avalable for wse by e compans. Chat of torel betwnca, INH )71
usa by the company

Represents amaunt under len painst overdralt

Tnslides amoury wrdar lien againgt everdra , working cagital demand Toans and BLG pravision

Contracts assets and conrrast Gabllities

ard il the Iransaction occunng on it ponl as well 23 i seule the respeciive merchanis. I ling with RBL dasina
45 (ubarch 31, 2023; INR 171,39 } represents amounis held in Citrus wallet by customers which is nat avimhiliby B

= Ay at As 2t
Farsglan March 31,7024 March 31,2023
Contract assels
Maon-currenl s 5
Lurrept 17325 35913
Total (A) ITLES ot
Cantract liabitities
Mon-current v 2
Current 109 2% 164 32
Total (8 B [ 161.67
Total (A-B} §3.97 19146
Muoveczent in contract Liabilities during 1he year
Coniract assets ineludes unbilled revenue sganst the pending negotintions, sureements ind PO for the services provided 1o customers The same has 1 d due i firmations from the for pas
Contract hiabiinies include advance peceived from customer ko deliver services like annual maintenance charges, IT services, etc Coniraet lighilities has been increased due io nor-fuliiment of performance oplication
Set out below is the amount of revenue recogmised fram:
Particulars For Ui nine months ended  Far the year ended
March 31, 2024 Mlarch 31, 2023
Fevenie recogmyised than was included in the contrct Rabitiny bolunce at the brginning af the year 164 3% 121 3¢
Bevenut recopaised from p bligath isfied in previous year N
Share capltal
Particular: A3 at Avnt
March 31, 2074 Slangh 31,2023
Authorised share capital
3,U00,050,00¢ iharch 31, 2623 2,500,055,000) Equity shares of INR, {0 each
ELLLI] 25,100 50
999,030,000 (March 31, 2023: 999,950,000} Preference shares of INR 10 cach 5,099 50 5,999 50
Tssued, subscribed and paid up capital
3.0313,318,962 (March 31, 2023: 2,046,829,027) Equity shares of INR 16 cach fully paid up 30,153 1% 20,468 29
Total == FCNEEATY ~ PR
Reconcilinton of the pumber of equity shares and share capital
Fartauliry, . Debid ol iliisy b s E5 L
A4 at April 01, 2002 503403 20.H025
Equiry shares issued dufing the year 1280 128 {4
A at Mareh 31, 2023 204655 10,468.2%
(o of compulsery convertible det inta equily shares G636 68 64
Egquity shares issuad duning the yess T4 62 401625
As at March 37, 2024 3,018.32 30,1%5.15

Rights attached to equity shares:

The Company has only oae class of equily shares having a par value of INR L0/~
and pays dividend after sbiainipg sk
amownts The disinbution will be in proporion to te aurber of equity shares held by the shareholder.

A in g
£ o _‘- S ey
i O !
] Charterad
= | Actountainls |0
[} e

s -

* approval bn the evens of liguidation of the company, the holders of cquity shares will be entited to receive remaining asseis of the I

per share Euch bolder of equity shares is eniied Lo ane vole per share Each hotder is enlided to dividends as and when the Company declares

of any pref

, after di




Payl) Payments Private Limited

Ll U72400MIRD06E TE29I03T

Notes 1o C: lidated Fipancial S for the year ended March 51, 2024
Amounts i INR milligns, unless otberwise stated

D.  Rights issue
During he financial year 2022-23 & 202324, the campany has issued sharas, deiails of which are s follows

Particulars Mo af shaves Premium Allotment Jate Share capital Securitics premium
Shares DMoteed 1o MIH Paymenis Holdings B V. 12,803 543 szio Seplember 14, 2022 12804 53903
Shares solied to M Paymens Holdings B V. G435,111 73140 Tanuary 1%, 2024 94 35 57932
Shares plotled to hH Paymenis Holdings 8 ¥ 17,075,095 7234 March 26, 2024 1M 75 [RUSE:1]
E.  Conversion of compulsory convertible 8% debennires Into equity shares:

Eruring the yeas ended March 31, 2024, the company has £on d the compulsory canvenible 8% deb ke equity shares.

Particulars Mo of shares Preminm Allgtment date Share capiral Serurities premium
Shares alloted 10 bIH India (Maudiius) Limied £,564,202 5230 Jume 14, 20623 4B &4 0L 0%

F.  Purmuan lo the Business Combination, the Holding Company has issued 935115227 new equity shores dudng the vear ended March 31, 2024 The Holding Company has given the elffect o Business Combinavion in

accordance of Appendix C of Ind AS 103 Plese refer note 46 for further delails

Particulary Mo of shares Premium Allotment date Share capitad Securitics preminm
Shases affoticd 10 MIH Payments Holding BY 796910623 7033 Decentber 14, 2023 7,969 11 407762
Shares alloed to MH Pryments Holding BV 138,204,610 7140 January 29, 2624 1.362.05 £,485 76
. Aggregosts numberof equty shares issued 25 bonus, shores issued for consideraton olher than ¢ash and shares bought back during the penod of five yrars i Hately p g the reporting dats:
= As at As st
|
Particulars | i M Mprs gazs
Equity shars issued lor iy o mabaaliarem (refor 46] D3542 "
It Delails of shares held by sach shareholder bolding more than $%% shores :
= As gt Asar

Name of sharehelder Relarionship

March 31,2024

arch 31. 2023

MIH Indizs (Mauritius) Limited Holding company (Tl December 19, 2022)
Mo ofshures

Halding %

MIH Payments Holding B.V. Holding company {From December 20, 2023)
Mo ofshares

Hotding %

Total
No. ol shares
Hatding %

0.00%

3015318361
HO00%

3,015,318,862
100%

1,462,854 267
TLATY

353,974,140
WA

2.046,529,027
100

—

On Decnmber 20, 2023, MIH tndia (Maunivius) Limited tengfered 3100 of L4697 13,668 equity shares 10 MlH Payments Holding B ¥ As a result of this transfer, MIH Povments Holding B V. hecame (he parent company

1. Details of Promoter's shareholding and shares held by Holding company

At of March 31, 134

Pramoter naume Relationship No. of sthares % of total sharey % mmi::: ring the
MEEH Endia (Mawnitins) Liodted Halding campany {Till December 19, 2033} i (% (71.36%}
MIH Payments Holding 8 ¥ Holding company {From D: ber 20, 2023) R R LA FEERUY ) 5%
IGLE3LEA62 FH.00% .00 %%
Awa Alawok BE, MZF
Promoter name Relationship No. of shares %a af total shares ¥ change g e
W8 Indra (elmaias) Limmind Holding company (511 Cusambal 15, 20211 1.462,854.267 TR 0 25%)
WB Puyments Holding B Y Halding company (From Decomber 20, 2023) 383974, 760 IR 5% 2%
2046819007 B T {0.00%
17 Other equity
E Asal As gt
IP: riculars March 31. 2024 March 31. 2023
Securities preminm 40,986 39 25465 30
Sutulory resens 9T 185
Caphal reserve (5.0335 95) (303927
Retained earmings 136,542 333 {24.93847
Fureign cumency lanshalion reserve (1363} 826
Addittonal paid in capital {64y -
Share based compensTion resenve {1635 38} (1257 B9
Share applicalion mongy pending dloiment ] Tl
% A1ARLART
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Payl Payments Frivate Limited

CIN: U 2400MH2006PTC223037

Wates to Consalidated Fi ial § Tor the year ended March 31, 2024
Armouats in IR anillions, anfess ofherwise stated

Movemnent of reserves duriog the year
(il Securitics premino

Balance as at the brginning al the year 25,865 B0 15,405 62
Add: Fssue of share ¢ spital during the year 15,524 3¢9 1066 (8
Less: Share issue exponses (3.804

AR TR

L]

Balance as at the end of the year
(it} Statutory reserve
Belanin g al M brfsidsg of e year 105 108
Add: Addittens during the yeas 1} -
Batance as at the end of he year 9.7 1.08
e
{ith Capited reserve
Balance as af the heginning of the year (8.03227) (7,752 44}
Add: Adjusirment on account of busingss resIngcoring . 33 {246 %3}
Balance a» 4t the ¢nd of the year LR ALANLET)
(v} Retained ewrnlngs
Eblssie 08 B by brriesdeg of ik sp (24938.47) (2221067
Less: Loss Tor the year (4295 11 (2,748 18]
Add: Remeasurement of defined benefit plans 2138 g
Less: Loss fof the acquesivan of non controlling intercst {2321 68} .
Less: Creation of startulory reserve {5.65) -
Batance a5 ot the end of the year [Ea it Hili-ll-l"l
fv) Foreign cureency transfation reserve
Ealance as at the bepinndng of the vear 826 SS8T
AddLess: Additions/extinguishment during the vear 123 8% LA
Balunin wr wi e vl ol Blor prid 115,633 576
¥} Additional paid in capizal
Balagce as at the bepinning of the year . '
AddfLess: Additions/exinguishment uring the year 064} .
Balance as at the end of the year (064} 2
(vi}  Share based comprnsation reserve
A, Compensation for RSUs Granted during the year
Balance as at the hezinning of the year M0 278 36
Add/Less: Additions/exiinguishment during the year - itk Rl
Balance as at the end of the year 1.240.90 RIS
B.  Cross charge by group compamy
Balance as at ibe beginning of the yesr {2028 57) {963 35}
Add/Less: Additionsietingyishment during the year M7.71) {1.365.32)
Balance as at the ¢nd of the year (AT re il
Share based compens ation reserve (net ol cross charge} - V163538 J1A51A1}
tvii)  Share application money pending alb
Batanee as at the Yesinninz of the year T969.11 1Al
Less: Issue of shage ¢ apital durine the yoar 1796011} -
Balance as ot U end of the year - 796911

Description of nature and purpose of each reserve

) Securilies premium
Securilies premium is used to record the premium oa issuc of shwses The resene can be uiilised onty for limited purposes such o5 issuinte of bonus shares i acrordance with the pravisions of Section 52 the Companies Act, 201

{ity  Statutory reserve w's 4514 REI Act
Statutory fegerves are creaed to adhere o reguive rtenls of spplicable laws and wit] be ulilised in cccardance with the said laws

i} Copltal reserve
The Capital Reserve comprises reserve croaled on Jocounl of busi ingfsembination and as per the requicements of nd AS 103 - Appondin C (Refer agie 46}

(iv)  Retgined earmngs
Retzined enmings are the prafitsilass) that te Group has camedfincurred tll date, fess any 1runsfers ta geneml reserve, dividends or olher di ibutions paid 1o shareholde MR Retained inge i bage loss S
{gain} on defined benelil phans, net of taes hat will gt be reclassified o Siatement of Prafit and Loss

(v}  Foreign currency trasslation reserve
Exchange dilfermsom suing on iwanslaion of the freign operations are recognised in odher comprefiansih g income 5 4
jis reclassifiad o profit of bogs when the net mvestmenl is disposedsoff.

in ing policy and acc lated in 2 separste reserve within equity. The cumidative amount

{vi) Share based compensation reserve
The reserve represents Share based compensakion reserve by the employees of the campany fram Prosus MV The raserve is used to recopmise the fair value of the awords issued ty the employees of the company net of cross
charge 10 Prosus NV, (Refer note 38)




Payll Payments Private Limited

CIN:

U72500MH2006PTC293057

MNotes to C idared Financial for the year ended March 31, 2024
Amgunats io INK millicns, unfess otherwise stated

18 Nons Controlling Jnterest

Particulars As at As at
Mareh 31, 2024 Eﬂh!t.zﬂﬂ
Balance @y at the beginning of the year 38219 5
Add: Additions duning the year 3920 19
Less Acquired dwring lhe year (3,928 19)
Fslamye om ol Beiodied &1 B0 prar = 3.528.1%
Men-conlralling interest reprosents 8 001% pulson & ible preft ¢ thares of subsidian held by Poysense Pre bid
1% Borromings
{4t amortized cost)
: As at As at
Partculan March 31. 3024 M It 2025
Moo-current borrowings
Secured
Rad bl Tible deb {itefer note B below)
= 11.35% Debeniure 1667 23333
- § 96 Debenlure 35026 33000
Tenr Loans (Refer note C below}
- lrom bank 11452 53 £,61693
- Frgme olher parties (WBFC) 1,363 59 73747
Less: Cuvent mamunny of long term homowings {6.645.32) {3,873 98}
Total (A} TTEITTE T
Curreat borvowings
Frons relgted party, Unsecared
§% Compulsarily con iple det [Reler note A bolow) & S0 40
Cikers, Secured
Cwment oflong term b T G5 32 3871358
Bank overdralt (Refar note C below) 214930 2,207 53
Warking capital demand loans [Refer aate C below) ERERR] 295191
Lirsecured
Commercia) paper {Refer nole D Below} 559473 435 16
Total (B) [CRELNT) IR
Total (A+B} W ITATIECS
Motes:
A.  Compulsortly convertible deb
4,283,387 8% Compulsonly ible deb issued a5 the face vatue of TNR 10O coch to MTH India (Mauritius) Limited (Holding company} The deb we conierted into squity shares on June 13, 2023 af the fuir
vilue along with the intersst secrued therean {Refer note 16 E)
B. Redeemoble pomeconvertitle deheorures ¢
(i} Terms of dehentuny
: Tranchee T Tranchee i
Particula
e b —_— HERTL AR JINT L AT
Wby of frhommam 350 350
Rate ol interest - Fixed 11.35% £50%
Listed / untisted Unlisted Unlisted
Face value 1,000,000 1, 00650, 000
Date of lssue Movemher 26, 2021 March 30, 2022
Date of redempiion Docember 31, 2023 and
Decernber 30, 2324 March 13, 2025
Bolance oylstandiag o5 ot March 31, 2024 116 67 35026
Balance oulstanding 45 al March 31, 2023 #1333 35000
iy Terms of repayment schedule
Particulars A3 at Ay 2t
Rarch 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Interest Rate Range (%)
Less than Iyear R 909%-11 35% 11 35%
i-3 years ' §90%- 1135%
Carrying ammount
Lese han Lveas 466 93 11667
1-3 years - 466.66
Moles.
{i} Redeemable Non-Ci ible Deb are repavable in trancheshullel pay
{ii) All Non converible det e 1z ot par. All the debentures ane privately placed
{iit) Mo non ¢onvenible det 15 g d by the i andfor ather
{iv} There are no defsults as an babanes sheel date in repovment af debl sacurity and inlerest tharaon
(v} Red bbe Nan-C: ible Dreb arc seeured by pod-passu charge by hypethecation of standard busi receivables
e,
i .ask_ e T
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Payll Paymeoty Private Limited

CIN: V24000 HZO006PTCII3037T
Mutes to Cansolidated Finaneral §
Amounts in INR milltons, unfess orherwise stated

€. Tenm Loans, baok drafis, workd

g copital d

d lyans

ts for the year tnded March 31, 2024

Term Laans, overdralls and working capiral demand Joans of Group aré secured by pari passu charge by wy of hy pothecation on movesble assets, currenl sseis and fixed deposits

Farficulars Asat Aaat
March 31, 2024 Mlarch 31, 2023
£y Tarmm e Creom Basda
[aterest rate range (%)
L#ss than | yezr 935% - 10.70% B BE%G - 10.70%
1-3 years G35%- 10 0% B 85% « 10 0%
3+ Sveus 9.55% -
Carrying amount
Lasg than { yeaor 500231 238134
S 9487 61 8235 1)
I-Syeas 2962 44 £
iy Term loac frors other parties (NBFC)
Tnterest rate range (25)
Less than iyear 16 0% 10 109 - L0 33%
1-3 years 10 60% 10 1% - 16 35%
Carrylng amnount
Lcss than § year 1LY 0% 475 47
1-3 yeus 187 50 62 50
D.  Commercial paper
{i) The commercial paper is repayable on Ootober 249, 2024 | March 26, 2025 | May 17, 1024 respeclvely
(i1} Rale of Interestis § 93% -9 50% pa
"F_'?m‘"n_qn Arannt Rate of [nlerest | Repayablc Date
#r - £i1i Rronk 23000 R 0% LRI
[Carmmercial Pager - Citi Bank 635 A1 9 50%] 2613025
Commercinl Pager « Citi Benk 285 00 9 50% H2NINI
Notga:
(i) No homewings is guaraniced by the directors andfor others
(i) Thet Group bas submitied the quarterly ratims and statemnis of carrent assets Nied by tie group with Banks or B ial i inays with its books of accounts
{iii} The barowings obiained By the Group fom banks wd Grancial irstitutians have been spplied for the purposes for which such loans were was taken
20 Lease Usbiltties
Particulazs As al Avat
March 31, 1834 Mareh 31, 2023
Mop-curreat
Eense liablities (Refer nots 4) Foud 52 54215
Total (A} Ted.62 542,15
Curreat
Lease bablivies (Refer aple 33 ik 24 159 82
Total (B) 20234 15Y52
Fotal {A+ B) 9628_6 701.97

A, The following is the carryiog value of Tease liability and movement thereof durlng the year ended March 31, 2024

Lareoian,
A3 at Aprll @i, 2027

Additiwns dunng the year

Finoncs ¢ost ae¢nued dusing the vear

Deletrons duning the year
i

32201

52160
3743

LLILET)

As atMarch 37, 2023

Additions dunng the year

Finance ¢o3t accrued duning the veur
Dralelions dunng the year

L ol gy feshe s b

et

5206
9717
{1770y
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Payl) Payments Private Lirited

CIN: UT2400M H2006PTC293037

Motes 10 Consolidated Financial S far the year ended March 31, 2024
Amounis in INE millions, unless otherwise srated

1 Provisions

. At at Asat
i
L e March 31, 2024 Blasgh 31, 2023

MNon-current

Provistons for gratuity (Refor Note 373 133 14 12719
Provisions for compensated absences 125.%3 104 33
Provisions tor default boss puarantee (DLG) {rafer note ¢i) balaw) LiXi) 134 51
Tatal (A) 158.97 It .63
Current

Provisions for grateity {Refer Mole 37} 3764 24t
Provisions for comp 4 aby 4750 46 62
Provisions for defoudt loss guaramtes (DLG) {refer nane () below) 114 85 44 00
Total {B) 19599 112.02
Total {A+B} 458,96 A8 65

G} Defawt Loss Guarantee {BILG) pravision

The Group has service agresment with iis cusiomers, whereby (he proup agrees o P i3 Far any

amount of DL exposwe sulslanding 28 31 the period end i 25 follows:

services { Default Loss Guarantes {DLGY up to mutually agesed limis The lofal

Pariculars Adat Agat
Nl AL, 2024 Blawrh 27, 2023
DLG exposuss qulslanding 35 3l the year ¢nd ST SEap sl
L FEFETN

The Graup bas 2lsa placed depusils with banks which have been Vign tarked in favewr of i clienls 4 3 secunty JEanst its conrachyal ol

halances
The Group sccounis for te Guir value of puanmiee in sue
movernent of DLG pravision is as [ollows:

Moverment is Befault Loss Guarantes (DLG) provisions 15 us follows:

BLG provision

Description

Ag at April 01, 2022 284 3
Additonal pravistans recognised 5103
Lglization duripg the year (736.37)
As ol March 31, 2023 T198.51
Addwional p i sed 404 00
hilizztion during the yeur {487.63)
As at March 31,2024 114.85

21 OQther Labilities

have been disclosed 2 "Lien marked” under cash and bank

h cases determined based o the probability of default which is based on historical default rate and exgecralions of fulure conditions 35 3 pravision 1 vear end The

z - Avat As at
art
Particulary Nlarch 31, 2024 gyl 31, S0
Won Current
Processing Fee defer TN 23013
Total 397.74 139.14
Current
Staluiory liabilities 3B1.0% 300 70
Employee benefits pay able 35625 461 R4
Pracessing Foc deler 192 40 201 29
Orther ighilities 4 50 5305
Totat 1. BLAN Ielm
23 Trade payzbles

n Asat Asat =

Parti
Ll e March 31, 2024 Sjgrgh 31, 2023
Trade payables
« tgtal oulstanding dues of micro prises and sl : and 1312 2713
- ozl wuistanding dues of creditars sther than micro prises and smoll 1,932 45 | B B0
Total 154857 1.8219%
Moles:
(i) Trade juyifee s mon-meeet patayg S od ey welnl i 100 dei
G Foread e s Liddal Ak o [Rdoe S )

(i) Ervetudbem BB N7 0 bk 00, 30D IR T paalile b el ik (lader Mot 1)

D ®
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Payl Payments Private Limited

CIN: UT00NM HZOGP TC293637
Naotes to Consolidated Fi kal &
Ampunls in INR millions, unless othe rwise stated

Apeing of irade payables
Ay of March 31, 2024

for the year ended March 31,2024

Fram ihe due date of ey .
Parteubars
Unbitled Not Due LEIEE 1-2 years 248 years b1 P NI Total
1 year 3 yeary

Undisputed frrde payables

Micro entgrprises and saall enierprises - 37 631 364 = - 1311
Crther than miceo entemprises and small emerprises 148719 5008 2497 37 7532 1913 316 1.93EAS
Disputed hrade payables

Wi prises and small P = & a - i
Othor than micro enterprises and small enterprises - ' . 3 " -
Total 1.487.19 53,25 311368 X A6 i AE] 336 105547
Asat March 31, 3673
-

From fhe due pupel
Particulars 3
Unhilled Mot Tue ISy 1-2 yean 2-3 years R Gl Tuatal
1 year 3 years

Undisputed trade payables

Micen and small - 3233 1331 - L . 716
Oiher than micro and smal! ¥ 1362 14 EERES 17154 5593 B OR 07 3% 1,794.79
Dispuled trade payables

Mizro ises and small Pr - . ' - -
Other than micrg and small pri - [ - - ' -
Total 1362.10 2140 19635 £5.93 Rin 10739 1.%21.95

24 Other financiaf Uahilites
Particulars - As at phsiat -
March 31, 2024 Bl 31, 2023

Mor-current

Emiplovse stack aptions plan payabie® 36672 178 63
Total (A} 366.72 T75.65
Current
Security deposiis received {rom merchant 53237 $18 33
Employee stock oplions plan pay able® 1,589 66 2074 1
Compensation prvable towards senlemen of stack oplions ® 6333
Chargeback payable 251 0% [EL R
Payable 1o merchanis Te9 0l 26002
Warchant balance held ba bank 32101 368 73
Customer eepayment liabilin** 1249 4244
Amount refundable lo consumers**” 17143 17139
Manogement service charge* ™ ® 53560 20405
Payzble 1w MiH o account of business acquisitran (Refer Note 46} - Tak 62
Cashback paable 1263 -
Cotletlion pa able an atcount of assipned loans 77 5099
Qihers L6234 2532
Total {B) 4.611.69 508148

=

Total (A+B) ALl LRELL

* Emplovee stock aptions plan payable represenis amount povable 19 emiplo) sft on 2ecoumt of share appreciation rights

ey

e

The Growp has foe nodal
ipvelving inlermediares The balancs in nodal p
This represents the amownt {ving under citrag wallel

T ludes TR, 327 08 {March 31, 2023, TR 370 93 } payable w0 related party (Refer Mote 41}

d fram on

money

{Thus space has been teft Blnk intengonally)

with various banks The nadal accounls e aperated 13 per Reserce Bank of india (RETY guidell
underaken and is used for senling dues bo vaniouw

10 seul b ol gy tor gl

hants as per RBI gubd

ic Py 1ransaetiong




Payll Paymenis Private Limited

CIN: UT2408MEH2006 P TC293037

] &

Notes to C Tidated Fi
Amounts in INR millivns, unless otherwise atated

for the year ended Macch 31, 2024

Particulars

For the year ended

March 31, 2024

For the yesr ended
March 31, 2023

25 Revenur {rom contracts with custamers
A.  Saleof service
- Payment Service provider 34,128 85 29,736 3%
- Technology sendce provider 2,106 37 2417 87
- 'Finan¢ial services 122102 358207
B.  Qther operagng revenue 1063 63 58579
TFotal revenue covered under Ind-AS 115 L5 3842208
Pisaggregared details of revenue:
The: disaggregaton of the Group's revenues from contracts with custamers is given below.
A, Suteaf service
{iy Payment Service provider
Payment Service provider 33,400.94 26,735 35
Others £37 91 -
TFotal [ENFENT] et
(i) Technology service provider
Transsction fees 1,696 11 1,51031
Software development and suppor services 268 54 546 40
Others 234 70 361 16
Total L)t LANTET
(3ii) Finamcizl services
faterest incoms oa [oans measured 9L amortized cost 5,475 63 4,368 27
Commission income 248 59 25796
Sarvice and Fee income 1,012 57 433 58
Informaton techrology service income - .
Assigament of loans 454 23 522126
Tatzl TITLEE £.84% a7
o
Taotal (A} e §7,736.2%
B. Other operating revenus 1,063 63 &85 719
Total {B) Ll AN £85.79
Revenue fram operations (A+B} _=i1 3R.422.08
Motes:
{iy Geographical disappregation
In the following Lables, revenue is diszpgregated by geagraphy This is ¢ that is disctosed for each reporiable segment under ind AS 103 The proup betieves thal this disaggregadon
best depicts how the nature, amount, Giming and yncertainty of sur revenues aad cash fowi me alfected by indusiry, market and other economic factors
. Far the year ended For the year ended
Fatticulars March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
Within India 43933 40 7507 80
Quistde India ate 47 919 28
Toal 440 T JE22.60
(it} Unsatisfied performance obligation
The flluwing table shows uasatisfied p ¢ oblhst Iting from fxed-price long-term confracts
Farticulars Fuor the year ended For the year ended
Mlarch 31. 2024 archk 31. 2023
(2) Aggregate amount of the wanssction price allocsted to long-emi contracts that are partially or fully ing date 109 24 1587 66
(B} Management expects thak the transaction price allotated 1o the unsatisfied contracts will be recognised 55 revonue
- during lhe next reporting year 10928 64 33
«+ Renaining there after = 278
(i3} Timing of revenur recognition
Revenue from sade of services and other op are Ferred to the ¢ from suppart services and perocessing fee is yansferred over 2 period of ome
{iv) The Geoup has d d that its Wi ¢ 3 do not condwn 2 $i
e I"-} -
- o
Leklity o

%,
b

=| Charlers




PayU Payments Private Limited

CHG U72400MB2068TC223037

Notes to Consolideted Financial Statements for the yezr ended Murch 31, 2024
Amounts io INK millions, unless otherwize stated

26 Otherincomse

i For the year ended Fuor the year ended
Particulars
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
Interest income on
- Bank depeosits 32279 131 14
-~ Security deposits 662 352
- Income tax refund 56.83 473
- Loans G -
Provision no longer required wrilten back 067 5415
Liability written back 255 37116
Ciain on disposal of property, plant and equipment {net} 132 -
Miscellaneous income 0274 206 48
Totzl 693.53 487.18
27 Cost ofservices
Particulars For the year ended For the yesr ended
Marck 31, 2024 Plasch 31,2023
Credit businesa
[nterest on borrowings for Mnance bustness 1,549 63 757 2%
Digita] Payment busioess
Payment gateway Lost 2935215 24,453 90
Collection and repayment expenses 451 89 30862
Loan processing and verification charges 126 85 109 35
Sales support axpenses T68 85 410 69
Drata cente charzes 8 5% ]
Diata card charges . 5823
Software subscription charges 122 66 s
Furst loss defaull gueranies {FLDG)Y expenses 40399 &6 62
Service fre and copmission expensy $64 22 105403
Loss on forsclosure charges - 1245
Software licence and hosting fee 4609 4127
Card printing Charges ilé 172
SMS Charges 214 57 156 %94
Dnber cost of services 6731 181 68
Total IRETEAE FTAE
23  Employee benelits expense
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 Maorch 31, 2023
Salaries, wages and bonus (Refer note 37) 3491 74 5,397 05
Conmribution 1o provident and other funds 22207 211 30
Compensated absences 63 66 1066
Gratyity expenses {Refer note 373 6622 &0 29
Share based payment expense {Refer noe 383 116220 237589
Staff welfate expenses 102 83 o0 59
Total T, T 05 TH
29 Finzace <osis
n For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2024 Mareh 31,2023
Interest an :
-Financial ligbilities measured 3t amortised sost
- Borrowings 842 5010
- Lease lizbilites 9717 3743
- Micre, small znd medium enterprises 3136 067
Total 1{48.95 88.2¢
30 Depreciation and amortisation expense
. For the year ended For the year ended
Eagticalis Mareh 31,2024 Alarch 31. 2023
Diepreciation vn property, plant and equipment (Refer note 3) 47 10 3407
[?rp-:;_n.i.-uﬂ-rj!l-ﬂ-ll.u asaets {(Refer note 4) 236 70 132 90
Wgrm assets (Refer note 5) 51.3% 5542
e ) 335.18 1ag.5%
I} § ... 1I = 1
[{ = Charlered | -
1|-= | Actounianis | !
B =L A i
W, A
Bl T e oy
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Payll Payments Private Lintited

CIN: U72400MH200ERPTC293037

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemenis for the year ended March 31, 2024
Amuogats in INR millions, unless otherwise stated

31 kmpairment 2llowance and write-off of financial assets

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31,2024

For the year ended
March 31,2023

tmpairment allowance on loans and receivables

Exgepted credit loss 33214 65612
Written of f** 181121 R54 07
Bad debis recovered - v
s
Tatal {A) LITLEs 1L.3ns
Impairment aliowance on other fingacial ascts
Excepted credit loss
Trade reccivables 58 94 3349
Excess interest recaivable 70 250
COther receivables” 388 -
Written off
Trade receivable writien off 2113 133
Receivables witten of 125 66 137 61
Total (B) 223.67 215.13
==
Tatal (A+B) x.417.57 1,735.32
e
Nates:

* [mpairment on loans, receivables and consumer receivables is neted ofl / adjusted with acerual related 1o First Loss Default Guarantee (FLDG

262 80)

*& The group in accordance with its policy has written ol loan asscls amounting to Rs. DNR 1 363,81 (March 31, 2023; INR 318.0%) which are overdue fo

} arrangements amounting fo TNR 374 28 {(March 31, 2023 TNR

r more than 180 days and conswnec receivables

amounting to INR 445 40 (March 31, 2023, INR 891 57) which are overdue for mare than 30 days . oul of which Ml (March 31, 2023 INR 253 59 has been disciosed as excepuonal items

32 Qther expenses

Particulzrs For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023

Markeung and promotioral expenses 134 12 5759
IT and relaied cosis 35733 176 3%
Legal and professiona! expenses 8731 62 &£14 83
Managcment Fees {refer note A1) () 384 23 577 74
Hosting and bandwidih exprnse 83232 860 55
Rates, waxes and fees T421 o6 &7
Provision for chargeback 134 96 4818
Travelling and conveyance 13745 124 15
Oflice mantenance 35828 21977
Audilors remuneration 4358 1357
Communication 41 M4 3374
CSR Expendilure 37 '
Bank charges 19 24 §62
Power and Fuel 2432 1138
nsyrance 1004 2136
Loss on foreign currency transactons and wanslatons (net) 3863 $044
License Fevs - Thought Machine 18673 =
Rent {Reler note 4} 17035 190 8%
Repairs & maintenance 5978 0 68
Suppor services fee 423 318
Net {loss) on disposal of property, plant and equipment . 190
Miscellaneous expenses k| 8353
Director sitting fees 040 -
Tarzl 4.053.06 3.507.28

# Payl) Payments Private Limited has entercd into an Unilateral Advance Pricing Agreement ("APA™) with the Central Bourd of Direct Taxes {"CBOT"} on August 28, 2023 pettaining 10 the internalional
5 of paymant of gement cross charges ko its assuciated entecprise {"AE") namely MIILL Payments Holdings BV Netherlands The temms of the said APA entered with the CBDT shall apply to
consecuative five years commencing from FY 2020-21 to FY 2024-25 As per the terms of the agreed APA. the aforementioned ransaction shall be considered to be al arm *s length, if it does not exceed 3% of
the operating ravenue from the third parties

For Financial year 2021-22, where the expense was more than 3% of the operating revenue, Payll Payments Prvate Limited bas raised an invoice to its AE aad will bring back money in india Alse, Payll
shall file modified tax retums for the respective Minaneial year showing IR 133 42 25 income




Fayl) Peyments Frivate Limited

CIN: UT2400MEH2006PTC293037

Nutes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
Amouats in INR millions, unles otherwise stated

33 Exceptional Item

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March Bf, 3004 March JM, 2028
Ermplayes benefit expense” (36 543 (874%
Loss ailowance on loan assets** = (8355%)
Profit on sale of investment*** - 61924
Total {36,541 {323.841

These costs pertain to expenses mcurred in the process of rightsizing as pant of a restructuring program aimed at optimizing the utilization of the workforce During the financial yesr ended on March 31, 2023,

the Group implemented workforce reductions through layoffs

“* Craneg (e year endied March 31, 202, the Groug B dasscontsoed duboromend of cred [sednas. i3 pro-jaid pyme wamranis [PPT L nemaly Lacy Cand jrrminy w crrnen regeleory develajamenin
} brat pd ermind 3 d.-l-mll--:!'l:l.:’-“:‘:ll-n-.ud'bfduI.irp-i-nln:-l’l‘:«mﬂ:dmhhlimmHMtHdthﬁMWHmdhﬁﬂ

treramses | PP Isscers chirdyng that m lerns of paragiaph 7.3 6f 84 Manes fheccton s Frepsd Paymarn imsiruements (P ded Asgiem 37, 2021 o ameralod fom e b 1w, PP casncd be o’

yobadiod From credil s, s prvular dased Srptersber 2, D032 beanng rofe mon mursber DO& CRE RET AT 0F 0807260871 s Crasbilinat o Digital Lending sliich bed i 3 lom BIR 535 34

**% The company has dispessd all 100% of its Compulsery Convertible Preference Shares in Payl! Finance India Private Limited to Paysense Pie Limited for 3 consideration of TR 4,547 43 on Drecember 23,
2022, The divestment bai bses gpproved by the board of the Group tn ther board meeting held on December 19, 2022 Gain on sale of such shares is disclosed a3 an exceptional ilem in the cansolidated

staternent of profit and loss

-+

34 Tax expense

Parti For the year ended Faor the year ended
articulars
March JL, 2624 PMarch 31,2023
Current tax expense® 141216 1 08
Delerred 1ax expense { (benefit) 148 38 {143 8
1.560.54 £142.72)

Total

One of the subsidiary of the group, Wibmo lac has paid taxes amounting to INR 1,393 41 in USA jurisdiction on account of Lransfer of Enstage Seftware Private Limited by Wibmo lnc to MIH Payments
Holdimg B ¥ pursuant te change in sharcholding seuchure

The Income tax expanse for the year can be reconciled to the accounting protit as fallows:

Profit/ {Luss) before tax — {23 1HLET) [ ]
Tncome tax using the Company's domestic Lax rate® 25 1% 2517
Expected Lax expense (6R2.98) {71819
Tax effects of amounts which are deductible for 1axable income {612 58) {292 63)
Tax related to expenses not deductible for incgme tax 41013 714 85
Losscs and unabsorbed depreciation on whith defemed lax not recognised 1,253 90 243 54
Ohther lemporary difference on which deferred tax not recogmised {1597} 1295
Effzct of change vt 1ax Tate . -
Tax effect of higher tax rate in different junzdiction {5 33) (241)
Tax on capital gam recognised 1,393 41 .
Reversal of deferred tax assct 148 38 -
Others v
Other nems (324 87} {61 08)
Profit on sale of mvestments (000} {3516}
Dreprecialion and 1on on PPE and intangbl {355} {3 55%
Income tax recopmized in the statement of Profit or Loss LR [142.73)

{Thiz space hag been left Blank intentionally)




Payll Payments Private Limited

CIN: UT2408MH2006PTC253037

Motes 1o Consolidated Fi tal § {5 lor the year ended March 31, 2024
Amounts in INR millions, unless otherwise stated

Deferred tax

(i} The batance comprises temporary differences altributable Lo:

0

a5

Partiiculers Marech 31,2024 March 31, 2623
Preferred tay assel
Provision for cmployee benefits 7462 49945
Share based payments 478 00 4929
Provision for first foss default gusrantee (FLDG)Y 289 49 96
Security deposit 066 429
Lass allawance on financial assets 51330 100 90
Provision for chargeback 320 33 96
Pravision for impairment of invesimenis 26875 -
Lease lisbility 24335 174 55
Revenue adjustment-ICDS impact 1197 2820
Mot Fareign exchange differences {unrealised) 38 .
Disallowance dus w nan dedoction of TDS - 2693
Deferred Revenuc 08 1238
Other Hems 050 050
Carrry forward Lax losses 486 14 b el
Tatal deferred tax asset {A) 6,553.87 4,775.43
Deferred tax lizhility
Praperty, plant and equipment and Intang ibles 8467 1,963 29
Right of use asset (ROU) 22815 168 57
Becervable on account of FLDG 94 20 -
State deforred {2x credit 36 61 977
Unamoruzed processing fee - borrowing 17388 516
Excess Inferest recoivable 11632 44 63
Total deferred Lax liabilty (B} Ly R 53 2,194.02
Deferred tax asset (net) |A-8} 5,976.05 2,581.41
Deferred tax asset restricted to deflerved tax Bability (C) 577.82 2,194.02
- 14132

Deferred tax asset recognized

Note:
i The Group offsels vax assets and Liabilities if and ondy o it has a legally enforeeable ruht 1o set off curment tax assets and current tax lisbidities and the resultant deferred vax assels and defemed tax Lhabilities

telale to income Laxes levied by the same tax authority
2 Grioup has not recoanized a net deferred tax asset on account of URCENinty on availability of luruse taxable profits which can be utilized against these brovght forward tax losses Further, allowability of

brought forward tax losses of company may be scrutinized by tax authorities in future

Uaused tux losses on which no deferred tax asset i3 recogaised in Balance sheet

Mureh 31, B804 March 31, PEG3

Unused tax losses 15,040 82 L9209 51
Tux tmpact on unused tax tosses 381132 2150 74
Unused depreciauen allowance 4,170 54 4,148 73
Tax impact on wused deprecistion alowance 1,04% 64 1,044 15

Note:
The Group has tax losses which arose in India (except in case of Wibmo) and that are available for offsetting for eight years against future taxable profits of the Group in which the losses arose Majority of
these losses will expire between March 2024 to March 2030. The Group also has unused depreciation 3llowance which arose in Tndia {except in case of Wibme) and which is available for offsesing for

mdefinite period against future taxable profits of the Group s which the Yosses arose

The aforeasid tax losses anid unabsorbed depreciation will lapse in the years as foll

March 31. 2034

March 37. 2023

Within 0-5 yoars 3,83766 4,320 00
Fromt 5-10 years 8,967 94 538334
Unlimited 6,508 46 4,772 4
Components of Other Comprehensive Incorge (OCD)

For the year ended For the year ended

Particulars

March 31, 2024
=

March 31, 2023

[tems that will be reclassified to profit or Toss

Exchange diifs on lation of fareign op

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Rempasurements of the defined benefir plans

Total =
A e
A AL
oy 0
'\;(.?- AT o |
bl b o

{23 89} 6%
21238 2038
23.07




Payl Pavmrnis Privete Limited
Notes te Cimaslidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Amounts in INR millions, unless otherwise stated

. For the year ended For the year ended
Parti
axtiian March 31 1024 March 31, 3023

36 Earviogs per equiky share
Face vaiue per share 16 10
Loss for the year attributable to the equity shareholders {A) {4,295 11} {2,743.18)
Weighted average nuraber of equity shares outstanding dusing the year {B} 2,851,424,724 2,837 916,663
Earnings per share (A/B}
Basic EPS (151) (0.9%
Diluted EPS {151} ©.97}
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FayU Payments Frivale lel!ed
Motes ta £ lidated Fi for the year ended March 31, 2024
Amounts in INR millions, unicss atherwize stated

37

(2}

)]

(i

{iif)

(iv}

{1

(g

{3

Emyployee benefits

Dol coniribmiien ples
Wit Gitiup pays poorvideni fumil ibutions ta the Regional Provideal Fusd © iorter 3 pot the Employees’ Pravident Funds and Bsssllsasous Provisions Act, 1952, The Group has no further payment
hlipabans once B camrisns have been paid. The contdbutions are acoomnind e as defined contribusion plens and are recognised m pplepas benefits expense when they are due.

The Group has g the following for Employer's ibutions to the Providemt Fund, Empl Seate I Matiora) Peasion Scheme and Labowr Wetfare Fund conteibution in the
Restated Consolaled Bistement of Prafs smd Lass, The contributians paysble to the plan by the Group i ns at the rate specified in m!es to the scheme

The Group has goized the following in the Covsolidated & of Profit and Loss:

. For the year ended For the year ended
Particutars March 31. 2024 el 31, 2023

Coplnbytions to provident fund 221 49 21082
COther funds 058 046

Defioed benelit plans - Geatuity
The Group provldcs t‘ar gratuity for cmptoyees as per Pryrmest of Gratuity Act, 1572 a5 ameaded Damplapney wis are in Comluman mrise for § years are eligible for giendy The amaunt of gratuly payable

an is the emplayees ast drawn Buasse sy per month proportienately for 15 iy wslary multiplied foi skl of Fampletcd years of sarvice The ety stheme covers substantially all
regular employees C an: ialty d ined at yoar-end Gains and losses of changed sctuanial assumptions are charged ta Other comprehensive income

. Grafuity is a defined benefit plan and Group is exposed to the following righs:

Interest rate risk:
A fall in the discount rate which i linked to the Gaverment Sceunity Rate will increase the present value of the lisbality requiring hipher provision

Salary Risk:
The present value of the defined benett plap tiability is caleulsied by reference to the fubure salasies of members As such, 4n increase i the sakiry of the members more than assumed level will iperease the
plan’s bahdity

Asset Liability Matching Risk:
The plan faves the ALM risk 25 10 the matching cash Bow. Group has to manaye pay-out based od pay a3 you g0 basiz from own funds

Mortatity risk:
Since the benefits under the plan 73 not payable for Gfe time and payable ull retirement age only, plan does not have any Moagevity

. Actuarial Assumpliony

Tn aceordance with Ind A% 19 - Emplayes Benefits, the 13! valuation for the id defined "benefit” plans is based on the Falluwing assumprions.

. Far the year ended For the year ended
arti
Feurticulary March 31. 2024 Bl 3, 2023

Discount rate GO0% -7 13% 71387 39%
Salary escalation rare ERIl B00%5 - 10.00%
Expected future working fif Pil-3098 3193-2868
Mortatiy cable 100% IALM (2012-2014)  TALM {2012-2014)
Withdrawal rates {in %age)

Up to 30 years 5% - 52% 0%+ 25%
From 3i to 44 years 504+ 52% 20% - 25%
Above 44 years 5% - 52% 24% - 25%
Retirement agw 60 years G0 yaars

The follming Balsles summarises the compadents of aet benefit expense/ income recoguised in the Conseliduted Statement of Profic and Luss, Consolidared Dther Compretensive Income and
d in the Cansolidated Balance Sheet :

Changes in defined benelit obligation

Asat Asgat

Parti
culars March 312024 Nlmrch 31, 2023

Drefined beneht obligation at the beginping of the year 171 2% LA
Azquisivion adjustment .

Trieerest cost 1243 990
Fast service cost i4 54} B
Current service cost 93 3154
Benefit paid directly by the Group {21 {17
Actuznial {gain} Moss {15.69) (21207

Defined beaelit oblipation at the end of the year 196.16 17125

Changes in the fair vatue of plan aysets

Azt As at

Particulars Mareh 31, 2024 Mmrh 31, 2023

Fair Vialue of plan sseis at the beginning of the year 2206 2133
Expecied Intercst intame 1 63 1538
Coninbytions = .
Benehis paid 5 =
Actuarial gain floss) [ S [ B
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 290 2206

Bifurcation of present benelit obligation (PBO) at the end of year in curveat and non current provisions

. As at As at
Farticulars March 33, 2024 filwial 332023

Cufrent 1764 21 40
Men-curreat
Total ] FE0 s tig vl of year

5*<m3




Payl) Payments Private Limited
Mores to O lidated Fil ial & for she year ended March 31,2024

Amounts in INR miltions, untess atherwise stated

{iv) Argoun! included in the Consalidated Batance Sheet avising in respect ofits defined benefit oblipationplass

(¥t} Sensitivity analysis for the defined benefit obligarions®

9 As at As at
*: I
2riseuan Mareh 31. 2024 b 31, 2023
Present value of delined benefit obligation plans 196 16 17125
Fair value of plan ass¢ts 153% 2206
Nel defined benefit obligation 17978 149.19
¥}  Amoun! anised in the € lidated of Frofit and Less
: For the year ended Far the year tnded
Particulars March 31, 2024 Mllrks 31 2023
Cuwent servics $05t 5993 5194
Past service cost (4341 aod
nterast eost 1245 9 90
Actud) rerern on plan assels {0 K1} il 3131
E gnized in the Consalidated of Prafit and Loss §6.2% 60.29
{vi} Amount recogaised in the Consolidated Other Comprehensive Income
7 For the year ended For the year ended
Zyesiurs March 31, 7024 sl 31. 2023
Retern on plan assats, exeluding amounts included in interest {eqpenseincome 169 (082
Gainf{loss} from change in demographic assumptions 780 L 5%
Gaintloss) From change in finaneial assumptions 96 3199
Expenienge gains/i{losses) §92 (42.37)
Total amount recognised io alher eompreheosive income 1135 20.3%

Particufars

For the year ended
March 31. 2024

For the year ended

lasain 372023

Impact of changs in discount rate

Present value of obligation st the end of the year 196 16 1712s

- Irnpract due o increase in 0 50% - 1% {412} 49N

- dmpac due to decrease in 0 50% - 1% 422 332
Tmpatt of the change in salary incroase

Present value of obligation at the end of the year 196 16 17125

- Ipact dus 1o inerease in §.50% « 1% 196 474

(39N (4 #8}

- impact due to decrease in 0 50% . 1%

*Sensitivities due te and

The above sensitwity analysis i based on a change in an assnption while holding &l other sssamplio

ithd ¢ are pot materia] Hence, the impact of change dug to these i not calewdated.

ns constant In prectice, this is unlikely to ocour, and changss in some of the assumptions may be cometatad

actuanal ptions the same methad {present value of the defined benefit obligation calcutated with the projacted uit credit

When caleulsting vhe sensitivity of the defined benefit abligation te sig

riethod 2t the erd of the reporting period) has been applied a5 when calculeting (he defined benehit liability reconised in the Consalidated Batance Sheet

{viii) The expected maturity analysis of gratuity is as follows:

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particutars March 31 1024 Slpreh 1, 2023

YWithin the nesa 12 months 3764 2140

Berween 2 and 5 years 104 33 a4

Between 5 and |0 years 40 26 6657

Fotal Expected Paymenna 202,23 17841
(ix) Average duration of defined benefit obligationsg

3 For the year ended Far the year ended
Particulary March 31, 2024 Al 31, 2023
Average durstion of defined benefit obligations 183 -1435 3143-386

{x) The major catepories of plans assels are as follows:

, For the year ended Wmr i year ended
Particulars March 31, 2024 Nlmreh 31, 2023
Funds mansged by [nsurer 539 1206
Tuatal 2949 2206

The group has iwested duning the year ended Masch 31, 2022 in gratuity funds which i sdminisered theough Life Trsuranee Comporstion of Dudia.
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fayl) Payments Privite Lirnited
MNutes to Consofidated Fi ial § for the year ended March 31, 2024
Amounts in [NR millions, unless otherwise stated

k]

A,

-

Ehare hazed paymenls

Naspers Limited (Maspers’) has offered certain emplayees of the Company various equity campensation plans, te majority of which are classified a3 equity setfed, [n terms of these plans, smployees are offered avarnds in
the: Form of ither share options, cestricted stock wnits CRSUT or share appreciation rights {'SARY.

All awards ere granted subject fo the completion of a reguisite service (vesung] period by employees, canging fom one year 1 four years Unvesied awards are subject Lo forfeiture on termination of emgloyment Vesting
takes prace in hes depending on the durakon of the wea! vesking peried

Ins respect of the share options and SARs on ise date, follows Yetion af e veiing period, awsrds are settted with employees in the equity instruments of Maspers Limited or its subsidiaries for equity-seiied

5 F

plans and in cash o other essets for cash-settied plans, where applicable. n respest #f BB, awards are automatically seetled in Naspers Limited equity insiuments on the vesting date

The geoup share wusts hold Maspers shares (a5 shaseh Ideis) to setde awards hald by smployces of the Naspers and Prosus group. These share trusts were founded by Nasgers to administer the Nospers group share
schemes for all employees

RSUs are granted with an exercise price of zero. All SARs are granted with an exercise price of not less tan 100% of the f2it velue of the SARS on the date of the graat All cancelied options/RESUSSARS are cancelled by
rrafual b the emp! and employ

RESTRICTED STOCK UNITS AND SHARE APPRECIATION RIGHTS
Restricted Stock - Equity Sertted Share Bared Payment Arranpement:

The detzits of the change in options issued by the group under various share based plans are a3 foltows:-
A. Waspers Restriceed Stack Plan Trust {'Naspers R&1ry

Linder shir My I plisn, abusre iy pairy b piisstnd. ot e grrcie prige of 0ot less than 100% of the markent walue of the dhsn at the Gme of the grant. The Nospers shares are outomamsally settied with the
b iad e & ey rnpovirer wrilveg divkd The Knpon Rodreied Fash Plam Trusl may issue no rmore than 700800 awards in sggrepite during any one finencial year. This plan is clasifiad 55 equity-settied at

Nmpa'y brerl Tl vysteay paraad n ever fomar priis siih 35% vastasg sl o

Th wng btad vermpe Bur wslug has been calculated by an extemal valuer using the Bermudan Binomial oprion pricing model, uging the follswing inputs and pii

3] March 2024 31 March 2023
Weighted averape fuir value 2t measurement date (in ZAR) o - 1,251 2%
Weighted zverage exeroise price {in ZAR) . 260000
Weighted average expected volatility (in %), d ined using histarice] annual P Tt - o
Weighted average option life (in years) = 250
Weighted average dividend yield (in 26} - %
Weighted sverage nsh-free interest tate {in %53, based on 7o ree bond vield 1.72%
\Weighted average annuzl sub-optimal rare 4 180 DO%
bl kengr fu nplifr fesrimn thy sre

Fi Sharch 2024 - 31 Mareh 2023
Paricutars Number ol options  Weighted average MNumber of Weighted sverage
vrercise price (LAR) aptions exercise price (ZAR}

HBalance at the beginoing of the year 162 . 5535 -
Gronted during the year ' - & .
Movements (In/Out) s
Farieited during the year . . {190y -
Exercisid during the year [11:74] 2600 (292) 2,600
Lispiced during rhe vear L . - -
Cancelled dusing the year = . 5
Balance at the eod of the year - 162 -

11 Shers iR gasmpdir g chy o of 1w o

The share opuon putstanding 21 the ond of year had remaining contracheal (ife of Mil (2021 & 24 years)

B. PROSUS RSU (ELR):
Prosus NV Share Award Plan has bren inoduced duting the year. Under (he Scheme, ro more than 5% of the isued shace capitel of Prosus NV may be granted in the Prasus RSU. One quanier of the awards will be

vested on yearly basis. Awards under the scheme wili be settted ically with particip on vesting date
g Py nubdp gfchy epycsen
The weighted sverage fais value has been calenlated by an external valuer using the Benmudan Binomial eptian pricing mode], using the following inputs 2nd Zssumpions:
31 March 20%4 31 March 2023
Weighted sverage Fair value ot measurement dote (in EUR) 4% 49- 6615 52T
Weighted average share price (in EUR) 4% 49- 64 35
Weighted average sxercise price i) Ll
Weighted average expected volasility {in %4 - determined using historical daily share prices 0% 0%
Weighted overage oplon life {in years) 1] 10.00
Weighted average dividend yield {in %) 0% %%
VWeighted sverage risk-free interest rate [in %4}, based on z¢r0 At pand yield 2 44% - 2 48% 172%
Weighted averane annual suthoptiems] rate {4 180% 180%
Weighted average vesting period (years) 251 25-300
el A oo b oprisiga fRCEE 1he vape
FLERET ] 221
Particulars Number of ¢ptions
Batance at the beginding of the year 476 366 153,002
Movements {Ta/Out) (1A R {11,297}
Granted during the year 308,790 4431618
Forfered during the year {30527 {82,658}
Exrreiied _ﬂu:q'?;l:p" {119,680} {37.272)
i 4,237 .
! Bl hamng st iy 4 (2.992) 10,973
/ s at the end of WhE e 581,309 476.366

| Charered | |
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PayU Payments Private Limited
Notes to C idated Financial § for the yesr ended March 31, 2014
Amounts in INR millions, untess otherwise stated

ELESyere sptioest ingliimnilis w8 he ool ol ihor poss
The share vption outstanding at the end of year had remaining conractual life of .05 years {2023: 9 24)
arim Mish1s AN € sk Soirbed Sl Wil Fssmsrrs Arvempresst]
C. MITF Fintech Hotdings SAR Pran (Global Fayments}
Duswg s ywse MIH Fintech Holding BY SAR plan and MEH Paymsmis Heldengs BY SAR Pian {20270 huvn Bcn merged as one glan namely MIH Fintech Holdings SAR Pl | Glaka] Paymenis),

Undar st 3411 Fintech Holding BY Share Appreciation Rights (RAR) Bsbaae, no more then 2.5% of ihe kel number of ardinary shares is available for issue. SARs mey b grawied vtk an exercise price of not less than
1605 of the fair value of the SARs at the time of the granl This plan is classified 03 cosh-seiled at Nasper's level All offurs vest cqually over fous years. SAR offors expire after 10 yoars fram date of offer

The weighted average foir value has been calculated by 2n axterng] valuer using the Bermudan Binomisi option pricing model, using the following inputs and 1
31 Mlarch 2024 31 March 2033
Weighted avecage Fair value st reeasurement date {in USS) 375
Weighted average share price fin USS) 283
Weighted average sxercige price {in US55} 1363
Weighted average expected volarility (in %3, 46 40%
Weighted average option life (in yesrs) 501
Weighied average dividend wield (in %2} o 0% v
Weighted average risk-free interest rate (in 4 08% v
Weighied aversge sub-optimal rate {in %5} 1808%%
Weighted average vesting period {in years) 250 -
by Changes in SAR during the year:
31 Slawrlh 2024 3 31 hfareh 2023
Particulars Nunaber of aptiony Weighted average Number of Weighted averape
taercise price (USD) aptions exercise price (USD)
Balance at the beginoing of the year B 531,930 50 40 - 100 39 48,564 B 73
Granted during the year £3.8%1 1063 ] .
Movements {1n/Cut) {1,675} S1 4G - 82 38 6,304 9518
Forferted during the year {201,306} 205%- 104 36 {5.104) 113 3¢
Execcised during he year {129.45%) 301 - 5660 {8,920} 88 66
Reinstatement 160,352 13 U4 L .
Expired during the year " . £
Cancelled during the year . 2 . - .
BaJagce at the end of the year 7 60,693 £5.97-101.76 40,84 100.39
Vested 221987 27,229
hnvested 238,706 13,615
31 March 2034 = 31 Marzch 2023
Weighted average Weighted average Weighted average  Weighted average
egercise price {in remaining condrachual exerche price (i remaining contractual
USs) Iife [yesrs} U5S) 1ife (years)

MM Fintech Holdings SAR Plan {Global Payments) 4 ED - 140 26 124-7344 100 3% 6M-754

. MIH Firtech Holding BV SAR plsn
Under the WIH Fioteeh Holding BY Share Agpreciation Rights {SAR') Scheme, no more than 2,14k af the total aumber of ordinary shases is available for issue. SARs may ba prassedd i an wmercise price of not tess than

YO0% of the faif value of the SARS at the lime of the grant, This plan & vlassified as cash-setled ni Masgar's level, All offers vest equally aver fout years. BAR offers sapeon afier 18 s feen date of offer. During the year
MiH Fintech Holding BY SAR plon and MIH Payments Holdings BV SAR Pian (2022) hove been merged as one plain namely MIH Fintech Holdings SAR Flan (Global Payments}

il Fahr sule ol ther SRy

The weighted sverage fair value has been celoulated by an external valuer using the Bermudan Binomial opiion pricing mode), using the following inputs and sssumpiions”

ﬁl\"{au‘h 2024 31 March 2023
Weighied aversge fait value at measuremen date (in USS) E - 393
Weighted average share price {in USE) 5 S0
Weighted average owercise price {in US3) = 1601
Weighted average expected volatitity {in %), determined wiing hisworical znnual Group valuations - 46 97%
Weighted sverage aptian Efe {in years) = & Q0
Weigined zverape dividend yield fin %5) - []
Weighted average risk-Free interest rate {in %4). based on zera rate bond yield & 4 00%
Weighted average sub-optimal cate {in %5) - 1308
Weighted average vesting period (in years) s 250
b} Changes in SAR during the year: n g
L =S 31 March 2024 31 parch 2023

Particulars S !‘(j n_S Q"“""\-\. 4 MNumber of options Weighted average Numbier of Weighted average

it __ . .' i exereise price (ZAR) optians exercise price (ZAR)
Eolance at the beginaing of the year o e 315739 S22 N 130,081 3407
Granted duriny the year = Charterod |2 - . 188 653 10.01
Movements (In/Cut} == | frcouaiinis |0 {318,739} : . .
Forfeited during the year o [ ' i ‘
Exercised during the yoar o /\ 5
Expired during the yeat - .
Cancelled during the yeae 2 .

318,732 G233

Malanyr ol thei dimd 8 W5 rree

<} At the year end nil {2023:32,857) SARs are vested and the balance W (2023265 38215ARs are unvested




Fayl Paymeots Private Limited
Nates 1o Consolidated Financial Stat for the year ended March 31, 2024
Armounty in [NR millions, unless otherwise stated

E. M1H Pzyments Holdings BY SAR Plan {2022)

Under the PayU Global BY Share Appreciation Rights (SAR) Scheme, no more than 1 5% of the total number oF ordinary sharcs is available for issue SARs may be granted with an exercise price of not less than 100% of
the fair value of the SARs at e time of the grant This plan is classified as cash-sentled at Nasper's level All offers vest equally over four years SAR offers expire after 10 years from date of offer. During the year,plan has

been merged with new MIH Finech Holdings SAR Plan (Global Payments)

2k Fair vy i 1he Sk B

Fadl,

The weighled average fair value has been caleulated by an external valuer using the Bermuden Bingmial option pricing maodel, using the 1 inputs and

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Weighted average faic value at measurement date {in UST) 31 8) - 4031 3237- 3842
Weighted average shara price {in USE) 1290 #$n
Woighted average exarcise price (in USE} 8762 76.72
Weighted avesage expected volatility fin 95), determined using histarical anaual P laaki 42 (% - 42.38% 41 7% - 45 19%
Weighted average oplion life (in years) F85- 19 &
Weighted sverage dividend vield (in %) & ]
Waighted avesage risk-Free interest rate {in %), based on zero rate bond yield 3 54% - 397% 358%
Weighted average sub-optimal fale [in %6} 180% 1§0%
Weighted average westing period (in years) 25 2.5
b) Changes in SAR during the year:
31 4 24
Particutars MNumber of apticns Weighted average
exercist price (USDH)
Balance af the beginning of the year o 195,737 7617
Granted during the year 21,455 8762
iMovements {InOut) (264,530) .
Forfeited during the year {19471 7565
Exgroiced during the year (2,672} 607
Expired during the year - v
Cancelled during the year - =
Balance at the +ad of the year = 52,033 $0.40
Vested 5,163
Lnvested 26,370
31 hfasifh 2024

Weipghted average Weiphted average
exercise price {in remining conirscual
8%y life {years}

31 March 2023

MNumber of Weighred average

Gptions exercise price {USDH

30,312 1w

291,607 16657672

(31,053) 7665 - TG H3

(139 T2 8%

299,731 1617
10,533
283,204

. 31 March 2923

Weighted average  Weighted average

exercize price (o remaining contracual
Uss Life {years)

MIH Payments Hotdings BY SAR Plan {2022) 7289 - 86 62 125-821

B, MIF Paymects Holdings SAR Plan {Indiz Payments)

617+ 7665 S26-895

During the year Maspers Fintech BV SAR Scheme {™Naspers Fintech’) and PayU Globai BY SAR Plan (2020) have bren merged as one plan semely MIH Payments Holdings SAR Plan (India Payments)

The weighted average fair value has beon calculated by an external valuer using the Benmudan Binomizl option pricing mode!, using the following inputs and
31 March 3024 31 March 2823

Weighted average fair value at measurerment date (in LS5} JABT L4003 i

Weiphted average share price [in USS) 1299-8762 .

Weighied sverage exercise prica (m USE) B762

Weighted average expaoted volatility fin %), determined using histarical annuzl company valuations 47 034%% « 42 4%

Weighted average option life {in years) 957- 1001

Weighted average dividend yield {in %) G 8%

Weighted average csk-fres interest rate {in %), based on zeco mte bond yield 3 54% -3 38% -

180% '

Weighted average sub-optimal rate (in %5}
Weighted average vesting peried {in years) 2 50
b} Chaoges in SAR during the yess:
31 March 2024 31 Slaavh 2023
Particutars Number of ophions Weighted average MNugmber of Weighted average
exercise price (TISD !“| TriRh prEe |EE!
Balance at the beginning of the year 261,635 1628
Granted duting the year 155,129 3762 -
Movements (In/Cui} 2,505 76291665 . -
Forfeited duting the yesr {15,047 7943 B
Exerciscd during the year {9.34%) 7611 =
Reinstatemenl 261 Te 65
Expited dunny the year . a -
Cancelled duning the year - . =
Ralapee at the end of the year —— 39533 A0.55 « 84.90 = =
WVested $2.031
Unvested 333307
AN wtiimeding o4 fhe gn 80 ot voor by syereine poiss
E— L T L ] R ey
Exercise prices {tn 1SS} © Number Weighted average Weighied average Excreisable at Weighted average
ding at ini 1 e price {in USH) 31 March 2024 cxercise price fin USE)
31 dlarch 2024 life (years)
—
8762 = 151,206 385-923 B7 62
76 65 - 193,075 225 76,65 7665
1745 4 Llns c?": 4 23,241 5902 7745 7745
7289 :-' Pl i 'J:: 27,816 796 _ 7289 e
Y, o W 336,388 50.53 THE|
| == | Charered ||
S | Becountants [ |
ok f -
W b .
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PayU Payments Private Limited
MNates ta T lidated Financial 8 for the year endeid March 31,2024
Artounts in INR millions, unless otherwise stated

G. Nrspers Fintech BY SAR Scheme {'Maspers Fintech'}

Under the Naspers Fintech BV Shars Appreciation Rights [SAR') Scheme, no more dran 135 of dhar total maambes of rdinasy thases i svaiabis bl rhies SARs may ba gromsed wnk an ensrorss prie of sl b tis
100% of the fair valug of tre SARS at the time of the grant. This plan is classified as equity-seibed o Nusper's bevl. Far all affor made groas e Sk 1, 2018, one il of ke AR peasully vat ol tha wweoniny of
cach of the first, second, Wird, fourth and filth years after the grant date Al offers made from 01 Apnl 2018 et g My vy it yare. SAN pion mgere after (G iy ram ddatm off offar Dhareng i e, la B beon

irerged with now plan pamely MTH Payments Holdings SAR Plan {India Pavments)

Tha wasghnsed aaraga fur walue has been caleulated by an external valuet using the Bermudan Binomial opticn prising made, using the follawing inputs and pAE

_31 March 2024 31 March 2033

Weighted average fair value 3t measurement date {in EUR) . 393
Weighted average shere price {in EUR}) . @80
Weighted sverage grercise price L 1901
Weighted average sxpected volatility {in %4) - determined using historical daily share prices L 46 90%
Waighted average optian life (in ysars) - &0
Weighted average dividend yicld {in %) - 0%
Weighted rverage risk-fres interist rate {in %51, baged on zero rete bond yigld - 3 60%
Weighted averape annual sub-opunal rate (4] - 150%
Waighted average vesting period {years) s 250

b} Chanpes in SAR during the year:
31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Particulars Number of optiony Weighted average Rumber af Weighted average

# [LARY aplisy i prior K]
Balance 3t the beginning of the year 105,345 97 59 B 128,138 8815
Granied during the year - {868y BB 35
WMovements Jo/Gut) (105,445} . ' =
Forleited during the year . - (3.013) 411
Exercised dering the year - - {29065} iy
Expired during the year . & - =
Cancelled during the year . . - -
Balwaey i ihe e ol ohei 5o v = 105,445 92.5%
At the yeer end, Mil {2023: T7,68%) SARs are vested and the belancs Mil (2023: 27,756 SARs are unvested
fEAH sqiv ey i by oyl ofl FNESEAL By PLITIOT DYIE

ShH SARs awrrwmaly avaifable

~——
Weghtad average Weighted average

Exercise prices {in USH) MHumber Exercisable st Weighted average
outstandiag at  reMaining comimectual - exercise price (in LS5 31 hdarch 2023 exercise price (1n USS}
31 Margh 2023 Vil (years}
1 n 495 3910 zl 1910
40 63 1,494 a7t 40 63 1.4%4 40 63
4092 1,629 14} 46 82 1,629 4G 92
35 44 1.61% 424 3844 i,61% 58 42
7516 2,132 525 7516 2132 7516
9518 98,550 [ 9518 70794 9508
105,445 92.59 77,689 $1.66

H. Payl Global BV SAR Plan (2020}

Under the PayU Globsl i¥ Basre Appreciation Bighti (SAR) Scheme, no more than 1% ol tolal number of ordinary sheres 15 available for issus. $ARs may be granted with en axercise prizs sl aot 1#ss than 1008% of
the Fair value of the SAKs i fhe time of the gant. This plan is clessified as cash-serded @1 Marpar's tevel, All offers vest aqually over four years. SAR offers expire after 1O years from date of wife Dwring the year plan has

been merged with new plan namely MIH Payments Holdings SAR Plan (India Payments)

AL vudpr of ke EARY
The weighted average Fair value has been calculated by 3n extemal valuer using the Bermudan Binomisi option pricing model, using the following inputs snd P
31 March 2024 31 March 1633
Weighted average fair valoe at messurement date (in US5) s 921-101%
Weighted average share price {in USS) e nm
Weighted average exercise price (in USE) - 4692
Weightad averags expected volanility {in 32), d 4 wsing histarical annual company valyati - A0 T - 45 19%
Weighted average opuon hife {in years) = 500
Weighied 2verage dividend yield {in %} - L]
Weighted aversge nsk-free interest rave {in %), based on 2010 rate bond yield ] 6%
Weighted average sub-aptimal rate {in 38 ] 130%
Weighted average vestng period (in years) . 250

) Changes in $AR duting the year.
31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Farticulars MNumber of options Weighted average Number of Weighted average
cxercise price (USD) aptions ewereise griu (U3}
Balance at the begioning of the year 160,311 189 204,583 104 06
Granted during the year . - (545} 109 13
Moverneats (InfOut) (160301 Hd .
Forfeited during the ycar v {26,206} 10915
Exercised during the year 1 {17,635} 32 56
Expired during the year s . ' L
Cancelled during the year = - ' s
Batanee at the end sl sy i - 160311 11199
.-.. .'..' "oy

Vested A T - 58,223

4 . 102,088

Unvested |/ -\-_,-'
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Payll Payments Private Limited
Notas to fidated Fi al § for the year ended ¥arch 31. 2034

Amounty in INR millions, unless otherwise stated

31 March 1024 . 31 March 2023
Weighted aversge Weiphted average Weighted average  Weighted average
txercise price {in rémaining contraciual exercise price {in  remaining contrachal
USss; Tife {years} Uss) lile (years)
82386- 14026 759-841

Payl Global BY SAR Plan (2020}

1. PayU Credit BY SAR Plan

Under the Payt) Credit BY Share Appreciation Rights ('SAR'") Scheme, no more than 15% of the total pumber of ordinary shares it available for issue SARs muay be granted with an exarcise price of aot less than 100% of
the fair vatuc of the SARs st the time of the grani This plan is classified as cash-settted at Nasper's level AN offers vest equally over four years SAR offars expire after 10 years (ram date of offer

1 Faie vabug 5 1he 5AHS
The weighted average fair value has been calculated by an extermal vatuer using the Bermudan Binomiel aption pricing madel, wsing e following inputs and pri

31 f¥arch 2024 31 March 2023
Weighted average fair value at measucement date {in US$) & 89 - 34 50 3411 -3715
Weighted average share price {in USE} 35068 6163
Weighted aversge sxercise price {in USS) 23535657 1353 -4592
Weiphted g d volatility (in %), d ined using historical annuzl compeny valuations $1.39% 30 20%
Weighted averege option Jife {in years) G0l 601
Weighied average dividend yvield (in %) 1] ¢
Weighted average nsk-fres interest rate {in %), based on zero rate bond yield 4.08% 3800
Weighted aversge sub-opiimal rate {in %} 1809% 180%
Weighied average vesting period (in years) 251 250
b) Changts in SAR during the year:

31 Warch 2024 - 51 March 2023
Particulars Number of options Wemhted average Nuaber of Weighted average
exercise price {LISD) aptions exercise price (LISD)

Balance at the beginning of the year ] 633,942 327 636,554 3196
Granted duting the year 13,320 5697 132,482 -
Movemenis (In/Qot) (82.383) 3217 {1,524} 3175
Forfetted duning the year (2115231 32 %% (66,006} 3843
Exercised furing the year {233,528} i (67,574} 2198
Reipstatement 7644 13387 -
Expired during the year a = = W
Cancelled during the yoar . - -
Balance at the end of 1he year 182,474 4161 633942 it
Vested 45030 146,595
Phvested 137,444 537,340

Weighted average Wheighted averzge Weighted sverage  Weighted average

eaereise price (in Temaining contrscrual e price {io ining contractual

USE) Tife {years} HEs: fife {years)

Paylf Credit BY SAR Plan 23 53 - 5697 425.7 54 C 2353 4592 525.864

(This space has been lef blank intentionslly)
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PayU Payments Private Limited
Notes to Comsolidated Financial 5t ts for the year ended March 31, 2024
Amounts in TNR millions, unkess otherwise stated

39

39.1

0]

{ii}

382

40

Contingent Liability

—— March 31, 2024 March 34,2023
Claims against the Group sof acknowledged as debis

Consumer forum/ distict courts marters (Refer below (1)) 49,90 g
Tncome tax maters (Refer below (i) 16327 1439
Total 213.17 14.58

a) An incident occumed on March 15, 2023, where PayU, acting as 2 payment agevegator, processed a number of ranssclions onginating from the switch of UBTs service
provider/partrer, FSS, several of which, were suspected to be fraudulent as the same appeared to have been conducted vsing fictitions/ non-existent cards

The total amount thal Payl] is seeking to recover from one of the merchants Dream |1 is §4 2MM oot of which an amount of 3 TV has been recovered by PayU by way of a legal
action and Pending with arbitrator The company considers it to be probable that the judgement will be i its favour and has therefore not recognised a provision in refation to this ¢laim
which is equivalent to INR 322 ma

b} Payl claiming refund of the chargeback seried on behalf of Defendant 1&2 from Kotak Bank against deposit kept by them. Defendant 1 &2 disputed the claim
An Interpleader Suit is filed by M/s Kotak Mahindra Bank (Plaintiff) for the disputed amount of INR 1720 mn claimed by Payl Payments Pvt Ltd. The company considers it to be
probable that the judgement will be in its favour ang has therefore not recognised a provision in relation to this claim,

Based on its evaluations for the above matters, the management believes that the group has strong menits in these cases and accordiagly, no adjustments ase considered necessary al this
stage

(i} Relates to tax demand of INR 3.35 mn & Penalty of INR 3 35 ma from the Income-tax department on transfer pricing adjustment disallowance of centain expenses and other matters
relating to tax assessment year 201213,

{ii} Relates to demand of INR 0.86 mn from the [ncome-tax department on addition of income on account of difference in the receipts accounted in the profit and loss account vis-a-vis
teceipts as reported in Form 26AS relaling to tax assessment year 2014-15 The matter is currently pending with CIT(A) for fresh adjudication

(i) Relates to demand of INR 155 72 mn from the Income-tax depastment on transfer pricing adjustment disallowance of certain expenses relating to tax assessment yesr 2021.22

Other litications with ne significzot impact

The Supreme Court on 28 Februasy 2019, has provided its judgment regarding inclusion of other allowances such as travel aliowances, special allowances, et within the expression
“basic wages® for the purpose computation of contribution of provident fund under the Emplayecs’ Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 There are interpretive
challenges on the application of the said judgment including the period from which judgment wauld apply, conseq tial implications on resigned emplayees, ete and these factors raise

1,

significant uncertainty regarding the tmp tation of the said judgment.

Owing to the aforesaid uncertainty, absence of relisble measurement of the previsions for the earlier peniods and pending clarification {rom regulatory apthomtics in this regard, the
Company has not recorded adjustments, if any, in respect of this matter for earfier yeass.

Commitments
. As at As at
RIERhD March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
« Praperty, plant and equipment 2141 -
- Intangible asscts under development . . 509 56
Total 21.41 509.56
{This space has been left blank intentionally)
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PaylU Payments Private Licated
Nates ta Consolidated Finsncial St for the year ended March 31, 2024
Amounts i INR millions, unless atherwise stated

4]

(i}

(i3)

Related party disclosures
in accord: wath the requi of Indran Ad ing Standard {'ind ASY) — 24 'Related Party Disclosures’ the names of the eelated parties with the aggregate cansaciions and year- end batance with them as

identified and certified by the management in the ordinary course of business and on arms’ length basis are given below:

List of related parties

Related parties where control exists

{i) Ultimate Pasent Company PayU Globa! B ¥, the Netherlends, which is a substdiary of Maspers Lirited, South Afiica

{i1) Parent Company wilH (ndia (Mauritivs) Lirsted (THI December 19, 2023)
MIH Payments Holding B 'V (From December 20, 2023}

{111} Subsidiary Company ij Paysense Services india Private Limited®
ii) PayU Finance India Private Limited®
ai} Wibme Tne*®
iv) Enstage Softwate Private Limited”

v} Lazy pay Private Limited®
vi} Payl India innovations Private Limited

On Decerber 14, 2023, the Group acquired PaySense Services Indip Pvt Ltd (‘PaySense India’) including its whelly owned Subsidiary PayU Finance [ndia Pyt Lid (*PayU Finance'), Wibme tnc ("Wibma™),
Enstage Software Private Lid ('Enstage’) and Lazypay Private Ld {*Lazypay') pursuant to 4 Share Purchase Apreement (the "Share Purchase Agreement”}. Refer note 46

{iv) Associate Company Payl) Finance India Private Limited (Till December 22, 2022}

Other related parties

(i} Feltow subsidiaries / entities under ¢ control with whom (ransactions bave tuken place during the current year and previous years:

+ Aasaamiobs Private Limited

+ Bund] Techrologits Private Limited

- Dotpe Private Limited

- Finwizard Technology Py Lid

- MIH Fintech Holdings BY

- MIEH India (Mauritius) Limited

- MiH Payments Holdiag B V

- MIH PayU BY

«MIH Services FZLLC

«hyriad Services B V

- Niex Transportation Services Frivate Limited
- OLX india Private Limited

- Paysense Pte Lid

= PaylU Credit BY

- PaylU Payments Solutians (Pry) Lid

- Prosus MV Share Award aad Option Plar Trust {Formely, Myriad intematonal Holdings B V)
- Prosus serwces BY

- Red Dot Payment Pte. Ltd

+ Zonz Mobile Limited

{ii} Key mroagement personnel

- Mr Aakash Moonrdhra, Director

- Anirban Mukherjee, Chief Executive Oificer and Director

r Maneesh Goel, Chief Financial Officer and Divector (we £ August 21, 2020 and upto 28 November 2022} and Director (Upte 31 August 2022))
-Mr Arvind Agarwal, Chief Fingncial Officer and Director (we f 19 December 2022}

+ls Anuradha Aggarwal, Company secretary

(This space has been left blank intentionalty)
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Payl) Payments Private Limited
Motes to O fidated Financial Stat ts For the year ended March 31, 2024

Amounty in INR millions, unless atherwise steted

B. Details of transactions with related parties

Particulars For the year ended Far the year ended
March 31, 2024 Mparch 31. 2023
Tssue of squity share capital
« MIH Payments Holding B 7744308 793 10
- Paysense Pre Ltd . 8,561 93
- MEH India (Mauritius) Lirnited 428 34 .
Sale of services
- Aasaanjobs Private Limited v 003
- Bund! Techaologies Private Limited 25628 240 42
-Mrex Transportation Services Private Limitad 000 =
~Finwizard Technotopy Pvi Ltd [Evrd -
- Dotpe Private Limited in 781
- OLX India Prrvate Limited 716 078
- Paysense Fie Ltd 5410 144 9%
« Payll Credit BY 133 2166
Othber income
- MIH Fintech Holding B V. 228 42 10148
- Zooz Mabile Limited 508 489
- Red Dot Payment Pre Lid 69 55 -
- Prosys services BY §18 ]
Cost of services
- Zowoz Mobile Limited TRIS -
ESOF expenses
- MIH internet Holdinga B V. 6948 37232
Reimbursement by company fowards settlement of stock options
« Paysense Pre Lid 3653 94 64
Advance towards Restricted Stock Umits
- MIH Internet Holdings B Y T3 70 1,685.99
Payoaent received egainst restricted stoch units
- FProsus NV Share Award and Option Plan Trust 15276 3845
Fingnce cost
- MIH {ndia (Mauritivs) Limited 695 34 27
Suppart services fee
- Paylf Credit BY 247 261
- MIH Payments Holdmg BV (1 26} -
Legal and professional expenses
- MUH Fintech Holdings BV 1 600
« Payl) Payments Solutions (Pry) Ltd - 263
~ Red Dot Payment Pte Ltd 1364 '
Manggement service charge
- MIH Payments Holding B V 43718 534 93
- biH Fintech Holdings B ¥ & 153
-PaylJ Crednt B Y 4285 3866
IT sad other costs
- Paysense Pie Lid - 114
- PayU Credit BV 698 £.45
- MIH Fintech Holdings BY 456 .
- BIH Payments Holdings BY e t] .
Reimbursement of expease incurred by
- MIH PayU BY 495 4402
- ddyriad Services BY 163 096
- Prosus Services B Y 48 78 004
- MIH Fintech Holdings BV 2311 727
- MIH Services FZLLC 13565 24220
- WiH Payments Holding BV 19435 4316
- Paysense Pte Lid - it42
Recovery of expenses incurred on bebail of
« W{1H Fintech Holdings BY 1308 -
- Red Dot Payment Pte Lid 295 -
Payrafl cost cross cherpe
- MIH Services FZLLC 32 {0 146
Transaclions with key manzgement personnoel *
- Short term employee benefits 36.59 141 25
- Post employment benefus (PF, ESL Grausity eic) - =
= Share based payments 817 13718

* The abave table doesnt include gratuily expenses s the valuation is doae For the company as 8 whole
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PayU Payments Private Licuted
Naotes to Consolidated Fi ial St Ls for the year ended March 31, 2024

Amounis in INR millions, unless atherwise stated

C. The following bal are ding at the end of the reporting period in relation to transsctions with retated parties:
Parliculsrs Asat As Bt
March 31, 2824 March 31 2023
Share capital hefd
Equity share capital
- Infinypool Online Payment Solutions ladia Pyt Ltd . 79
Preference share capital
- PaySense PTE Ltd . 2700
Otber receivahles
- Prosus Services B V 818 =
- Zooz Mol Limited .19 12
- MIH Fintech Holdings B W 125 69 2437
- ‘Byndle Technolagies Fut Lid: 2906 4301
- MIH india {Mauritivs} Limited - 001
-PayU Fintech Investments BY 004 04
- Red Dot Payment Pre 1d £9 55
Trade receivables
- Paysense Pre. Lid : 179.79
« MIH Services FZLLC . i50
«Payl) Credit BY . 044
Trade payables
- InfinyPoo! Online Fayment Solutions India Private Limited ' G2
~MIHP2yU B ¥ 019 -
- MIH Services FZ LLC i 031
- MIH Payment Holding B V. 15233 1827
+PayU CreditB Y ' 1109
« MIH Fintech Holdings B Y 388 1472
« PayU Payments Sclutions (Pry) Led 276 272
- MIH buternel Holdings B V. 8577 2142
- Red Dot Payment Pte Ltd 335 -
Debestures
- MIH India {Mavriius) Limited . 42834
Other financial labilities
- MTH India {Mauritius) Limited . 15206
- Myried Senvices B YV " o618
- Prosus Services BV 14 37 .
-Payl Colombra S.A S 000 .
- WIH Fintech holding B ¥ 2313 3216
- MIH Services FZLLC 8412 13279
- MiH Payments Holding & V 163 0% 42 39
~MlH Payu BY 038 '
- Paysenss Pte Ltd . 1§42
« Zooz Mobile Lid 4202 -
G460

« Payl) Colombia 5 AS

{This space has been 1eft blank intentionally)
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Payl) Payraents Private Limited

Notes to £

Ldared B ey

for the year ended March 31, 2034

Amounts in VR wmillions, untess otherwize stated
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i}

i)

i)

)
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b3

and resgarce

FIR it

Segment Reporting
Description of segments and principal activities
Qperating segments o8 those a of the b whose op results are reguiarly mvssed by the chisf oprrating decision making bady in the Group to rake d Far perly
resotrce allocation and for which infanmation is available iscresly. The regorting of seg il is e same a5 provided to the for the purpose of the perk
allocation to Oie segments
The group has farmed an execulive commities {camprising of the CEQ and CFO) which would assume the primary responsibility around key operating decisions snd resource zllocations and
a5 its CODM and has identified two reportable segments of its business
The reportable segments of the Group comprise of the followang:
Eegreeai Bormipiim of srtiein
Digital Payment Services This part of Business somprises af the Following secvices which is d by the g Iy
1} Paymneed giteasy services for E-commerce wansactions,
2} Web- Techmalapes and consuliancy services addressed to b pracess ing and Inf: ton T lo
3} Risk-based authentication snd payment security refated services,
43 Fraud risk identification, predominantly on India
Digital Finaecia! Services Thig st il B the foli which is 4 by the sgarirly-

1) Lamd g crmflit by sy of parona! loan and dafwmred credit facihty for short term duralion o et basis of the the intemal business

FEPOrUNG systems:
2) Finance releted wehnology services o the third party custamers,
3) Financing through Buy row pay fater {BNPL) services

Y E

about the 3eg;

Geographisal seg are d as "Indiz’ end ‘Ouzide India’ and are based an the domicile of the customers

The i ifttee monitars the op 5 results of s busingss wnits separately for the purpesc of making decmons abaut resource sllocation and
based on profit of loss and is measured conststcmly with profi of 1635 in the fielated (i i The e alse receives i
basis

Operalting Sepments

is

and assels on a manthly

o iy yyme ypedill M DL D801
Particulars Digital Payment Digital financizl services Telal sepments M;alxstlmen.ts a2 Consclidated
eliminationy
Segment Revenue
External customers 36,413 17 2,136 50 a4 S04 §7 - 44,600 37
Inter-segmem T35 45 1,843 01 | 768 46 {1763 461 -
Total Segment Revenue 3722882 G.149.51 46,373,313 F1.768.460 AL A0 AT
Segment Asvets 96,100.41 15.504.71 171,605.12 {105,131.69) 6587343
Segment Liabilitics 3,033.30 3533064 43,363.94 (2,405.61) 40,954.32
Segment Results and Reconciliation of Segment eesulis to ProfitfLoss) before Tax
Profit ! floss) before tax {3,662 81) {1,330 25) {4,993 05 2,258 30 {2,734 59)
interast expense 2485 38 88 63572 51 54} il7e
Other income (607 59) 346 53) (97412 280 60 (693.52)
Share based payment expense 1.446 61 (217 00 1,229 61 (67413 1,162 20
Management cross cherge 417 61 66.67 484 2% . 48428
Exceptional iterms LEsT 74 - BT 74 i1 8E BN B
Trading profit / {fass} (1313600 {1.808.27) {3.120.8%} (LA (1,733.31)
Intercst on lease liabilities {56 82) (39 48} {96 30} {0.38) (717
Amortisation of intangible assets (99.0%) {21.74) {12219 4t (51.3%
Drepreciation on @ngible sssets and ROU {024 {83 253 (273 52) (1027 1283 791
Adjusted EBITDA £967.54) L5768 [2.539.25 1,52%.30 L0096
Yot el Sigreh JF, 1
. L . . . Adjustments and .
Parficulars Bigital Fayment Digital Rpadcial services Total segments P Consolidated
eliminationg
Segment Revenue
External Customer 12346813 4,053 3) 15,422 09 - 3%.422.09
Inter-segment 583 A3 166521 2186 84 (2 186 84} .
Tatal Segrent Revenue 3255180 755712 40.603.93 - ERETS K] 3842209
Segment Assets 26,697.12 45,456.43 14%,153.55 {17,646.08) 124,507.47
Segment Liabilities 114596 2068411 17,833.07 {1.454.23) 2631884
Segiment Results rod Reconcilistive of Segment results to Profit{Lossy before Taz
Prafit / (loss) before tax 298 16 (3,33542) 3.040 16} 149 26 {2,890 89}
[nteres) expense 5076 2096 nmn {20495) G758
Other incame {495 95) (231,50} (728 453 24127 (4B713)
Share based payment expense i,19% 5% 113717 233106 3483 237580
wlanagement ¢ross charge MG 027 31774 - 577 T4
Exceptional ifems LM £ B84 48 376.07 FLERL] 323 85
‘Trading profit / (loss} [NTEET] (1.514.92; £406.00) P AL {49.82)
Tntersst an lease (iabilites (2715 {6 89) (34 64) @ (3743
Amortisation of intangible assets 11299 1783 13082 T 40 {59423
Drepreciation on angible assets and ROU [ 136 635} _T150 29} (26 68} {36 58]
Adjusted EBITDA L.‘;'ﬂﬁ 17,453 58} {0.26} #1426 23400
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PayU Payments Private Limited
Motes to € tidated Fi jal § for the year ended March 31, 2024

Ampunty ie INR millions, unless otherwize stated

Notes:
{i} Adjusted EBITDA is a non-Ind A3 that rep perating profivToss, as adjusted,
a} Dep and isar i (refes note 301

b} Shnre based payment expense frefer note 38)
<} Mensgement crass charge (refer note 32)

dy Excepticnal items {refer note 33}

&) Other income {refer note 26)

f} Interest axpense (refer note 25}

£ Interest on lease lisbilitics (refer note 29)

() Trading {loss)/profit is a non-Ind AS that refiers to adjusted EBTTDA adjusted for
&) Depr ion and isahi T (refer note 30}
b Interest an lease liabilities (refer note 29}

frii) CODM uses Adjusted EBITDA and wading probit a3 measure to anabyss operagonal profuabilivy.

¢) Disaggregation of from with ¢
Sales berween segments are carried su! al enn's length and are elimirated an
transfer of gonds and services over time and ata point of time in the following major product lines and geographical arcas

fidation The ! i d in the same way 35 in the statement of profit and loss The group derives eevenue from

Geographical Infermation

For the year ended Ay at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2024
Particulars Revenue frvm subivual ouil semeiy Nas-rerrind spTanay aust
Brigital payment Begial Bsamiial isrvioni | Digital pryment Digitat financial services
Trdia 35852 33 B.081 05 RIRZ IR 1.493 84
Thaiside India E21 05 5543 i (10 -
Tatal 36.473.37 8,136.5¢ 8.382.38 1,493 84
For the yesr coded As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2023
Particulars Hairmas lram sulesnal customers Nog-current operaling assels
e
Brigital paymeat Digital financial services | Digital payment Digitat financizl services
Trndia 728 5781 ¢4 R 144 3% 1.200 87
i
Outyide India 647 o;?i 27227 600 o
Tatal ¥2.368.17 [ 4.053.51 8.154.35 | 1.200.81

{This space has been left blank intentionalky}




Payll Payments Private Limited
Motes to C tidated Financial § ts for the year ended March 31, 2024
Amounts ig TNR millions, unless stberwise stafed
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i}

{1}

[T}

Fair value and fair value hierarchy
Set out below, is a comparison by class of the cammying amounts and fair value of the Group's financial instruments
. As at As at
Particutars L March 31. 2624 March 31, 7023
Measurement . E n : >
Carpying valoe Fair value Carrying value Fair vafue
Financial Assets
Measured at amortised cost
- Trade recervables Level 3 1,664.57 1.664.57 265170 265170
- Cash and cash equivaients Level 3 10,777.17 1077717 1197473 1157473
- Bank balances other thar above Lewval 3 423142 423142 431390 431390
- Loans Level 3 31,552.15 32,0371.07 16,482 67 1657423
- Other financial assets Level 3 4,783.29 478329 1,634 60 1,634 60
Measured at fair value through other comprehegsive income
- Unquoted equity shares Level 3 71.04 7704 7704 77.04
Total B 08543 5351008 37,134.63 37,226.19
Financial Lizbilities
Measured at amortised cost
- Borrowings Lewel 3 30,963.09 31,029.20 16,163.35 16,176 59
- Trade payables Level 3 1,945 57 1,945 57 1,821 95 1,821 95
- Other financial liabilities Level 3 3,022.03 3,022.03 2,944 84 2,944 84
Total 35.930.6% 35.9%6.80 20.930.15 20.941.78
Naotes:

The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, other Bank balances, trade receivables, rade payables, bank overdrafts and other financial assels / liabilities approximate their
carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of thesc instruments

The Group determines fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities by discounting the coptractoal cash inflows/ cutflows using prevailing interest rates of financial instruments with
similar terms. The initiel measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities is at fait value Further, the subsequent raeasurement of all financial assets and liabilitics is ot amortised

cost, using the effective mierest method.

There are no financial instruments measured at Level 1 and Level 2 faic value as at respective reporting dates
A one percentage point change in the unobservable inputs used in fair valuation of Leve} 3 assets and liabilities does not have a siguficant imspact in its value

Recoaciliation of Level 3 fair value measurement is as follows:

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Balance at ihe beginning of the year Tro4 T
Gains/(losses) recognised in other comprehensive income - .00 -
e 71,04 71.84

Balance at the end of the year

Fair value hierarchy
The carrying amount of those financial assets and financial lisbilities that are not subsequently measured at fair value in the financial stalements approximate their fair values
For financial instraments that are subsequently measured al fair value, the fair value measurement is grouped into Levels | to 3 based on the following fair value hierarchy:

+ Level 1 quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;
+ Level 2 - inputs other than quoted prices included within Level | that are observable for the asset or tiability, either dicectly {i.e. as price} or indirectly {i.e. derived from prices); and
- Level 3 - derived from valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on ebsecvable market data (unobservable inputs).

{This space has been left blank intentionally)
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Payll Payroents Private Limiled
Notes 1o O lidated Finzacial S for the year ended March 31, 2024
Argounts in [INR millions, untess otherwise stated

44 Risk mansgement framework

G

Fe _\&Tﬁ-}ﬂHAEAD| represents the expected exposure in the event of a default and is the gross camying amount in case of the Ainancizl assets held by the Group
AT

The Group has exposure 10 the following fisks ansing from the nancial statements!
i} Credit risk

i) Liquidity risk

i) Market rigk

The Group has formulated 2 prehensive Risk Manag Policy, which covers, interslia, Credit fisk, Liquidicy Ask and Market risk of the arganisaton

This note explains the source of risk which the entity is exposed to and how the enlity manages the risk and the related impact in the financial statements

E_Rieh Ezposure ansing (rom Measurement Rk Management
Credit risk \Cash and cash cquivalents, Loans, Trade receivables and Ageing analysis Bank deposits, liquid funds, high credit rated receivables
ather financial assews i at tsed 041 Credit ratings feom banks, credits limit and collateral
Market risk - Foreign exchange Recagnised financial asseis Hebilides not denominated i |Cash flow forecasting Touc group ovalustes the impact of foraign raw
[ndian Rupee {IVR} Seagidvity Analysis 1 ion by ing ils exp to exch rate
Cash flow Hedge risk of apy material adverse effect on the Company and
in case any forward contracts 1o be ken to cover the
=l
Market risk - Interest rate Bormowings et floating rates TEensiﬁ\'ily Analysis The group s<tively manages its inierest me ask drough
u comprehensive strategy. The group contnuously
manitars irterest rate rends and evaluates the group's
exposure to fluctuat ons in interest rales
SLaskri rok - w Irvestments in equity sécunbies Scasttivity Analysis Portfolto diversification
Liquidity risk Borrawings, Lease habilides and ather Nnancial liobiliges | Bolling cash Row (orecasts Avail abihty of committed ceedit lines and borrewing
facilibies
Credit risk

Credit sk is the sk of Fnancial Toss t Gee Grovp if 3 customer or a counter pasty to a financial instrument fails 1o neet the contractszl obligaions Credit sk encompasses both, the direct risk of default and the Ask
of detedoration of credit ki a3 well g jon of sk Fi ial i 15 that are subiject to concengation of credit isk principally consist of wade receivable, cash and cash equivatents, loans and ather

financial assets

Financial assets that expose the endily to credit risk

- Asat Asat
Particul

sealars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Loans (Refer Mote Abelow) 31,552 18 16,482 67
Trade receivables (Refer Mote B below) 1,664 57 265170
Contract assers {Refer Note B below) 173 25 35913
Invesanents {Refer Malc C below) T 04 1704
Cash and cash equivalents {Refer Mote C balow) 10,771 17 11,974 73
Ohhar bank balances {Refer Note € below) 4,231 42 4,313 9
Other financial assets (Refir Mote C balow) LM e 143 500
Totzl 2328001 T3 74

o —

Credit Risk - Loany
Credit visk management
The Group's expesrs 1o credit fsk is influgnced mainly by the characteristics of cach ¢ However, t s iders the Faclors thal may influence the credit risk of its customer base, including the
default rick awesital with the industry. A financial asset is ‘credit-impatred” when one ar more svents that have a detrmental impact on the estimated future cash fows of the financiel asset have occurved. Evidence
that a (inancial asset is creditimpaired includes the following observable daw:
+3 breach of conrtact such as a default or past due event;
- when 2 barrower becomes more than 96 days overdue in its contrmetual payments,
The dsk L ¢ ittee has established  cr:dit policy under which each new + i analysed individually for credit weoribinrii before the Group's standard payment sl dellviry terms and condidons are
offered. The Group's review includes external ragngs, iF they are available, bach d vardl financial income twy i, credit agency information, industry isfsssanion. analysis of historical bad

debts and ageing of sccounts receiveble ete {as applicable)

Inputs, pHongs aad techoiques used For estimating impairment

The Group considers the probability of default upon injtial recognition of 3sst and whether there has been a siprifume increase in credit sitk since initial rijagiakon o i smp=eg basis a4 ¢ach reporting period To
assess whelher there is 2 shgnificant increase in credit risk the Group compares the risk of a default occurming on s amees as 3t the reporting date with the risk of defiualt m o et dass o7 i pitia] recogriton.
When determining whether the sk of Sefmh on 3 § tal § hasi 4 significanty since inital recogninan, the Group consu ble and supportable inf ton that is rel and
without undus <oz or effort This inelues beth quanttative and qualitative inf fon ang anabysis based on the Group's historicel exper credit and including forward looking information, Loans are
categorized into three stages based ok the risk profiles. The tree stages reflect the genera! pattern of credic deterioration of a fingreial insirument

ok

The Group categorises loan assets and receivables into stages based on te days past due fatus
+ Cuarrent - Stage |

- 0-10 days past due - Stage |

= 31- 60 days past due - Stage 2

- &1- 90 days pust due - Stage 2

- Mare than 90 days past due « Stage 3, write off

A ionInput idered in the ECL model:

Brobability of default (PIH
Days past due (DPD) analysis is the primary inputinto the determinadon of the torm strucesee of FD for axposures The Group callects performance and default information aboul its eredit risk exposures analysed by
—

type of praduct ar burcower as wel) 25 by DPD The Group employ istical models ta analysed the data collecied and g i of the PE» of exgosures and how these are ety
passage of time

i SR EAD)

e 4
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Payll Payments Frivaze Limited
Motes 1a Consolidated Fi ial & for tire year ended March 31, 2024
Ampunts in INR millians, unless otherwire stated

Loss given default {LGD)
Loss given default is an estimate of lass from » ransgction given that 2 defmel cocurs

Assessment of significant inceesse in credil risk
The credit risk on a Francia! asset of the Group ars assumed 1o have increased significantly since inital recagnition whea Ip are mors than 30 days past due Accordingly the financial assets shall be

classifted &5 Stage 2, i on the reporting date, it has been more than 30 doys past due

Credit Impaired
A default on 2 financial asset is when the counterpacty Feils 10 make the contraciual payments within 99 days from the day itis due Accordingly the financial assets shall be classitied as Stage 3, if on the reporting date,

it has bean 90 days past dus
Forward looking infermation

inits ECL models, the Group relies on 2 broad range of forward loaking information 35 m3cro economic inpuis. As required by lnd AS 109, Macro Economic (ME) overlays are required to be factored in ECL Models
and sccordingly, wroup have used GDP as the relevant ME variable. Overtime, new ME variable may emerge to have a berer carelalion and may replace ME beng used now

Palicy on write off
Financial assets are fully provided for or writien off {either partially or in full} as per the Groug's accounbng policy However, financiz assets that are written off coutd stll be subject to enforcement acvities under the

Group recovery procedures, taking It account legal advice where appropriaic. Any récoveries made are recognised in statement of profit or Toss on acksal realizstion (rom customer

Provisiona! matrix of ECL for loens and receivables

The gross camying amourt of boan receivables, and thus dve maximuem exposure 12 loss, is as follows:

Ag ot March 11, 2024

Farticulars Stages Gross carrying Weighted average Loss allowance Wet carrying amount  Whether credil impaired
amaunt loas rate

Current (not past ducy Stage | 31,438 15 I 12% 98227 30,455 87 e
Past due 1-30 days Stage | 3321 30 81% 27X 13 il 07 o
Past due 3160 days Stage 2 36872 43 1% 161 29 0743 o
Bast due 61-50 days Stage 2 315 46 71% 145 3% 153 31 o
Past due 90 days Sage 52172 18 54% 409 77 (RYR-H] Yes
Total 33.827 495 5.48% [ hn 1 3150214
As wt March 31, 2023
Particulsrs Stages Grossiarrying We-grl:;idr:::ragc Loss allowance el caeryingamount  Whether ceedit impaired
Current (not past due} Stage 1 16,255 70 Z40% 150 48 15,860 24 Mo
Pastdue 1-30 days Stage | 44693 38 93% 17400 27294 Mo
Past due 3160 days Suapge 2 301 51 59 73% 13128 12224 e
Past due 6150 days Stage 2 20110 o4 46% 137 64 107 46 Heo
Past due 90 days Stage 3 5i43% T163% EER RN 1i4 31 Yes
Total 17.815.62 T A8% 1,332.95 16.482.68
{i) Movernents in the gross carrying amount in respect of loans and receivable, e asset an finaoce

. Performing Under-performing WNon-performing
Particulars (stage 1) (stage 23 {stage 3} L
As =t April 01, 2022
Gross carmying amount opening balance 5128 24707 £6.30 844211
Teansfer during the year
- Transfer o stage 1 4 50 {435} {015}
- Transfer to stage 2 {148 4Gy 148 40 - '
- Transfer o stage 3 (1.65741) {202 543 1,350 95 (0.40)
Changes i opening credit exposutes (repard net of disbursalj {3,733 62} {1273 {859 203 (4,594.05)
Mew credit exposure (net of repayments) 411283 407 25 1,280 08 1580015
Asmeouat wotten off dufing the year * - (322600 {l,BJ:._Sﬂ
As st Mareh 37, 2023 16.706.64 504_.f¥ §|xl_:-£ 17815 61
Ag st April 01, 2023 [6,706.64 594.6] 51435 11,815.62
Teansier during the year
- Transfer ro stage | 895 {809} {0.86) ]
- Transfer 1o stage 2 (25595} 256:24 029 '
- Transfer o stage 3 {1,528 604 (493 55} FLirr A -
Changes in apering credic exposures (repaid net of disbursal) {11,085 36) {12099y (346 99 {11,553.29}
MNew credit exposure (net of repayments) 2847573 451.55 465 28 19,392.56
Amount watten off duning the year - = (2131 95% _ﬁ.uqu

As at March 31, 2024 3332042 51981 EFTRE) ]




PayU Payments Private Limited
Maotes to Consolidated Fi izl & for the year eaded March 31, 2024

Amaounts in KNR millions, unless otherwise stated

The loss allowance for loans 25 at 31st March 2023 ceconciles to the opening loss allowsnce as follows ™

Particulars Performing Under-performing Non-performing Total
{azape 1} {stage 2} (stage 31

Loss allowante a5 ¢ 15t Aprif 2022
Gross earmylag amount gpening balsnce 23377 13%.7% 219 435,78
Transfer during the year
- Transfer 10 stage | 280 {2 66} {0.14) -
- Tranzfer to stage 2 {260 267 . -
- Transfer 1o stage 3 {24 693 {15347 133 53 -
Net remeasyrement of 1oss allowance 5527 10144 1,686 25 1,842.96
Changes in opering credis exposures frepaid net of dishursal) {14948} 109 (854 751 {1.00].14}
Wew credit exposure (nel of repayments) 44 36 23637 1,063.70 1.735.93
Amount written off during the year Q417 205 1702 201 _11,100.56}
Loss alfowance a5 2t 31at March 2023 56446 368,92 395.57 1.332.95
The loss aliowance for leans and receivables as at 31s hlarch 2024 ing loss all ag follows *

. Performing Under-performing Non-peHorming
Particylars fstage I (ﬂI:E! n {spta o3 Total
Loss allowance g3 &t 15t April 2033 64,46 368.92 399.57 1,332.95
Teansler during the year
= Transfer 1o stagre | § 50 {477} (0,73}
- Transfer to stage 2 {9.21} e {023
- Transfet 16 stage 3 {58 65} {309 96} 368 60 .
Mat ment of loss afl - (751} 35945 1467527 1715741
Changes in apening credi exposures (repaid (33813) (39 56} (271 93} (651.62)
net of dishursal}
New credit exposure {net of repayments) 1,008 18 152 61 313515 1,664.02
Amount written off during the year x . (2131 95% (2.131.95)
Loas allavwennce zs a2 31st March 2024 1.254.41 doesd 4021 137081

B. Credit Risk - Trade receivables and Contract assels

The expected loss rates are based on the paymens peafiles of sales over a period of 36 months before the reporting date and the corresponding historical credit losses experenced within s period The histarieal loss
ratcs are adjusted to refiect current and forward-looking informetion on masroeconamic factors affecting the ability of the customers to sentle the receivables The group has idenufied the GDP and the vnemployment
cate of the countries in which it sells its goods and services to be the most relevant factors, and accordingly adjusts the historica! 10ss rates based on expecied changes in these fac1ors

Moregver, given the diverse agtyre of the Group's business trade reccivables are spread over a number of cusomers with na signi ficant concengation of credit risk Mo single customer accounted for 10.0% or matz of
gade receivable on 2 ¥ basis in any of the years indicated

An impaimment analysts is performed at each reporting date on trade receivables by lifetime exprcted credin loss methad based on provision matrix ‘The maximum exposure to credit nsk ot the reporting date is the
carrying value of each class of financisl assets. The Group does not hold collateral as security. The Group evalugtes the conceniraton of dak with respect to trade receivablos as low, 25 its customers arc located in
severdl jurisdictions and industries and operate in largely independ kets The maxi p to credil sk 2t e reporting date is the camying value of each class of firancial assets disclosed in Mote 43

Trade receivables and cantract 255815 are written off where there is no eeasonable expectation of recovery Indicators that there is no reasanable expectation of recavery include, amongst athers, the Fuure of 2 debtor to
cngage in 2 repayment plan with the group, and a failure to make contractual payments

Lows sllowance was determined for both trede receivables and contract asses under the simplified appreach:

X As at As at
Fasticakars March 31, H0a March 31, 2023
Trade receivables
Gross camying amourt - rade recsivables 1,152 1 278521
Expected credit lass - rade receivables (g 14} {11351
Careying amount of trade receivubles (zet of impairment) 1,664.57 2.651.10
Contract atgctsy
Gross tamying AMount - Contract assels 17325 35013
Expecied credit logs - contract 3ssets = =
Carrying amount of contract assets (net of impairment) 173.25 359,13
Recoaciliztion of lass allowance provision of trade receivables and contract assets

n As 2t As at

rticula

e March 31, 2024 Blarch 31, 2023
Cpening Balance i13 51 7125
Peovisian for expected credit losses 6165 3369
Utitized during the year (22%)
Reversal of provision {36 21} -
Exchange difference on translaion | 48 £ 57
Cloting Balupce 84,14 113.51
Write-offs of trade receivables

2713 133

Trade receivables wiitten off which is not expected to recover
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Payl) Payments Private Limited
Naotes to Consolidated Financial St for the year ended March 31,2024
Amaunts in INR millians, unfess otherwvise siated

C. Credit Risk - Other financial agsery

Other fimancial asscts mainty include secunity deposits, excess interest spread, receivable from the related party, bank deposins, other receivables etc where the credit risk is envisaged to be minimal

Mzrket risk

(i

Market risk is the sk that the fair value of fursee cash Blows of a financial i will £ t of changes in mazket prices Markel risk comprises of three types of fisk: urmency fisk, interest rate risk and

other price fisk such as cquily price nisk and commodity nisk

A. Forcign Currency risk

The (hivop o el & Eangs sochags rid portwily die 14 fegegn oammay enpenies & Foegs apsisons. Considering the < tes and in which the Group operates, its ogerasoes are
subjer b pe. araeg o eanio e ekl rees i tos coamingy Thee risk peimanily splae i Suchsations in USD against the funcismul ousmey of the Groug, The Group has a treasury deam which
evalumm the imgeet of Foreign rie Serun by aucmmeg; ik o gt W il s ra nd sad shesn B manggemant of any matedal adverse effect on the Group

Fnpaamie o puivealp Fiik
The ol mwing inblen desemarate et sensitivity 1o a reasonably possible chaage in USD & EURO suchungs rates, with all other visiley held ponstas, The it on the Group profin befana tax and equity is due 10
chusngen b e Dby kol mmasamary a55¢15 and hiabilities. Foreign cumency exposures recogmised by e Eiamup that have not been hadped by a deriviiire s of othe vise a5e 21 s

Ar it

Bk 302024 Iropact on profit hefore tax 2nd equity

Particulzrs Rature Amaount in INR AmeontiIESTeies 5% Increast 5% Drerease
L. i i
Fingncial assets Trade receivables [LSD} 252 70 303 1264 {12 64)
252,70 103 12.64 {1264
Sese
Financial liabilities Trade payables (USD) 35194 421 {17 60} 17.60
Trade payables (Euro) 1227 0id {Lal 961
Trade payables {GBP) 004 000
Trade payables (SAR) 253 Bit {013} 413
Chher financia! habiies (Euroj 1708 oy {085y 083
Other financial lrabitities {USD) 454 61 b3 {24 23) 24 23
Ciher financigl liabilities (GBP)Y 042 0 Ot (0021 002
b 11:% ;] 1041 (43,44 43.44
Net receivable/ (payable) 1616.18) 17.44} 56,08 15608}
s Impact on profit belore tax and equi
Moren 31 2023 LAl quity

Amaount in Foreign

Particulars Mature Amount in INR e 5% [ncrease 5% Drecrease
Financial assets Trade receivables (USD} 61141 147 g sy {3037
511.41 AT 30,57 (30.57)
Financial liabilities Trade payables (LIS 26190 121 (1309 13 0%
Cher Anancial liabilites (Evre} LT 400
Orher financial lisbitides (USD} 196 32 23R (_9_21 9382
45826 %59 {32511 i)
SRS
Net receivablel (paysble) 153.14 1.89 53.48 {53.48)

Hedge aceounting

The group is exgosed 16 cemain risks relating to its ongoing business operstions The primary risks managed using denvative insuments are foreign curmency fsk

tzrck 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Q fing farvward a3 at the tep date (millions USD)-Payable 450 8 2104
[s ding lorward a5 3k the rap date {milligns EURC)-Payable ELNH) 04
Cutstanding forward contracts 25 3t the repanting date (millions GBERFayable 374 -
Qutstanding forward condacts as at the reparting date (millions SGF)-Payable 053
Derivatives & ted as hedging instr
Disclosuras of effects of hedge accounting an balance sheet and sratement of profit and Tass
. Carrying amount of Maturity Hedze
T
e of hedige and risks hedging instruments dalts ratio
As on March 31,2024
Foreigh turrensy risk
Foreign exchange forward contrects (Wotional amount) 456 71 | Aprid 2024 to May 2024 191
Average Forward rate (INRAUSD) 83 51
Average forward rate (INR/GBP) 104,59
Averaee (orward rete (INREURO) @036
Aversge forward rate (INR/SGF) 6215
As on March 31,2023
Foreign currency risk
Fareign exchange forward conraces (Nodonal amounty 210435 |April 2023 to June 2023 1ol
Average forward rate (TNRAISD) 8252
AempgeTormged sus (TNR/EURO) 83 30
Sl S
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Psyl Payments Privete Limited
Notes to C lidared Fi izl 5 for the year ended Blarch 31, 2024

Amaunts in INR milliops, unless otherwise siated

There is no impact on statemenl of profit and loss 3ad balance sheet since all the contracts have been entered on 31st March 2024 2nd 310t March 2023 for their respectve years

The group's hedging policy anty allows for effective hedie relaionships to be established Hedge effectiveness is determined at the inceptinn of the hedge relatianship, and through p todic prospective eflecdveness
agsessment 1o ensure that an tc relatonship exists b the hedged item and hedging instroment
For forward comiracis, hedge effeciveness is d using hypothetical derivative methad Incffect i ] by comparing the change in the fair vafue of the zewal derivative 1 [orward contracts

| derivative rep ing the hedued item i e highly probable forecast jons Hypothetica) dervative matches the eritical temns

designated as the hedging instrument and the change in the fair value of a hyp
j¢ maturity date, cwrmenty and amount of highly prabsble farecast gansaclions.

B. Interestrate risk
Tnlerest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or furare cash Nows of 2 fnancizl iasmumant will Mucrrate besause of changes in market interest rates. The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market injerest eates

relates primanly lo the bank draft facility with floating interest Rtes
As at As at

iculz:
e Mareh 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Floating rate borrowings 19,402 67 10,311 64
Tnterest rate sentibivity
The foliowing 1able d the sensitivity to 2 bly possible change in interest rates on thal portion of toans and barrowings alfected With sl other variables held constant, the Groug's prafit befare tax is
affected trough the impact on floatng rate bomewings, as fallows:

= Change in As at Asat
Particutars interest rate March 31. 2024 March 31 2023
Interest rates increased 1% 12407 10342
nterest rates decreased 1% (194 03) {0312

C. Other price rizk - equity investment

The Group's non-Hsted equity securities are susceptble to market price risk ansing from uncenainties sbout future values of the ipvestment securilics. The Group manages the equity price risk through diversification
and by placing limits on individuzl gnd torel equily instruments

: As at Asat
Particulars March 31, flgd March 31. 2023
Financial Assets measured at Fair vatue through Qther comprehensive Income
{avestments 77 04 774
1104 T7.04
Price risk sensitivity aoalysis
The following table details the Groug's ivity o a 1% and 4 in the NAY of investments held The seasitivity analysis i ies only ding i and sdjusts their position at the period

end for a 1% change in NAY A positive number below indicates an increase in profit of equity where NAY increases by 1% Fora 1% wekening in MAV, tere would be a comparable impact on the profit or equity,

and the balsnces below would be negative
Every 1% increase / decrease in the NAV of investments, will affect the Group's profit before tax a5 given in below table:

e Ch;lig\f’ s Mar:‘;s.lalf pard Marc:;:f 2023
Profit or loss + Strengthening/{Weakening} 1% TN THITY
Equity {net of tax} - SwengtheningfWeakening) 1% S8 58 SB35}
Gty Liquidiry risk
Liquidity risk is the sk that the Group will difficutry in ing the abligat 1ared with its financial lizbitites that are sertled by delivenng cash or snother financial asset The Group's approach to

managing liquidity is o ensute, as far as possible, that it will heve sufficient liquidity w meet its Tliabitites when they are due, under buth normal and stressed conditons, without incurring unacceptable losses ar nsking
damage to the Group's reputaticn

h

The Group assessed the conceniration of risk with respect ta its debt and concluded it to be low The Group remaing d to maintairing 3 healthy liquidiry, geaning ratio, del ing and our
restated consohidated statement of assel aad liabilives
A. Finoncing srrangements
The Group had access to the undrawn borrawing Taciliies at the end of the reporting period:
As at Asat

Particutars March AL, 2024 March 31, 2023
Expiring within one year {bank overdralt and other facilities) 1,523 66 113649

350 50 T 00

Expiring beyond one year (bank loans)
The bank overdrafl facilifies may be drawm 2t any me and may be 1enminated by the bank without natice

(Tiis space has been loft blank intentionally)
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Payl) Paymrears Private Limited
Notes to C lidated Fioancial & for the year ended March 31, 2024
Amnuots in INR wiliong, unless otberaise stated

B. The tabie below summarizes the maturity profde of the Graup's financisl Uabilities based on contractusl vodiscounted payments.

As o March 31, 2024

Particulars Within 1 vear ¥ore thes 1 vear Fatal
Barrowings 20,385.63 13,2210 33,614.33
Tease linhility 28710 1,609,549 1,296.94
Trade payablea 1,945 57 - 1,945.87
Other financial tiabitiges 461169 366 12 4,974.41
Tetal I'L'E_E.ll B e 41 W18
Ag ot March 31, 2823

Fartrsbsry Nlara afinn |

Borrawings 10,2872 741528 19,102.91
Lease linbility 192 64 81959 101223
Trade payables 182155 v 1,521.95
Other finanrisl lisbiliges 5,082.48 77863 5361.11
Total [EF T ANLE4N fuGhile
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PaylU Payments Private Limited
Notes to Ci lidated Financial Stad ts for the year ended Marck 37, 2024
Amounty in ENR millivos, unless atherwise stated

45 Cageial manageaenl
For tha papma of the Group's capital management, capital includes issued equity copital, securities premium and 2fl other equily rescrves stributable o the equity hotders of the parent. The primary objective of the

Groug's capial & bisto inise the sharekolder value
Tha Orowp susap i cxponl irsiure 20d sl 2dj e bt of hurgr wy i o ol s 2iar ard e g of the fnaneisl _To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Tewp mary adjust
e dividiond paymem e dsackaldiis remrn cogpanl 10 shurrheddrrs o s sirw ihuoa The ey masimery fagetsl seing a gearing ratic, which is nel debt divided by total capital glos et debt. The Gromp wcheios within
1 deel imirind bening Boam desd b . bk cash e caih rgar o, o bl e dadoamnsed pomiions
Particulars AL AL As at
.Hlﬂt B, B4 "“E.-H:.EE
Totl debit Gincluding current maturities of lang term debt) {Refer A betow) 3096309 16,163 35
Less; cash and cash eguivaients (BT AT, LR R
Net debit 20,185.93 4,188.63
Tutal equity (Refer B below) -8 AL Al
Total capital TAEE. 14 [t
Total capital aod net debt -ruE‘l' Tk, f A5
Gezring ratia 44,75% 18.05%
A-Tarl debt
- Nop-cument barrowangs 12,637.75 6,064 27
- Curfent homowings 13,325 35 i0.60% 08
3006309 16.163.35
L=
B - Tatal equity
- Equity share capit! 30,153.18 20,468 29
= Cther equity {3 e gal) Al BE
3 Lw‘ £ ST S
Tn order 1o ach:cve this overall objec:we the Group's cap:le management, amongst other things, aims to epsure that it meets fi il hed to the nterest-b 'mg Ilosns end bor{owmg.s thal define capim!
Breaches in the woyld permit the bank to immediately call feans and borrowings There have been no breaches in the | of any t-hearing loans

and borrnwmgs dusing the year Mo changes werg made in the objectives, polivies of processes for managing capital duning the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023

{This space has been left bank inremtionally)
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PaylU Payments Private Limited
Motes ke Consolidated Fi ial for the yrar ended March 31, 2024
Ampurts in INR millions, unless otherwise srated
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Business combinstions
Acquisitions during the year ended March 31, 2034

i Blerowiior 14, 2023, the Group acquired Pyl Leraces India Pvi Lid { PaySense Tnl'| meluding its wholly owned fabadiuny Fayl! Fance India Pyt Ltd | Ty 1) Fimamea ), Witmo Gnc (" Wibme' L Erstigs Soflwase
Prrest L {"Enstage’) and Lazypay Private Lnd { Lasspiy ) o ¢ Shure Furch N he “Share Furcham Agrorsmi =} = order to simplify vimag powp nriciure and unlock value s

Pursuant to the tenms of the Share Purchase Agroement, the Group acquired such businesses on December 14, 2023 in exchange for consideration smounting to [NR 8,737 73 comprising cash of INR 768 62 and companies
awn shares of TR 7,96% 11

Grouy, directly or thiough ils subsidiaries, soquired entities whith were ultimastely controlled by the same parties whe alse contrel the group, both before and after the business combination The astuse of these transactipns
primanly invalved the purchasing of the ewisting; shareholders' equity steke

i flatlein A dix C of the Ind AS 103, these busy binslions under control are ageounted for wing the pooling of imeres method

i

As per the fui
General nature of fransferns companies are as fallows:

{a} Paysense Services ludis Frivate Limgted § The busns ol e Commpuony It 1o provide inngvative paymens and fnancing releted sendces to Indian consumers The Company slse provides development and mainlenants
services to the holding poepasy. and desls in Infermanon Tehnalog onalbied Sandces.

sk Pagl? Finance (Whally wemsiell sulibdiisry of PaySeass bedis) - The Company 8 3 i d non-panking finance comp gaged in the business of providing finance i ¢ business of lending credit by way wuf personal
\eam e deferred credit Do B short tmem deration. The Ciwsypasy is cegisborad i the Reserve Bank of Tndia as a M king Furance Company (WBFC) with effect fram 26 Fehruary 1998

ides inngvalive pay and p securify solutions The Company also pravides solutions ranging from mobile payments, fraud and risk prepaid sofuhiuns and 2 host of

{cj Wibma * The Company p
merchant services

(¢} Enstapge : The Company is primarly engaged in the business of providing rick-based authentication and pEyment security servces Bt also provides solulions ranging from miobile payments, Fraud and sk management.
prepaid solutions and 4 host of hant services

{¢) Lazypay : The business of Company is ro provide Buy Now, Pay Later {BMPL) services This enables the customer to sperdipurchase prod vices and allows h to s2ll the goods fsenices on the credit
financed by the company

A ing for Busi Combination under contral
Busl binations invelving entities of businesses under common control gee ccounted for using the pooling of interest method.
Under pasling of interest methad, the assets and liabilities of he combining entities oF busmeiics are reflected at their camyimy smoumds sfter puleg aecessary to b ikr ing policies, The identity

of the resmvan is preserved i the same form in whuch they agpeared in the financial Mabwsints of the teansferor and fhe Effesie. if aly, Barmemm the smoust recorded an ilirs nupinal Gssued plus any additonal
consideration in the Torm of cashk or ather assets and the amount of share capital of the transferar is transferred to capital reserve.

Constquentiy, the financial informotion of the Group, includes the financial information af the busi tranyferved by the franstersr to the transferee and bas been restated from the earliest period presented
ic the restated consolidated financial ieformation of the Graup.

() Detaits of % of pach companies equity shares exchanged to effect the business comb wnation:

Particulars Paysense India Wibme Enslage Lazypay

{Ine, PayU Finance) _ m—
Musnber of shares issued faror ¢ompanies in exct :] 3,781,957 008 1,401,374 6,79.75.394
% of Equiry shases of panies i excl d 1905 10055 100% Wie

{b} Detaits of business combinations, carrying value of the assets acquired, lizhilities agsumed, reserves acquired and harmonized 2y per the fevised accounding policies of the Group, and the resultant capital
reserve are given below :

Particutars Paysense ladin Wibme Enstage Laeypay Tatal
{Including Payll Finance)

-
Purchase consideration {A) £6.690.85 FEE.I4 24312 435.62 513
Ouiniis sl Salelery lpkoy seg
Assers srquired 8,694 33 LEGS 14 1,340.13 1,292 20 114l 30
Lizbilities assupmed (Lo 7 {298 32} 1338 65) [P49.81} (2.93500})
Reserve and swolus acquirsd {7,362 19 (1,316.21} {458 20) (88 BS} (9,468 09)
Met idturifiable assety asquired (B) IL34 ;10 12.28 45350 487,22
Capitat Reserve 35 00 April 01, 2022 (A - B) (6,56%.51) [168.04) (830.85) 11,88 (8.!50,51_}
Adjustment on acoount of change in share capital, sssets and reserves and 137 Li%i] 174 22625 24115
surphus
Capital Reserve as on March 31, 2023 (6,656,351 {76504} (829.10) 14413 {8,002.35)
Adjustenent on aceount of change in share capilal, assets and reserves and k] {1} 0 £ i
surplus
Capital Reserve as oo March 31, 2024 (5,653,080 [t £%29_101 744,13 [ e Bl
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Payl) Payments Private Limited
Notes to Cogsoliduted Finameial St for the year ended Marck 31,2024
Awounts io IR millions, unlesa otherwise stated

49 Relationship with struck off companies

As af March 31, 2024

Mams ol ererkolt cempany Huburr of dramia i Tramacism during the i Baluscr swistending Hetatiom
Caleutts Elecoonics Revemie et = Merchant
ol o Ay T SRR

Neme of struck off compaoy Nature of tragysctions Trangactions duriog the year Batunce sutitanding Relationship
Campus mall private limited Revenue 0.06 a Merchant
Money champ privete limited Revenue 003 . Merchant
Cotorful travel price private limited Revenue 2] - Merchant
Oswal computars & consultants pvt Lid Revenue 001 a Merchant
Uhtam infranet pyvt itd Revenue 0o0 - Merchant
Apoz sweets India private limited Ravenue 0ag - Merchant
Orichem drugs and pharmaceuticals pvt td Revenne 000 . Merchent
Excess info store private limited Revenue .00 B Merchant
Hridhay automobiles private limited Ravenue 000 - Merchant
Kiara automabilea pyt ftd Revenus .00 v Merchant
Sumids vehicles pvt 14 Ravenue 000 # Merchant
Ubitech sclutions pyt Rd Revenue .00 : Merchant

[This space has been lefi blank intengonally)
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Payl Payments Private Limited
Motes to Consoliduated Fi ial & ts for the year ¢nded March 31, 2024

Amounts in INR miltions, unfess otherwise stated

50 Prepaid Payment Insteumeats {PPIs}- Lezycard

51

52

53

54

{it)

56

5%

5

The Group was 3cting 25 a Business Coreespondent {BC) to SBM Bank (India) Limited The Group was #lsa acting as co-branding partner for prepaid payraent instruments (PPI), named ‘LazyCard” issued by
SBM Bank {India} Limited. These PP1 were loaded/reloaded by a credit fdibiy offersd by wn affiliate entity of the Group. Due to sty changys, the Group has discontinued issuance of these co-branded PP
¢ards. Further, the Group has switched the business of marketing and diswebastian of ca-branded PPT1o marketing and distribution of creds 1ards with the banks. Necessary Firancial impart has bean given ta these

financial statements

Appliraies wilk Brierve Rasak of Tadis

On [T Sephember 33, e Pagl) Paymaens fisd an spphcation with e Reierve Rask of bsdka (e RO S authoricstion 1 (slineg oisng = @ salng pymesd appregser = scordircs wrh the
Gusdchitnti vy Wit oif Paymsgrs: Aggergsivm sl Frprend. Gabinidt duted 1T Mk 2000 md fie Foymend and Sk Syvome A0, 2507, i asrcrsled fosw s 5 tira. O 13 famsry 3027, RBI
remegd tha applcazaon and woprend mn ercb i i iebaandeg of R 1] 4 Pyl Frywairan s spply sfresh wothae 1290 dins S 10 Jassary 2007 afirr sddrmaany the peabirin & RDI
whaih inchadod, umpifiodion of the dhirthollog snaitent, dorprobems revicer pad gty of T b aad g e e coafiming complurce with e Thiptal Landing
Guidelmms dibnd ¥ Sepbersbet 2077 istond by tha REL Pyl Payresh Bled a peviand applaation padswiied on 10 Al 203D el also confirmed that it has/ wall be taking the necesary famssdiation aclions.

On 23 Al D02d, RO Gay presvded on privciphe et rates b Pyl s embanga oo eow merehanis anboarding him bewm withdeawn. RBI has required the Company to produss & Bywem Avudit Report {SAR}
from 3 CERT-IN smpancied sudin whilds o perved of § morahs fading which grast of firl dberiagtain may not be considered

Long- term cootracts
The Group did not have any long-term coniracts including derivative contacts for which ihere were any material foresecable losses

Investor Educstion and Protection Fund
There were no amounts which were reguaired to be transfermed to the | Education and Pr ion Fund by the Group

Code on Sovial Security, 2020 and Employees’ Provident Funds & Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952,

Thea Badian Partisment bas approved the Cade on Social Security, 2020 which would s (e deamburion iy e Croap raasli Possales Fasd sl Gronsity. Tie Msitry of Labowr sl Esploymr hos
releassd deafl rules for the Code on Social Security, 2020 on November 13, 2020, and kst ivited miggratiom frem ishe helders which srw wades acirs consideralion by the kisisry, The Grssp will mami the
impact and it evalualion once the subject cules ar¢ notifted and will give appropriste impact in i1s Finarsinl plelems o L g in which, Bir Code bevorees effeiines aid te sbied ndm s doorens the

fi ial irnpact are published

The Hon'ble Supwme Court of Indiz in its adgmint in the matrer of Vivekananda Vidyamaedir & Others Vs The Regional Provident Fund Coramissioner (I} West Bengal laid principles in relation to non-
exclusion of cemums sllowances from the delbmmon of "basic wages® for the purposes of defermining contribution to provident fund under the Employees’ Provides) Fond & MisoaFasesss Provisions Act, 1952
Based on initial sssessment performed by the Group, (he order did net result in any impact on these 6 ial The 1t will triwe ba amiein e gt of ferther dewelopments in g regard
and deal with it accordingly

Teransfer Pricing

The Group has 2 camprehensive sysiem of mai of information and d as requirad by e privang begeilaiion. snder pections T3FF of the Incoserin Act, 1961 A4 fan e requires
exigtence of such inlormation and d ion 1o be poranecys in nature, the Group appais sebipstsalbird smulinis for conducting o Tramer Frieig Sredy to dmarmin whathar the nissstiions with
associate enterprises are undertaken, during the Hoancial year, on an "am’s length basis” The adjusmesty, o wy, smeng fomn sech Enmifer pragieg paady shal| be acoowmind for mi and whes e study i
completed for the currenl fi ial year However, the 1 is of the opinion that its i ignal ions v at amms” length and the aforesaid legislanon vAll not have any matenia! impact on the

fingncial statements
Ewvents occurring sficr the reparting period

For the year eoded March 31, 2024

h

There have been no matena! Quent evenls b the bal sheet date and the date of signing this repon

For the year ended March 31, 2073

On 151 Apri) 2023, the company has tansferred businesses of Dika basights, P, SMB Lending Ausstance Soresced il Maw baaking (tha is, technolopyioareipandent sFvidel rclating 18 mding scimiin
of banks and financial institutions) from PayU Payments Private |ismswed to Pyl india Ionovations Privese Lavesed Th s bus boon scquised by way of Shesys 5l a3 pes pectian 508 af the lreoeee Tin Aol
1961 The company has acquired Assets of INR 1,057 85 and Liabilities of INR 91009 and purchase castdrsin pasd o squs ther businca i INR 153.2% Tt dafFarencs Beamren purchaie congaieniis pusd
and net assets aequired is ded as Gaodwill ing to INR 5 53

5B Lending Assistance Services refers to lechnology/ b iesf correspondent services relsting 1o banking activities of banks

Neo banking refers Lo technolagy! logisticsh pondeni services relating to lending activities of banks and ing inslitutions including any Is with and third pasties for implementing

any tending Rows i collaboration with bank and firancial institution

During the year the Company received certain alepstions Uvough its “speok up™ channel which are being i igated as per ‘s J pulicies. As on the date of issuance of these firancial
these invesligations are sub tally siswplenad and the has conchuded that these allegations are not exp o v @ I el on the Company's financial statements or its internal

control assesmen

Audit Trail

The Company {PayU Payments [ndia Private Limited) has used accounting softwares for mai ing its banks of for the year ended March 31, 2024 which has 3 festure of recording audit wail (edil log}

[y amed Sar e has aporsted Sedwglaind ther yebdr B all mlevand manost e wy Dt 501 o that:

5 The scoountiag sofiwan CTrascscwn Plifors- B, Frosssioes Flafere: Cura. Trasasn on Flaclion- tdaney, Admin Panel, Pricing Panel, Coherence, Treasury/ Seti Redshift, Satesforce, Oplimu

wiod i PRasag socoaming reooeds of novrrat el pedl  the g softars did med have the sudit trail feature enabled throughout the year,

b} The sccounting software {"SAP ECC"Y used from April 1, 2023 il Scptember 30, 2023 for maiitaining accounting records related fo all general ledgers, the accounting software did nol have the sudit b
feature cnabled for the said peniod

¢} The accounting software ("SAP SSHANA") used from October |, 2023 for maintainiag accounting records related to all general tedgers, the accounting sofiware did not have the audit krail feature enabled fu
the said period at the application level

Following is the audit tail for subsidiaries comp
Subsidiary I:
The Subsidiary Company {Pay Services India Private Limited) has used an accauntiog software for maintaining ils books ef account for the year ended March 31, 2024 which did not have a feature of

recording audit trait {adit tog) facility. The Company has migrated its accounting soffwarc from Tally to SAPSAHANA, from Aprit 1, 2024

{ I' Ch;;r-,arcd
— s
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PFayl) Payments Privete Limited
Notes {n ligated Fi ial § ts For the year ended March 31, 2024
Amounls in INR millions, untess otherwise stated

Subsidisry 2:

Thay Subssidiary Cormpany (Lasrypay Frivess Limimd] s used ooty safhadrs Tor mantasvmg iy b of aogmant for the year ended March 31, 2024 which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit lug)
Excitty aeall ot taser ban. operamed dwoughoud Lhe pri Bed ol reldyam mamisinom womded Tar s e §useps e
T j nat {Thaaghi Mathine") ssed far mainuining soosaming focesds of revasas, cohar Enancial gissts ard its impaitment, did not have the audit wail feature enabled throughout the year;

b) The accounting software {"SAP ECC"} used from April 1, 2023 4] Februasy 15, 2024 for maintaining accounting records related to all general lidpers, the accounting software did not have the audit tral featw
enabled for the said period

6} The accounting software (“SAP SAHANA"} used from February 16, 2024 for ma) ining accounting ds related to all genersl ledgers, did not have the audit rail fealure enabled for the said periad at ]
application level

Subsidiary 3

The Subsidiary Covspasy (PaylU Finance Indis Private Limited) has used sccounting software for maintaining its books of aceount for the year ended March 31, 2024 which has 2 feature of recording audil ail
(edit log} Teedisy el (5a name has operated (hroughout the year for 2li relevant mansactions recorded in the software except that:

a) The accounting soflware {"SAP ECC") used from April 1, 2022 till February 15, 2024 for maintaining accounling recards related to all general ledgers, did nat have the audit trail fealure easbled for the sa.
perted

b} The accounting sofwase {“SAP S4HANA") wsed from Febraary 16, 2024 for maintzining accounting records related to all graersl ledgers, the accounting software did not have the audit irail feature enabled 6
the said period at the appheation level

Suhsidiary 4:

The Subsidiary C £ Safrugre Private Limited) has used sccounting software for maintaining its books of account for the year ended March 31,2024 which bas 2 feature of recording audit tra {edit

FaTY

log) facility and the same has opersted thioighout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the soflwar: except that:

1T scommibng offsai (TVE ) md S muisiareng iigentey recards of revenss, fd nsl bt et il Fpanurs Eaatiicd gl The v6&
BTl iia-dmting pabcars Taly") naed fooes Aprl |, 2023 4l e 30, 202 o e ascsamsng rocards relstod o ol peeersl ledgars, dill mad bas the qudit vz feabure enabled for the said period
i} Tha scossnting sofhwims [“BAF BEHLANA") wead froem Budy [, 363 till hlassh ¥1. 3004 for maintaining icooontiag smoeds veland is ol geearal leddgers, did nol have the audit trail fealure enabled for the sai

period at the applieation level
Subsidiary 5:

The Subsidiary Company (PayU India Innovations Private Limitad) has used o 53 for maintaining its books of account for the year ended March 31, 2024 which has a feature of recording audit
truil {edil log) Facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant Srarmictions recorded in the software except that

2} The accounting soflware {"Reallime score provider dushboard and Batch pr ing score provider dashboard and Inquiry DB} usad (or maintaining accounting recards of revenue, did not have the gudil tra
feature enabled throughout the year,

b) The sccounting software ("SAP ECC"} used from Apnl 1, 2023 till September 30, 2023 for mainteining aecounting records related 1o all general ledgers, did not have the sudit vail Gature enabled for the sz
penod

¢} The ascounting software ("SAP S4HAMA™) used from October |, 2023 till March 31, 2024 for maintasning accennling records related w all genera! ledgers, did not kave the audit mail feature enabled for tf
said period st the application tevel

Further, no instances of audit trail feature being tampered with has been noticed in respect of the sccounting sofbware for the peried for which the audit il fealure was operating

59 Backsp

e iy M A menfcaion ditad 05 August PR, e Comsesl Oorvernmesi i motified B Coampanee | Acoounts) Fourth Amendment Rules, 2022, As per e mmenadnd rules, the Group are requiced o mainiain
k- of the basks of st and other relwani Booia snd pigsr @8 Heswonic mode thal ahodd e geemsible in India at all the time. Alse, the companis &9 reguired 1o craate backup of accounts on servers
shyuiaiy lecstnd o s o o daily basis. The mnicie e Taatecd prapes booka of seossed @d the backup is kepl on a daily basis of such of books of yrlained in eb i mode in & server
physically located in India except For-

WSAP ECC which was used from April 1, 2023 till Eebruasy 15, 2024 for mainizining accounting records related to afl ganaral Iedge

«“Taly {Versian 6 6 3} which was used from April 1, 2023 all June 30, 2023 for maintami g ds relsfod i all gewsiril ledgers and for IVS which was used twoughout the year n which the server
are maiptained in India but Backup is kept on weakly basis '

sTramieson platform « Citrus & Money which hus beren deversmasisssad during the year and the data backup of the same has been archived

In prlaten 1é compli with the requi ol e et Wd, e mte 58 to the financial statements.

§0 Other Statutory disclosures

{i} The Group daes not have any transaclion which is nat recorded in the boaks of sccounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the fax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961
{suth as, scarch of survey or any other relevant provisions of the Incame Tax Act, 1961

(i} Thatrg men no Bl wheih hind baga sdvasced on kamed or ibveied [11dw Brom bamawed Bands or s pepanans 80 any ctbar sources or kind of funds) by the Group 10 or in any olher persons or eatities,
e bsdimg Vortrps dntian {irmermedune L with e erdiiuing, whiher ecorded i wiing or otbaressn, st thar betermeduy shall:
b dureg iy o wadanrctly Bond o iyt e otbet panana or orudve iesh Bl ey i w b L imale B #27 ) iy or on behalf of the Group or
bi) prorvics sy [Eatuce, docwe ity o8 W ke oo on ckad i ol dor LM araie Desrfgieran

{iif) There are no funds which have been received by the Group Bam any persons of entities, including foreipn entities (“Funding Parties™), with the und ding, whett ded n woling of otherwise, that the
Cirgnap whiad!
i dusraily o mderdily, lend oo memt in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatscever (“Uhtimate Beneliciasies™) by or on behalf of the Funding Pacty or
] pravwsde vy guaranse, secenty or the like from or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

{iv) The Group has not raded of invested in Crypto cumency or Victual Currency during the financial ysar or prior years Further, te Group has aot received any deposits or advances from any person for the purpose
of trading or invesling in Crypto Currency or Virtual Cumency
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PayU Payments Private Licoited
Notes to Consoliduted Fs jal §t: for the year ended Merchk 31, 2024
Amaunts ic INR mjllions, unless atberwise stated

(%) The Group has complied with the number of leyers preseribed under section 287} of the Compantes Act, 2013 read with Companiay (Restrietion on number of Layers) Rules, 2017

{vi) The Group does nol have any Benami property end ro p dings have been inibi
(45 of 1983) and the rules made thereunder

ar pending against the C for holding any B { property, under the Benami Transactons {Prohibitions} Act, 1588

{vii} The Group does not have any charge which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the stabutory period.

‘viily The Group has not been declared 3 “Wiliul Defaulter” by any bank or financial institation {35 defined under the C
issued by the Reserve Bank of Indin,

Act, 2017 oF cansortium thereof, in 3 with the guidelines on wilfis defznl

Jpd

(ix} The group has ot revalued its propenty, plent and equip { right-of-use assers) or intengable assets or both during the curent o previous year.

For and oo behalf of board of directors of

PayU Payments Private Limited _‘;.Jl
3 |1 . (8.7
En§ & : " A miban Makbrrge Anuradhe Aggarwal
i -~ T Chlafl Caestive (8fser I manstisd Officer and Company Secretary
i % f REC Director Birector
[| @ phadered 13-
|12 accountants | @ DIN: 07157585 DIN: 02175763
K ,'6 i .I_-'_i"‘“ | Place: Mombsi Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai
"_:-‘_.:__‘x\_ Al Date: June 25, 2024 Date: Jone 21,2024 Date: June 21,2024
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